Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 1/1/2024 Through 1/31/2024

Account Code Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account #4558 376,609.73
1006 Payroll Checking #5614 13,317.57

1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT #8510 1,799,859.85

1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking #7071 42,469.40

1012 NWOTA #4564 11,942.61

1020 .GIP1020 #5879 1,491,156.94

1030 .GIP1030 #5931 1,783,096.51

1035 LGIP1035 #6518 321,000.21

1040 Petty Cash 200.00

Report Total 5,463,043.09 376,609.73
Report Difference 5,086,433.36

Date: 3/4/24 11:07:43 AM MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH Page 1



SINNODDV TTV - DNILYOdTY QdvOod ATHLNOW

aoed
%I1S vt 16679 VL 00'0¥0°90¢" 60 ¥1t°18S L979€8°801 79'689°69
%0661 ST EEO LT 00°0SE %91 $8°91L°7¢ €8°569°¢1 63°LSTY
%0675 LY PE6°1€T 00'9L¥ T6F £5° 1457092 L96£0 1T L9°861°CE
%06'8T (16'9¥9°46€°9) 00°$9€°€66'8 60'8TL'86S'T 80° L+ 6¥L L8'SE]8TI
%000 (00'+87°69L) 00'¥87°69L 000 00°L01°%9 000
%000 (00°000°¢) 00'000°¢ 000 00°05T 000
ULS LL (87°509°5) 00'000°$¢ ILY6€°61 £€¢80°C 65879
%000 (00°000°¢) 00°000°¢ 000 00°05T 000
Yalt L (90°'+6L'18) 00'10+°88 ¥6'909°9 SL'99E°L 00°0SL
%00°0 (00°850'1) 0078501 000 L1'88 000
%S9 (00756997 00'995°8¢ 00°1L8'1 05°08¢'C 000
%00°0 (00°5L5°691) 00°5L5°691 000 STIETL 000
%0061 (00°L0%"989) 00 18¥°LF8 00'+L0°191 Y ET90L 000
%ESPE (00°6Z8°t61°1) 00'657°5T8°1 00'9Z+°0£9 850151 000
%00°0 (00°6€T°68¢° 1) 00°$€TS8E'T 000 STIEH' ST 000
%66°€11 11°L80°¢1 00°005°€6 11°L85°901 LY 16L°L 6L'7€0°ST
%08°6¢ (58°799°120) 00°S+T'89¢ SIT8S 9T 80°L89°0€ 000
%8€0S (F9+0+'T1) 00°000°52 9¢'665°CI1 £€7£80°C STOrL'l
%62°06 (LSHOTETT) 00°€91°991°1 £h'866°TS0°1 ST081°L6 £L'96¢°01
%rTSE (58°09¢£°909) 00'LTE9E6 $1°996°67¢ STLTO'8L ¥6 PEV 9L
%8S°SS (LL E8E'H0T) 00°000'S€T €7°919°0¢1 €€ £86°61 LS 068°8
%000 (00°5L2°€20°1) 00'SLT€T0'1 00°0 T6'TLT'S 000

%08 OUBLIBA 193png 1810, [enOY 198png pouad [eIOY potad

198png 810

¥C0T/1€/1 YSNOIY L, $70T/1/] WOl

189 A JUALIND)

juaLnd)

pun [eiouan) - [0
JUOWIAIE]S [BIOUBUIL]
PLYSI( uonelrodsuel], AJuno)) Yoowe|[LL

juaLmnd)

0€0¢s
020s
0ros

8l6¥
L6y
01sy
0lvy
001
00ey
S¥Ty
Sy
0viy
0cey
01ey
ocly
0cly
011y
001+
0z0¥
000¥
00s¢

Wd 01-01:-¥0 ¥T/¥/e -P21eA

S19ALI( :[]0iAed
yoredsiq :Jjoiked
UOHBIISIUIWDY :[]0IAR]

SADIAIOS [QUUOSI

$301N0SAY [BI10],

pung 4LS wWoy 13jsuel]

VL1OMN Wwoly 13)suel],
Jwoou] 15313)U]

WooU] - $)3sSY JO J[BS
SWIOOU] SNOAUR][IISTIA
suonerad( sng [eoadg
SO¢ES - SRl

01ES - sIueID

() 11¢6 - siwein

11£S VL] - siuelh
sjuelirn) [eirde)

Xe] []0JAB{ 91EIS JISURI] SSBIA
ANUANY Joquil], 2IBIS
xe |, A11adold s1ea A 158d
xe] Aradoig

NUIAIY J0BNUO)D)

sareq

jende)) Sunjiom

S2IN0SAY



z 28ed SINNOIDV T1V - DNLLYOddd d¥vOd ATHLNOW
%ESTY C9°8TL 00'897°1 Se6Ls L9501 000
%C1°0 L6'€96°6T 00°000°0€ £0°9¢ 00°00S°C £0'9¢
%6905 10° 1647681 00°00T°9L¢t 66°80L°061 00°0S€°1¢ 8T'S90°L1
%9T°501 (8£°706°L) 00°000°05 1 8€°C06°LSI 00°005°C1 ¥L9SH'6
%FSL 1$°0v€°0C 00°000°CT 6°659°1 rEEEs’l 000
%LT19 8L°79T'9 00°€L1°91 70166 SLLYE'L #6251
%0101 PLYTTSL 00°¢89'¢t8 9T°09¢'8 SL'EL6™D 000
%ELRS 00°529 00°005°1 00°GL8 00°sTl 00061
%00°1L €6'60LT1 00'8¢8°ct LOBZIIE LIESOE £6'700°C
%0658 S9PIST 00°St+8°L1 SE0EEST 80°L8Y'1 S189€°l
%61 €S ISL6L'Y 0005701 67 TSH'S L1'PS8 6LL8T
%66°L6 00°506°C 00 TH6 vl 00°L£0°TF] 05°8L0°C1 00°SLTTFT
%69 ¥6T (STHSL'ey) 00°€LY'TT SI°LTT'99 SLTLYT vL 188y
%98'1¢ 86'708°T1 00°LZ¢%C T0'TTLTT 6°er0°T ¥L°888°C
%000 00°00L°€ 00°00L°¢ 000 ££°80¢€ 000
Y%teesl (S1'87L°%) 00°0tL°01 SI'894°91 00°¢68 ST8FS'6
%000 00'995°8¢ 00799¢5°8T 000 05°08¢€'C 000
%16°09 76'659°8¥ 007005 ¥¢1 80'0¥8°SL 00°SLE0]1 TIL8T'T
%01°S¥ 0€¥0€ 1891 00 T0L°LO0E 0L'96€°9S€E°T 9L 1¥9'05T LETIELLL
%89'vC1 (18'668°L) 00000°Z€ 18'668°6¢€ £97999°C 000
Y%L1'SS 6519681 00°00€°Ct St'8ee'eT 00°57S'¢E (A2 24N>
%l1S°6¢ S Tsiys 00°¢£5°68 GG 08ESE 60°19t°L LY1E6'F
%el6¢ 61°08¥'1€E 00°0T9°%¥< 18°6€1°C1T 00°68¢ ¥ Srlerey
%6675 1STH9°LL 00°L0STLI 67 ¥98°%6 8S'SLEYI £€°668°11
%8Sy 88'¢LL'88 00°5L8°¢91 TUI0T'SL §T°959°¢1 T9°LIT'6

%06 S0UBLIBA je8png |mo], [enoy 128png pouag [emoy pouad

128png (B0

¥C0T/1€/1 ysnoayy, £20z/1/1 woig

1B A JUDLIN))

uaunyy

puny [eiduan - [
TUSWISIE)S [BIOUBUL]

juaumy)

J1LGSI( uonepiodsued ], Ajuno)) JOOWe[L],

09¢¢
L¥CS
S¥Cs
0+es
0zes
01ce
061¢
G8l1¢
0815
SLIS
0L1S
081¢
0SIS
9489
orvis
0TIS
£01¢S
001§

G608
£508
c0s
150S
050S
0¥0¢

Wd 010170 ¥T/¥/E 21ed

agesod

1204 suedoid

[on surjosen 2 [9s3IJ
asuadxg 3[oIya A
Sururery 29 JoARIL
asuadxg suoydaja]
FunayIe
UONBNSIUIWLPY [0Y0J]y 29 Qg
asuadxy [euonesedp
asuadxy pieog
asuadxg 29110
J0uRINSU]

SOSUIIT 79 S99

N2 121ndwo))

Ay wewdinby 20140
suonduosqng 29 san(g
Suluue(d

SIDIAIS [BUOISSIJOI]

SaDIAISG PUR S[BLIBIA
S90IAIIS [2UUOSISJ [EJ0T

'su] uonesuadwo)) SI93I0M
BQOA [[01KE]

UAWRINY []0IAR]
areotf)|eay [j014R]
asuadxq jjo1ked
QOURUAUTRIN ([[OIABJ



¢ 1afeg SLNNODDV T1V - DNILYOdA¥ @IVOd ATHLNOW WA 010170 bT/P/E P1A
%LSTE 16 €62°199°S 00 vTI SO 60°0E8°LELT T0°LTY00L ZS1TT LSS sesuadxq [e10]
%8+ 9T LT S6TLILT 00°€£9°5E€T €8°LEFBIO 80°9€9° V61 88°+TT01S AepnQ [e1de) (er01,
%8497 LIS6LLLILL 00°€€9°SEET €8°LEP'SIO 80°9£9'v6 1 88°¥TT01S saseyoing [e1de) jei0],
%0501 SLLPE'TEL 0085 811 $T°009°S1 00°6L£°T1 08°6L8°1 0509 s199(014 [ENdE) 121PO
%000 00'9L6°89€°1 00'9L6'89€"1 000 €€180°F11 000 0109 s1a12y§/e5eusg doig sng
%5978 0S'1L6'F8 00°09¥°6L1 05881 6 00°556'71 0070 0109 uwonIppy Huswaoe[day uep
%65°6L 76°667°0¢€1 00°679°8€9 80°67£°806 SL0TTES 80°6¥E°80S 0009 uonIppy Ausaoe[day sng
wommauusm —NtQmU
Kepng rende)
%000 00°051°806°1 00°0S1°806'1 000 05210651 00°0 s1gjsuel] |BI0L
%000 00 19Z°6¢€S 00 19Z°6€S 000 r8E6 vy 000 0816 leg punq Suipuy pejeudorddeny)
%000 009L6°80T°1 00°9L6°80T°1 000 00°8¥L 001 00°0 0916 pund v LOMN 03 13jsuel]
%0070 00°000°¢ 00°000°€ 000 007052 000 0516 SA1283Y S[INYSA 01 Jasuel],
%000 00°€16951 00°€16'961 00'0 80°9L0°C1 0070 0016 1€6S d1D7] 071 19jsuel],
mum%mﬁmu.ﬁ
%199 Yo Yr9°06€ 00°0v9° €51} 95°666°T9L 89°9¢€1°96 LT 189°661 S3I0IAIDS PUE S|BLIEIN [EIO,
%LT69 SLV6T 1 00°00T° ST°506°7 00°0S€ YELYY 9pES ey Ao suoneredQ
%LE LY 15°0ZL°01 00°8¥E0T 6+°LT9°6 L9569 L61€°1 o:149 JUIBN J9IUS)) JISUBLY,
%85°5T 000096 00°006'Z1 00°00¢°E 00°SL0'T 000 1825 Y 29O
%78'9% 17611°C 00°586°¢€ 6L°598°1 80°7€EC 00°0 0LTS puny uonea10ay 10qe AW
%0070 (00°000°01) 000 00°000°01 000 00°000°S 997§ TUSWASINGUITRY S5e[IJA] JoqUI]A
%06 JDUBLIB A 198png [B10] renoy ja8png pouad [en10y polisd
UDMUBm _NHOH Lmo> HED.EZU HCD.ESU HCMbSU

¥C0T/1€/1 4snoy ], +¢0z/1/1 wolg

puny [e42uan) - 1¢
JUSWISIE)S [BIOUBUIL]

PLOSI( uonelIodsura ] A3uno)) OO ]



t :28ed SINAODDV TV - DNILYOLFY ddvOd ATHINOW Wd 01-:01:+0 ¥T/¥/€ -31ed Te)

Y ILTIC NEEZANA4Y) V0TT6 60T I8S8OLEC $Co6STo 9 tLTT sosuadx je10],
SAT6'ev Y (86'¢€L°1ST) 00°611FF 86'TS8°S61 85°9L9°¢E 00°¢St LepnQ (ende) |10
%000 (b¥'81T°LLT) 00°0 PP 8ITLLT 00°0 00°¢ST saseyoIng |eide]) Jejo]
%000 (P 8ITLLY) 000 P 8IT°LLY 000 00°¢ST 05¢ES uoneAoUSY 2 Jreday Surpiing
soseyoInd [eyde))
%vT Ty 9+ 8t ST 00611 FF vSre9 8l 85'9L9°¢ 000 JVIAISS 192 [BI0L
%00°0S BLYSIEL 00°01€9C TTSSTEl 05°261C 000 8€ES 1900 ue0T g1LO
%66°6F 89'6LY'S 0065601 ZE6LY'S sTele 000 LEES 1,00 ue0] DAL dILO
%000 000589 00°058°9 000 £8°0LS 000 §TES asuadxy ueoT dnd

201A12S 192(J
KepnQ eude)

%L9'TY LI6SSHT 00T6L'S9 €8°CET 1T L9 78S 9°0T1°S SA0IAIIG PUE S[BLINBA [BIO],

%L LL 0S°£10°8 00°761°5¢E 05°8LI°LT L9TE6T SLLYST o¥es Jreday % ue Apadord

%16t LY SHS I 00°009°8¢ £CPSOYI €€ E8ET [LTSSC 00€S ssuadx3 Funerad Anadoiy

%0070 00°000'T 00°000°C 000 L9991 000 001¢ SIOIAISS [ELIOISSAFOl]

moumzom @:m m—mtvumwz

sasuadxg

%L0 61 (rS°556'88) 00116601 94'$5607 ST651°6 00°00L°1 S90UN0S3Y [BI0L

%000 (oo'116'CT) 00 116°¢1 00°0 ST'6S1°T 000 116¥ pun,f [eIoUSL) WO J3JSURL],

%0L'SS (FS¥¥9°9) 00°000°S1 9t°66¢'8 00052’} 000 016¥ swoau] dx3 jeuonelad( asea]

%00°S€ (00°00t°€0) 00°000°9¢ 000091 00°000°€ 00°00L°1 006t SMI0U] 258

%00°0 (00°000°st) 00'000°S¥ 00°0 00°0SLE 00°0 005€ Jende)) Sunjiopm
mOuuﬂOmDM

%06 0UBLIB A 128png [B10] [eTyoy 193png pouad |en1dy pouad
128pung g0, JIea £ juaun) juaLnyy Ny

¥20T/1€/1 Ysnoryy, $z0c/1/1 woig
puny judwadeuejy Auedoid - Z0
JUAWISIRIS [RIOURUL]
LS uonelrodsuer], A3uno’) JOOWe|L],



G 8eq SLINODDV TIV - ONILEOdAY AdvOd ATHLNOW Wd 01-01:%0 vT/p/E P1BA O

%000 06'666°188 00'000°788 01°0 00°005°€L 000 sosuadxd €10,
%000 00°000°788 00°000°88 000 00°00S°¢L 000 SIafstel] [e10],
%00°0 00°000°Z88 00°000°Z88 000 00°005°¢L 000 SL16 aimyipuadxy a1min,{ 10§ 341353y
SI9JSUBI],
%000 (010 000 010 000 000 SITIAIDS pUE S[BLIIEIA [BI0L
%000 (01°0) 00°0 01°0 000 00°0 0sT1¢ SaSUIIT 7§ S99
S301AISS PUB S|BLISIRJA]
sasuadxg
%9079 (16'155°878) 00°000°Z88 60'8¥¥°€S 00°00S°€L vLTIL'L $30IN0SAY [B10 ],
%6LEtlT 60'8¥1'8C 00°000°S¢C 60°8t1°€S £€°€80°C PLTIL'L 015y SWIOIU] 153Ia1U]
%00°0 (00°000°L58) 00'000°LS8 000 LY9IYIL 000 00se [ende)y Sunpom
$20IN0SaY
%05 QOUBLIBA 198png [e10 [emoy 128png pousg |emoY polad
128png [e10L JB2 X JULLIND) JuaLIny) juaLIny)

¥202/1€/1 UsnoIyy, $20z/1/1 wolq
pun, 2alesay jeude) - o
JUOUISIB)S [BIOUBUIL]
JPLISIA uoneprodsuea ], Ajuno)) Yoowe[LL,



9 :a8ed SENNODDV T1V - DNILYOdIE (RIvVOd ATHLNOW
%00°0 00'STT'LE 00°¢ZTLE 0070 80'T0I'E 00°0
%00°0 00°STTLE 00°STT'LE 000 80'701°¢ 000
%000 00°67T°LE 00'STT'LE 000 80°701°¢ 000
%0070 (00°672°LE) 00°5TTLE 000 80°701°€ 000
%0070 (00°000'€) 00°000°¢ 000 0005t 000
%00°0 (00'sTT¥E) 00°S7T¥¢E 000 80'758'T 000
%08 OUBLIBA 128png [B10], oy 1o8png poung [eOY pouad
1a8png [v10], Tes A juaun) juaLny) wuauny

¥T0T/1€/1 Ysnoyy, z0z/1/1 wolq
PUI,] 9AIISIY 3seydInd SIS A - SO

JUSWISIL]S [RIOUBUL]
P13sIq uoneiodsuea ] £)uno)) Joowe[iL,

SL16

[16¥
005¢

N 0L:01:70 PTH/E P1A N

sosuadxq [ei0],
sIgjsuel] [B)O]
aryrpuadxyg 21mn, I0J aATISAY
sJajsuel]
sasuadxg

$90IN0SY [BI0],
pun,j [BIoUIL) WOI ] I9JSUBI],
1enden Sujiopm

S22IN0S9Y



L @%ed SINNOJIDV T1V - ONLLYOdTE AAVOd ATHLNOW
%00°0 00°0¥1°¢T 000¥1°€C 000 €E8T61 000
%000 000t1°€T 00'071°€T 000 £€'876'1 000
%000 00°0¥1°€T 00°0¥1 €T 000 £€°8C6°L 000
%000 (00°0+1°€7) 00°0¥I'€T 00°0 £€°8T6°1 00°0
%000 (00°0¥1°€0) 0oorl'eT 000 £E'8TO'1 000
%05 JoUBLIBA 128png [B10], [eruoY 128png poliad [eryoy pouad
198png [B10] Ied X JUALN)) juaLIn) JuaLND

¥20T/1€/1 ysnolyy, $207/1/1 woig
OAID5Y SOUBUAIUIBIA USEA\ ST - 90

1UWISIE)S [RIOUBUI]
LIS uoneyrodsuea ], A)uno)) JOOwe[|L],

SL16

006¢

Wd 010170 vT/b/e 21EA. oy

sosuadxd |ejo],
s1oJsuel] [e10L
arnnpuadxy aImng 10J 9A19SIY
SIgJSuRI]
sasuadxg

$35In0S3Y [e10 L
Jende) Funjiom
S90IN0SAY



SINNODDV T1V - ODNILIOdIY QdvOd ATHLNOW

w Hobmn_
%0t © SHTIFL 8IS | V0TS CET 1 CCFFYES TE 6F0 9Ll GEOCIC
%000 00°9L6°89¢€"1 00'9L6'89€'T 00°0 €E 18011 00°0
%000 009L6°89¢" | 00'9L6'89¢" | 000 £E 18011 00°0
%000 00'9L6'89¢"1 00'9L6'89¢€°1 00'0 €C 180 P11 000
%000 00°919°891 00919°891 000 €ETIS0F] 000
%000 00919691 00°919°591 00°0 £ET08°¢l 000
%0070 00°000'¢ 00°000°¢ 00°0 00052 000
%89°96 SECST TH 00°000°S6 SSPP8Es 99°916°L 6€°621°C
%I0¥S 08°865F 00°000°0 0T 10t'S £eees 00°0
%0T L8 €E9ITS 00°000°0t L9°€88'F¢€ gereee’e 00°001°C
%000 (6£°LS) 000 6€°LS 000 6567
%E£9°6T 10°655°01 00°000°S1 66ttt 00°05T°1 000
%65'1T 0770961 00°000°5T 08°L6€'S £€7€80°C 000
%61 'EL 0S°0FE'T 00°000°S 05°659°¢ L99T¥ 000
%ITT (0026579657 1) 00'T6S°TEY'] 00000°9¢ £€°6¥0°9¢1 000
%00°0 (00°000°091) 00°000°091 000 €eeEeel 000
%000 (009L6°80Z°1) 00°9L6'80T" 000 00°8+L'001 000
%0961 (00°919°L¥Y) 00919°¢81 00°000°9¢ £ 10€°ST 000
%000 (00°000°08) 00700008 000 L9°999'9 00'0
%065 Q0UBLIE A 128png |e10]. leryoy jo3png poliad Jen3dy pousd
198png 810 Jes & jusun)) waLmy) juauny)

¥T0T/1€/1 YSNOXL $T0T/1/] WOl
BI[[V JISue1] uogaiQ) ISOMYUON - 80

JUSTUIE]S [BIOURUL]
JPLISIJ uonpelrodsued [, AJuno)) JOOWE[|L],

0+09

0816
0€16

0zes
061¢
0sIS
018
1016
001I¢S

4
I16¥
sy
00s¢

N 01:01:%0 vT/p/c -318d

sasuadxg (g0
KeQ 1eude) @0
saseyotng [ende) [ejo],
s19)]2ys/e8eudig dois sng
saseyaIng reyde)
KepnQ 1ende)
SIQJSIR1] TeJ0],
Teg pung Surpug pajeudoiddeun
pun [e19Uar) 0) ISULI],
SIoJSuBI)
S2JIAIS PUE S[BIISIEIN [BIO],
Suruiel] 29 [9ARI]
FunaIen
SasuadI| 79 S99
Q0UBUIUIBIA 115G
noddng aAneisiuwIpy
SOOIAISG [BUOISSAT0I]
S201AI2S PUB S[ELIABIA
sasuadxg

$20IN0SY 810,
punj J[1S WO I9JSURI],
puny |eJousn) wol JAJsuel],
a1 U] Jaued VIOMN
reude) Sunjpom

$90JN0S3Y

»



#

UMPQUA BANK

January 31, 2024 Page: 1 of 2
Customer Service:
1-866-486-7782
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
NWOTA
3600 3RD ST SUITE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730
Last statement: December 31, 2023
This statement: January 31, 2024
PUBLIC FUNDS ANALYZED CHECKING
Account number XXXXXX4564  Beginning balance $5,972.00
Low balance $5,942.61 Deposits/Additions $6,000.00
Average balance $7,704.45  Withdrawals/Subtractions $29.39
Interest earned $0.00  Ending balance $11,942.61
Deposits/Additions
Date Description Additions
01-23  Deposit 6,000.00
Total Additions $6,000.00
Other Withdrawals/Subtractions
Date Description Subtractions
01-22  Maintenance Fee Analysis Activity For 12/23 29.39
Total Other Withdrawals/Subtractions $29.39
Daily Balances
Date Amount Date Amount Date Amount
12-31 5,972.00 01-22 5,942.61 01-23 11,942.61
01-31 11,942.61
Overdraft Fee Summary
Total For Total
This Period Year-to-Date
Total Overdraft Fees $0.00 $0.00
Total Returned Item Fees $0.00 $0.00
Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender (&Y SBA Preferred Lender 10

C00001330947



6 98ed SLNNODIV T1V - DNILAOdAY ddvOd ATHLNOW Wd 1£:9€:60 +T/S/E P1Bd
—

%ETOL YTPPL'S 0000€°61 9L°5SS el £€°809°1 10691 01¢s asuadxy suoydajay,

%SET8 69'19C 00°005°1 1€GETT 00°6¢I 000 081¢ asuadxg [euonessdQ

%56°0% LTTS6'T 00°000°S €LLFOT L99IY £0°0L1 0L1S asuadxg 20130

%91°901 (00°08¢) 00°L91°9 00'L¥S9 6'els 000 091¢ dueInsu|

%L9¥1 00°0TT' S+ 00°000°¢S 00°08L°L LY9It Y 000 0¢1¢ SISUINT 2§ S934

%TLLL TT9TL'Y 00°L1Z'1T 8L'06%°91 80°89L°1 8¢01TT 948 W Pmdwo)

%8801 (9L%01) 00°00L°C 9L'+08'T 00°5¢T 06’805 oris 2y wewdmbyg 20130

%0¥'0C 00086°¢ 00°000°¢ 00°0C0°1 L991Y 000 001¢ SIOTAISG Jeuo01ssalold

S3JTATOG pUB S[ELISIRIA]

%¥0'6F ¥ 687°90¢ 00°0¥0°109 95°0SL¥6T L97980°05 16°CLTSF SAVIAIIG [2UUOSIA [BIO]
%000 00°00s 00°00¢ 000 L9 TF 00°0 Gsos ‘su[ uonesuaduIo)) SISYIOAN

%E0'vt T0'S8T°8 00°508° %1 866159 SLEET'T ¥OvoL €508 EQRA [014E]

%95°SF P 6LT LT 00°795°1¢ 98 T8V LT0£9°C 119151 7508 1UAWRINSY [[0IAE]

%St 1L £6'0¥L6T 00°20Tv01 LOIOF ¥L 05°£89°8 YL L69S] 150$ aredy[esH [jo1keq

%67 Lt 8E'0%6 81 00°5¢6°S¢E 7976691 85 +66'C £9°L9€°T 050% asuadxq Jj01degd

%69'9¢ 0S'9S¥' €L 00°6sT'1T 0S'86L°L STILLL 08°6€0°1 105 12anpuj :jjoiked

%St vy L1'L8TI'BIC 00'18L°T6¢ £8E6S VL] SLIELTE 66'678°€T 010§ uonensIIWpY ([|oIked

S9DIAIOG [2ULOSIa]

%T9'6L (ZoTk17100°1) 00°L6E°Cl6Y 86FSTTI6E Tr'99£°T8¢E 98°€LSTTY §32IN0S3Y [EI0L
%00°0 (00°008) 00°008 000 L9'99 000 01s¥ SWOodU] 35a133U]

%65 °L1E 60°161°L0L 00°000°5Z¢ 60°161°7¢0°1 000 000 LZOY IAIISY UMN

Y%LT¥O (IT°€€5°L09°T) 00'L6S L8F' Y 68°€90'088°C Th'996°¢LE 98°€LSTTY 920v SNUIAY AMN

%0070 (00°000°001) 00°000°001 000 £EEEE8 000 005¢ [ende) Suppom

S90IN0SY
%0¢ QOUBLIBA 128png [B10], [eryoy 198png pouad [BTI0Y pouiad
1a8png g0, 183 A JUALID)) Ju2LIMY) uaun)

¥20T/1€/1 YSnoIy ], $70T/1/1 WOl

INNODIV SAdId MN - 60

JUSUISIB]S [RIOUBUIL]
LIS uoneliodsuel ], AJuno)) Jooweyiy,



01 :28eg SLNNODDV TTV - DNILIO0ddd AdvOd ATHLNOW
%€£0°8S 08'16£7790°C 00°L6E°E16'Y 0T°S00°158'C LL 6¥¥ 601 0S°'8LS°L6E
%000 00°LS87I1E 00°LS8°ITE 000 80°886'SC 000
%000 00°LS8°11¢€ 00°LS8°T1I¢E 000 80'886'SC 000
%06°€9 9ESHT VPPl 00°005°000°F ¥9°¥5T955°C TO'SLEEEE 65°T9€°TSE
%T6°06 SETLT 00°000°¢ S9LTL'T 00°05T 000
%00°0¢ 00°00¥'C 007008t 00°00¥°T 00°00% 000
%91°681 (9F #£S°LOT) 00°€97°921 9P LOL'CET 7617501 L8EI8TE
%69°C11 (00°5LT°07) 00°5TL651 00°000°081 AU 00'000°0¢€
%80°85 €9°9L0°50S°1 00'878°065°¢ LETSL'S80T L9°SET 66T 0¥'070'$8T
%86'¢ 01°08¥ 00°00¢ 0661 L9 1¥ 000
%C1'S 80°ETH'I 00°005°1 C6'9L 00°5C1 000

%0S MUBLIEA 128png e10 |engoy 198png poliag [enoy pouad
128png [R10L Ie9 X JuaLny) juaLny) jua.LIn))

¥C0T/1€/1 YSnoIy [, $20z/1/1 woig
LINNODDV SddIY MN - 60

JUOWISIR)S [RIOURL]

1LNSIT uoneyaodsurd |, AJUno) JOO WL,

SL16

0ots
18¢¢
L9TS
99¢¢
G9tTs
09¢s
0zcs

A 1€:9€:60 ¥T/5/¢ -91ed QN
-—

sasuadxy je10L

SIajsuel] [E]OL

armyipuadxy oImin,{ 10J IAIISY
SI9jSuBI]

SIDIAIQG PUB S|ELIJIRJA [B10 ],
asuadxg Sunerad( Ajadoig
Uy NYWO
SINQUITIY 2FBA|TIA J92UNJOA
TUSIASINGIUIIDY 25BN JaqUId|N
uoneodsueI] paseydInd
adeisod
Sururer] 2 [9ABIL



11 :28ed SINAODDOV T1V - DNILAOdTdd TdvOod A THINOW

%LE T SL68L700F T 0091Z°0CF 1 ST9TH 61 €E1SS6IT 000
%000 00 €91 PLE ] 00 €91 PLE T 00°0 8 EISHIT 00°0
%000 00°€50°16 00°€S0°16 000 SLL8SL 000
%0070 00°9T8°¢1S 00978 1S 000 €8°818°TH 000
%000 00 ¥8T'69L 00 ¥8Z°69L 000 00°LO1Y9 00°0
%81 00°L79'9T 00'€50°9¥ 0097461 SLLED'S 000
%IS'SE 00 1£0°91 00'1984T 00°0€8°S SLILTE 00°0
%00°0S 0096501 00T61°12 0096501 00199L1 000
%000 (s70) 000 670 000 00°0
%000 (sz0) 000 ST0 000 000

%86 €T (#57865°6L0°T) 0091202 1 9y L19°0F€ €CISESIT 1S°0L6°0T
%000 9y TLE'S 00°0 9 TLE'S 000 15°€5¢E°]
%00°0 (00°'8¥0'79%) 00°8¥0°29F 000 00'+05°8¢ 00°0
%00°0 (00°000°0%1) 00'000°0%1 00°0 £9999°1] 00°0
%ST0LT 00°€06°0€ 00 THEH0E 00°S¥T'SEE €8°19¢°6T 00°L19°61
%000 (00978°¢15) 009Z8'¢1S 000 €8°818°TH 000

%06 QOUBLIBA 198png ®1oL [enyoy 128png poiiad [emioy poLId g
umwﬁzm _muo.._.. Hm®> HEDtSU HED.CBU HEO\EDU

¥C0T/1€/1 Ysnom L, $70z/1/1 Woig

A1LS - 01
JUSTIS)EBIS [RIOURUL]

PLSI uonelrodsuea ], AJjuno)) Joowe[iL,

0816
SLT6
0cl6

10cs
00Zs

0sl1¢

olsy
LETY
9¢ly
Sely
00Se

Ad 01-01°¥0 vT/¥/t -21ed

sosuadxd 101
SI9JSUeI] JejI0L
reg pung Suipuqg pajendorddeun
armypuadxqg 21N I0f 2ATISIY
punJ [eIouar) 03 J9suel],
SI9JSUBI]
sjuawAe  e10ads B30,
sjuatdioay o3 syusuwiied J11S
siua1droay] 0) sjuauiked 1S
sjudwked [e1oadg
S2JTAISG PUE S[ELIDBIA [B10],
SISUADIT 29 5294
S90IAIOG PUR S[BLINBIA
sasuadxq

S90IN0SAY [BI0],
awodu] 152121u]
Kreuonaidsi(] A11S
Ayuninwiodsdiug 4118
B[NULIO{ JILS
leude) Funjiom
$20IMOSAY

™

~



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register

1001 - General Checking Account #4558
From 1/1/2024 Through 1/31/2024

Docume.., Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

18336 1/3/2024 289.54 CATHY BOND HOLIDAY FOOD REIMBURSEMENT

18337 1/3/2024 506.76 PACIFIC SOURCE PS 12,2023

18337 1/3/2024 252.84 PACIFIC SOURCE PS 11.2023

18338 1/3/2024 6,722.49 PREMIER TRUCK GROUP VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

18339 1/3/2024 42,901.21 SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS. SERVICE HEALTH BENEFITS 12.2023

18340 1/3/2024 6,423.20 SPORTWORKS NORTHWEST, INC. BIKE RACK REPLACEMENT PARTS

18341 1/3/2024 95.00 TYLER HELLNER DOT Med Care Reimbursement

18342 1/8/2024 1,575.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS NOVEMBER 2023 Legal Fees

18343 1/8/2024 1,158.00 JORDAN RAMIS, PC NOVEMBER 2023 Legal Fees

18344 1/8/2024 100.00 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS Hex Adapter Tool

18345 1/8/2024 3,848.48 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. Coordinated Plan Grant 35137

18345 1/8/2024 2,453.75 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. Coordinated Plan Grant 35137

18346 1/8/2024 4,643.50 Miller Nash LLP Legal Services/ATU Negotiations

18347 1/8/2024 762.00 SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS. SERVICE Auto Ins Van 114

18348 1/8/2024 40.00 CENTURYLINK Local Phone Service Nov 20-Dec 18
2023

18349 1/8/2024 91.93 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS Water Service Dec 2023

18350 1/8/2024 1,650.00 Eleanor Carey Mock up for Marketing

18351 1/8/2024 196.90 FleetPride, Inc. INV 113033209,277676,367835

18352 1/8/2024 2,161.49 Fred Meyer Customer Charges DECEMBER 2023

18353 1/8/2024 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat Board Meeting 12.20.2023

18354 1/8/2024 490.66 GenXsys Solutions, LLC January 2024 Server Storage Virus Plan

18354 1/8/2024 2,142.90 GenXsys Solutions, LLC Jan 2024 Managed Service Funds

18355 1/8/2024 50.00 Jonathan Bean Board Meeting 12.20.2023

18356 1/8/2024 1,968.92 Les Schwab Tire Center DECEMBER 2023

18357 1/8/2024 50.00 Linda Adler Board Meeting 12.20.2023

18358 1/8/2024 50.00 Marni Johnston Board Meeting 12.20.2023

18359 1/8/2024 50.00 MARY JOHNSON Board Meeting 12.20.2023

18360 1/8/2024 2,420.59 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. DECEMBER 2023

18361 1/8/2024 150.87 Office Depot Credit Plan Office Supplies

18362 1/8/2024 2,138.60 PLANNING SOLUTIONS 211687 TCTD Kitchen, Dispatch, Transit

18363 1/8/2024 312.00 Prevailing Communications Office Radio Repairs

18364 1/8/2024 248.55 Rosenberg Builders Supply DECEMBER 2023

18365 1/8/2024 50.00 Thomas Fiorelli Board Meeting 12.20.2023

18366 1/8/2024 22,50 Tillamook Motor Co. Element Asy

18367 1/8/2024 36.67 Tillamook PUD SB Electric 11/12-12/12/2023

18367 1/8/2024 48.61 Tillamook PUD LB Electric 11/12-12/12/2023

18367 1/8/2024 143.35 Tillamook PUD Transit Electric 11/12-12/12/2023

18368 1/9/2024 95.00 John Grover DOT MED CARD

18369 /9/2024 650.00 TERRA BUCHANAN CPR/FIRST AID CLASS JAN 2024

18370 1/19/2024 744.27 ABILA ABILA MANAGED PLAN 1.15-2.14.24

18371 1/19/2024 78.10 ALSCO - Portland Linen MAT SERVICE 12.19.23

18372 1/19/2024 617.61 ASTOUND PHONE SERVICE 11.27-12.26.2023

18373 /19/2024 370.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. DECEMBER 2023 RANDOM SELECTION
TEST

18374 1/19/2024 134.25 COUNTRY MEDIA LEGAL NOTICE DEC 2023

18374 1/19/2024 69.75 COUNTRY MEDIA PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 12.12.2023

18375 1/19/2024 149.75 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES DECEMBER 2023 PARTS

18376 1/19/2024 1,315.00 JORDAN RAMIS, PC DECEMBER 2023 LEGAL FEES

18377 1/19/2024 1,330.07 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL TVC DEC 2023

18378 1/19/2024 47.47 Office Depot Credit Plan NWR/TCTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

18379 1/19/2024 154.53 Pacific Office Automation DECEMBER 2023 COPIER USAGE
NWR/TCTD

18380 1/19/2024 200.00 PACIFIC SOURCE PACIFIC SOURCE DECEMBER 2023

18381 1/19/2024 132.50 R & W ENGINEERING, INC. GRANT 35137 PROFESSIONAL SERVICE

18382 1/19/2024 1,324.49 Schetky Northwest Sales, Inc. CYLINDER/PC BOARD

18383 1/19/2024 801.60 VERIZON TABLET SERVICE NOV 27-DEC 26.202134

Date: 3/4/24 03:38:09 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1001 GEN CKG

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account #4558
From 1/1/2024 Through 1/31/2024

Docume... Document Transaction
Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
18384 1/19/2024 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat JANUARY 17.2024 BOARD MEETING
18385 1/19/2024 2,142.90 GenXsys Solutions, LLC FEB 2024 MANAGED SERVICE FUND
18385 1/19/2024 478.29 GenXsys Solutions, LLC FEB 2024 SERVER STORAGE VIRUS
PLAN
18386 1/19/2024 50.00 Jim Heffernan JANUARY 17.2024 BOARD MEETING
18387 1/19/2024 50.00 Jonathan Bean JANUARY 17.2024
18388 1/19/2024 50.00 Linda Adler JANUARY 17. 2024 BOARD MEETING
18389 1/19/2024 50.00 Marni Johnston JANUARY 17.2024
18390 1/19/2024 50.00 MARY JOHNSON JANUARY 17.2024 BOARD MEETING
18391 1/19/2024 59.95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC. INTERNET ACESS FEE FEB. 2024
18392 1/26/2024 19,598.00 ECOLANE USA, INC. IVR ANNUAL FEE 10/23/22-10/22/23
18392 1/26/2024 19,598.00 ECOLANE USA, INC. IVR ANNUAL FEE 10/23/21-10/22/22
18393 1/26/2024 180.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS December 2023 Legal Fees
18394 1/26/2024 11,359.50 Miller Nash LLP Legal Services/ATU Negotiations
18395 1/26/2024 100.00 SEWARD WHITFIELD DOT MED CARD REIMBURSEMENT
18396 1/26/2024 9,548.25 SWIFTLY GPS ANNUAL FEE 1/4/2024-1/3/2025
18397 1/26/2024 85.18 ULINE Ties for Pathogen Kits
18398 1/26/2024 250.00 BUREAU OF LABOR AND BOLI 1.26.24 PW FEE
INDUSTRIES
18399 1/26/2024 789.72 ATU LOCAL #757 AP PAYROLL 1.26.2024
18400 1/26/2024 3,889.06 HRA VEBA TRUST HRA VEBA JAN 2024
18401 1/29/2024 60,038.99 SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS. SERVICE AP JAN 2024 HEALTH BENEFITS
18402 1/29/2024 313.66 PACIFIC SOURCE AP PS 1.2024
18403 1/31/2024 254,174.54 Schetky Northwest Sales, Inc. AP VEHICLES #312; GRANT #35117
18403 1/31/2024 254,174.54 Schetky Northwest Sales, Inc. AP VEHICLES BUS #311; GRANT
#35116
18404 1/31/2024 598.46 CINTAS Uniforms/Shop Supplies
18405 1/31/2024 6,207.09 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. Coordinated Plan 35137
18406 1/31/2024 10,690.00 SINGERLEWAK LLP Progress bilting through 12/31/2023
18407 1/31/2024 505.00 ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC Windshield bus #307
18408 1/31/2024 81.44 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS JANUARY 2024 Water
18409 1/31/2024 1,625.80 PLANNING SOLUTIONS 211687 TCTD Kitchen,Dispatch, Transit
18410 1/31/2024 1,035.00 Prevailing Communications Install Radios Bus 311/312
18411 1/31/2024 1,473.29 Rosenberg Builders Supply 12.26.23-1.24.24 INVOICES
18412 1/31/2024 210.94 Tillamook PUD Transit Electric 12/12-1/12/2024
18412 1/31/2024 49.73 Tillamook PUD LB Electric 12/12-1/12/24
18412 1/31/2024 36.67 Tillamook PUD SB Electric 12/12-1/12/2024
ACH 1/2/2024 4,881.74 SAMSARA INC AP ACH SAMSARA 1.2024-ANNUAL
1.2.2024 SUBSCRIPTION
Report Total 768,986.44

Date: 3/4/24 03:38:09 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1001 GEN CKG

15

Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking #5614
From 1/1/2024 Through 1/31/2024

Document Document

Number Date Transaction Amount Payee Transaction Description
5802 1/3/2024 96.05 TYLER HELLNER Retro Pay

5803 1/3/2024 64.40 SEWARD WHITFIELD RETRO PAY

5804 1/3/2024 158.90 MARGARET MOORE FINAL CHECK - WAGES
5805 1/3/2024 306.08 MARGARET MOORE FINAL CHECK - VACATION
5806 1/31/2024 1,037.88 TRACI CRUCHELOW AP FINAL CHECK TC
ACH FEES 1/12/2024 ,142.85 ADP, LLC ADP PAYROLL FEES AND
1.2024 SERVICES 1.2024
AFLAC 2.2024 1/15/2024 600.36 AFLAC AFLAC 2.2024

Report Total 3,406.52

Date: 3/4/24 03:38:47 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1006 STER PAYROLL Page; 1

16



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register

1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT #8510
From 1/1/2024 Through 1/31/2024

Docume... Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4131 1/3/2024 2,280.00 ECOLANE USA, INC. ANNUAL MAINT SOFTWARE
7/1/23-6/30/24

4131 1/3/2024 4,000.00  ECOLANE USA, INC. ANNUAL MAINT, AMEND #6
5/1/23-4/30/24

4132 1/3/2024 6,547.00  TRAVELERS NWR CYBER SECURITY COVERAGE
1/1-12/31/2024

4133 1/8/2024 9,264.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. AP NWR PROVIDER BILLING - NOV
2023

4133 1/8/2024 10,216.75 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. AP NWR PROVIDER BILLING - DEC
2023

4133 1/8/2024 10,074.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. AP NWR PROVIDER BILLING - OCT
2023

4134 1/8/2024 271.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE After Hour Phones Nov 2023

4135 1/8/2024 57.58 CENTURYLINK Local Phone Service Nov 20-Dec 18
2023

4136 1/8/2024 91.93 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS Water Service Dec 2023

4137 1/8/2024 1,500.00 ECOLANE USA, INC. Annual Fee SMS

4138 1/8/2024 857.10 GenXsys Solutions, LLC Jan 2024 Managed Service Funds

4138 1/8/2024 490.66 GenXsys Solutions, LLC January 2024 Server Storage Virus Plan

4139 1/8/2024 3,248.20 JANNA SMITH NWR Vol Driver MR Dec 2023

4140 1/8/2024 1,404.37 JOY WINKELHAKE NWR Vol Driver MR Dec 2023

4141 1/8/2024 2,210.61 KANDIS LIDAY NWR Vol Driver MR Dec 2023

4142 1/8/2024 3,407.09 SEAN REKART NWR Vol Driver MR Dec 2023

4143 1/8/2024 2,483.61 WILLIAM NERENBERG NWR Vol Driver MR Dec 2023

4144 1/17/2024 2,499.95 AAA RIDE ASSIST 10/1-10/7/2023

4144 1/17/2024 2,759.30 AAA RIDE ASSIST 10/15-10/21/2023

4144 1/17/2024 1,808.85 AAA RIDE ASSIST 10/22-10/31/2023

4144 1/17/2024 1,101.95 AAA RIDE ASSIST 10/8-10/14/2023

4145 1/17/2024 9,817.75 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 10/1-10/7/2023

4145 1/17/2024 11,315.00 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 10/15-10/21/2023

4145 1/17/2024 12,124.25 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 10/8-10/14/2023

4145 1/17/2024 4,282.25 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 11/1-11/4/2023

4145 1/17/2024 10,780.75 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 11/2-11/18/2023

4145 1/17/2024 7,703.25 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 11/19-11/25/2023

4145 1/17/2024 7,709.75 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 11/26-11/30/2023

4145 1/17/2024 8,563.50 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 11/5-11/11/2023

4145 1/17/2024 2,087.75 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 12/1-12/2/2023

4145 1/17/2024 10,050.75 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 12/10-12/16/2023

4145 1/17/2024 11,779.25 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 12/3-12/9/2023

4145 1/17/2024 14,765.00 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 10/23-10/31/2023

4147 1/17/2024 11,381.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 7/1-7/8/2023

4147 1/17/2024 11,693.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 7/16-7/22/2023

4147 1/17/2024 10,112.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 7/23-7/31/2023

4147 1/17/2024 9,208.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 7/9-7/15/2023

4147 1/17/2024 4,654.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 8/1-8/5/2023

4147 1/17/2024 8,542.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 8/13-8/19/2023

4147 1/17/2024 8,760.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 8/20-8/26/2023

4147 1/17/2024 4,689.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 8/27-8/31/2023

4147 1/17/2024 9,558.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 8/6-8/12/2023

4147 1/17/2024 3,493.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 9/1-9/2/2023

4147 1/17/2024 10,206.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 9/10-9/16/2023

4147 1/17/2024 11,278.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 9/17-9/23/2023

4147 1/17/2024 10,949.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 9/24-9/30/2023

4147 1/17/2024 9,800.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 9/3-9/9/2023

4148 1/17/2024 13,953.00 METRO WEST OCT 2023

4148 1/17/2024 15,563.00 METRO WEST NOV 2023

4148 1/17/2024 13,465.90 METRO WEST DEC 2023 17

Date: 3/4/24 03:40:16 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register

1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT #8510
From 1/1/2024 Through 1/31/2024

Docume... Document Transaction
Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
4149 1/17/2024 1,312.50 MTN RETREAT SECURE 7/1-7/31/2023
TRANSPORT
4149 1/17/2024 1,250.00 MTN RETREAT SECURE 8/1-8/30/2023
TRANSPORT
4151 1/17/2024 11,800.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 10/1-10/7/2023
4151 1/17/2024 8,722.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 10/15-10/21/2023
4151 /17/2024 11,674.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 10/22-10/31/2023
4151 1/17/2024 3,365.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 12/1-12/2/2023
4151 1/17/2024 8,919.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 12/10-12/16/2023
4151 1/17/2024 9,088.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 12/17-12/23/2023
4151 1/17/2024 6,696.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 12/24-12/31/2023
4151 1/17/2024 7,961.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 12/3-12/9/2023
4151 1/17/2024 9,114.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 10/8-10/14/2023
4151 1/17/2024 7,499.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 11/1-11/4/2023
4151 1/17/2024 10,044.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 11/12-11/18/2023
4151 1/17/2024 8,790.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE 11/19-11/25/2023
4151 1/17/2024 8,540.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 11/26-11/30/2023
4151 1/17/2024 9,129.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE 11/5-11/11/2023
4152 1/19/2024 2,100.00 K & M MEDIVAN 11/1-11/4/2023
4152 1/19/2024 6,182.75 K & M MEDIVAN 11/12-11/18/2023
4152 1/19/2024 2,455.25 K & M MEDIVAN 11/20-11/25/2023
4152 1/19/2024 4,136.00 K & M MEDIVAN 11/26-11/30/2023
4152 1/19/2024 4,644.50 K & M MEDIVAN 11/5-11/11/2023
4152 1/19/2024 5,276.25 K & M MEDIVAN 12/1-12/9/2023
4152 1/19/2024 3,035.00 K & M MEDIVAN 12/10-12/16/2023
4152 1/19/2024 4,010.00 K & M MEDIVAN 12/17-12/23/2023
4152 1/19/2024 1,547.00 K & M MEDIVAN NWR 12/25-12/31/22
4153 1/19/2024 1,501.71 ASTOUND PHONE SERVICE 11.27-12.26.2023
4154 1/19/2024 875.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC January 2024 NWR Computer Support
Service
4155 1/19/2024 54.14 Office Depot Credit Plan NWR/TCTD OFFICE SUPPLIES
4155 /19/2024 25.32 Office Depot Credit Plan CALENDAR 2024
4156 1/19/2024 29.75 Pacific Office Automation DECEMBER 2023 COPIER USAGE
NWR/TCTD
4157 1/19/2024 857.10 GenXsys Solutions, LLC FEB 2024 MANAGED SERVICE FUND
4157 1/19/2024 875.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC FEB 2024 NWR COMPUTER SUPPORT
SERVICE
4157 1/19/2024 478.28 GenXsys Solutions, LLC FEB 2024 SERVER STORAGE VIRUS
PLAN
4159 1/26/2024 248.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR After Hours Service
4160 1/31/2024 5,370.20 AAA RIDE ASSIST 11/1-11/30/2023
4160 1/31/2024 2,936.00 AAA RIDE ASSIST 12/1-12/9/2023
4160 1/31/2024 2,803.85 AAA RIDE ASSIST 12/10-12/16/2023
4160 /31/2024 1,281.30 AAA RIDE ASSIST 12/17-12/31/2023
4161 1/31/2024 9,314.00 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 12/17-12/23/2023
4161 1/31/2024 6,505.00 COLUMBIA MEDICAL 12/25-12/31/2023
4162 1/31/2024 5,777.25 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER 10.2023
4162 1/31/2024 6,054.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER 11.2023
4162 1/31/2024 6,337.50  COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER 12.2023
4163 1/31/2024 5,115.00 DIRECT MEDICAL 10/1-10/7/2023
TRANSPORTATION
4163 1/31/2024 6,237.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 10/15-10/21/2023
TRANSPORTATION
4163 1/31/2024 3,962.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 10/8-10/14/2023
TRANSPORTATION
4163 1/31/2024 3,737.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 11/1-11/4/2023
TRANSPORTATION 18
Date: 3/4/24 0340:16 PM BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT Page; 2




Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register

1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT #8510
From 1/1/2024 Through 1/31/2024

Docume... Document ransaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4163 1/31/2024 2,557.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 11/12-11/18/2023
TRANSPORTATION

4163 1/31/2024 2,892.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 11/19-11/26/2023
TRANSPORTATION

4163 1/31/2024 2,150.00 DIRECT MEDICAL 11/27-11/30/2023
TRANSPORTATION

4163 1/31/2024 2,842.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 11/5-11/11/2023
TRANSPORTATION

4163 1/31/2024 5,027.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 12/1-12/9/2023
TRANSPORTATION

4163 1/31/2024 3,760.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 12/10-12/16/2023
TRANSPORTATION

4163 1/31/2024 4,628.50 DIRECT MEDICAL 12/17-12/23/2023
TRANSPORTATION

4163 1/31/2024 2,586.10 DIRECT MEDICAL 12/25-12/31/2023
TRANSPORTATION

4164 1/31/2024 5,869.20 Ride Connection Bridge 10/1-10/6/2023

4164 /31/2024 5,470.40 Ride Connection Bridge 10/14-10/20/2023

4164 1/31/2024 11,020.90 Ride Connection Bridge 10/21-10/31/2023

4164 1/31/2024 5,916.50 Ride Connection Bridge 10/7-10/13/2023

4165 1/31/2024 202.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT 10.2023

4165 1/31/2024 03.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANS 11.2023

4165 1/31/2024 324.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT 12.2023

4166 1/31/2024 610.60 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT 10.2023

4166 1/31/2024 941.35 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT 11.2023

4166 1/31/2024 531.50 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT 12.2023

4167 1/31/2024 2,400.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. July - Dec 2023 Office Rent

4167 1/31/2024 2,727.65 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. Utilities 4/23-12/23

4168 1/31/2024 81.45 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS JANUARY 2024 Water

ACH 1/15/2024 508.90 Pacific Office Automation POA 1.2024

1.15.2024

Report Total 635,684.90

Date: 3/4/24 03:40:16 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 3

19



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register

1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking #7071
From 1/1/2024 Through 1/31/2024

Docume... Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee

4620 1/8/2024 840.00 INB MECHANICAL, INC.

4621 1/8/2024 1,897.00 METRQO OVERHEAD DOOR, INC.
4622 1/8/2024 1,762.50 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE
4623 1/8/2024 1,825.85 Tillamook PUD

4624 1/19/2024 182.80 City Sanitary Service

4625 1/19/2024 561.27 Marie Mills Center, Inc

4625 1/19/2024 156.54 Marie Mills Center, Inc

4626 1/19/2024 350.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE
4627 1/31/2024 1,946.33 Tillamook PUD

Report Total 9,522.29

Date: 3/4/24 03:41:11 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1011 STER PROP MG

Transaction Description

Building Repairs

Side Gate Repairs

Janitorial Services 12/1-12/30/2023
Admin Electric 11/12-12/12/2023
CARDBOARD RENT/RECYCLE
1.5YD 1XW

DECEMBER 2023 JANITORIAL
ADMIN OFFICE

DECEMBER 2023 JANITORIAL
SUPPLIES ADMIN

OUTSIDE WINDOW CLEANING
Admin Electric 12/12-1/12/24

Page: 1

20



FRED MEYER CARD CHARGES - January 2024

Date Description of Transaction Amount

CARD #4 - CATHY BOND, FINANCE SUPERVISOR

01/04/24|Office Expense - Binder/Cards $ 18.77
01.001.5170.999.00

02/02/24|Operation Expense - Coffee $ 29.99
01.002.5180.999.00

02/02/24|QOperation Expense - GM Anniversary 3 30.96
01.001.5180.999.00

$ 79.72

CARD #6 STEVEN FERRERA, MECHANIC

01/09/24|Operation Expense - Shelving Hardware $ 41.50

01/16/24|Operation Expense - Surge Strip/Office Supplies $ 83.16

01.002.5180.154.00| $ 124.66

Grand Total| $ 204.38

2[i2 [deay

21



Date

01/03/24
01/05/24
01/05/24
01/09/24
01/10/24
01/11/24
01/16/24
01/17/24
01/18/24
01/19/24
01/22/24
01/23/24
01/24/24
01/24/24
01724724

01/11/24
01/19/24

Vendor

Endicia

Adobe inc
Language Line
Amazon Prime
USPs
FieldPrint
Endicia
Amazon Prime
Language Line
Endicia

fron Mountain
Adobe Inc
Smartsign
Language Line
Language Line

Cvent.com
Werner Beef & Brew

1/12/2024 Fred Meyer

APPROVAL

UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 01/24/2024

Description of Transaction

CATHY BOND

NWR Postage

Financial Computer Software
NWR Phone/Interpreter
Operation Expense/W orkbench
Postage

NWR Background Check
Postage Subscription

Amazon Subscription

NWR Phone/interpreter
Postage

Office-Shredder

Admin. Computer Software
Facility Maintenance/ Transit Center Signs
NWR Phone/Interpreter

NWR Phone/Interpreter

BRIAN VITULLI

SDAO Conference

Board Expense/Meal

MIKE REED

Operation Expense/Padlock

Grand Total Due

DATE

ey ”~

P

Amount

$9.95
$29.99
$15.80
$57.16
$50.00
$12.50
$29.99
$14.99
$31.60
$100.00
$181.45
$84.99
$154.85
$31.60
$43.45
$848.32

$230.00
$47.55
$277.55

$11.99
$11.99

$1,137.86

.- /é//j Q/&g /gofpc/-

22



UMPQUA BANK

January 2024 Statement

Mail payment coupon
" | with a check

Payment Options:

No payment is required

UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Elan Financial Services 1-866-552-8855
" . to pay by phone
¢ . to change your address

000042229 01 SP 000638643211980 P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
3600 3RD STSTE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

R T ETEERET LR LT LY L R L T RUTT AU ST T

Page 1of 4
grepes Open Date: 12/27/2023 Closing Date: 01/24/2024 Account: L7790
dﬂ'} Visa® Company Card with Rewards Elan Financial { 1-866-552-8855

Services
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) BUS 30 EN 15
New Balance $3,048.85¢cr| |Activity Summary
Minimum Payment Due Lo $DOQ Previous Balance + $3,221.75
Payment Due Date 02/22/2024 Payments $7,402.99cr
Other Credits $0.00
Reward Points Purchases + $1,137.86
Earned This Statement 1,185 Balance Transfers $0.00
Reward Center Balance 160,756 Advances $0.00
as of 01/23/2024 QinEr Qebils $0.00
Fees Charged $0.00
For details, see your reward
elate, ey 2cs Summany Interest Charged - $5 47CR
New Balance E $3,048.85CR
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $0.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $13,048 85
|Days in Billing Period 29

Pay online at g Pay by phone

1-B66-552-8855

ooty

—
.\\_;... myaccountaccess com
—~== ]

CPN 001469460

Credit Balance

Account Number: 7790

Your account has a credit
balance of $3,048.85.

Please DO NOT SEND a
payment for this amount.

23



UMPQUA BANK

January 2024 Statement 12/27/2023 - 01/24/2024 Page 2 of 4
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Elan Financial Services c 1-866-552-8855

‘Business Rewards Company Card

Rewards Center Activity as of 01/23/2024
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 160,756

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 1,090 1,090
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 95 95
Total Earned 1,185 1,185

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8.00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)

Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

portant Messages

Paying Interest. You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. in order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials, Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full

Your account has a credit balance. We can hold and apply this balance against future purchases and cash

advances, or refund it. If you would like a check mailed to you in the amount of the credit balance, simply
call us and speak {o a representative.

Transactions =~ BONDCATHY

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
R i~ Purchases and Other Debits
01/03 01/02 6736 ENDICIA 800-578-3279 TX $9 95
01/05 01/04 9326 ADOBE *ACROPRO SUBS 408-536-6000 CA $29 99
01/05 01/04 2038 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $15.80
01/09 01/08 0971 AMZN Mkip US*TKOBA7BO1 Amzn com/bill WA $57 18
G110 01/09 1492 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA  888-434-0055 DC $50.00
0111 01/41 7566 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA 31280
01148 01/15 8327 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 TX $29 99
01717 01/16 5509 Amazon Prime*RT2ZS3WZ2 Amzn. com/bil WA $14 99
01/18 01417 3828 LANGUAGE LINE, INC  B00-7526096 CA $31.60
01/19 01/18 4255 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA 888-434-0055 DC $100 C0
01/22 01/21 3402 IRON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA 3181 45
01/23 01/23 0545 ADOBE INC 408-536-6000 CA 384 99
01/24 01/23 6747 SMARTSIGN clovercom NY $154 85
01/24 01/23 9000 LANGUAGE LINE INC  800-7526096 CA 33180

Continued on Next Page

24



UMPQUA BANK

January 2024 Statement 12/27/2023 - 01/24/2024 Page 3 of 4
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Elan Financial Services (: 1-866-552-8855
Transactions  BONDCATWY 10 CreditLimit $2500
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
01/24 01/23 5406 LANGUAGE LINE, INC  800-7526096 CA $43.45
Total for Account 2022 $848.32
Transactions - Sredit Limit §3500
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
e A Purchases and Other Debits i '
01/12 01/11 7092 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK OR $11 99
Total for Account 9595 $11.99
Trancactions || VITULL BRIAN A T Croa L 510000
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
. | Purchases and Other Debits i
01/11 01710 5040 EVENT”® 2024 SDAO ANNUA WWW . CVENT COM VA $230.00
01/19 01/18 2248 TIL*RZ WERNER BEEF&BRE TILLAMOOK OR 347 55
Total for Account 9476 $277.55

Post Trans

Date Date Ref#f Transaction Description Amount Notation
ol M g " Payments and Other Credits : ;
12/28 12/24 0004 PAYMENT THANKYOU $6,818 82¢cr
12/28 12/24 0004 PAYMENT THANKYOU 3516 20cr
12/28 12/24 0004 PAYMENT THANK YOQU 3$67.97cr
e ~ Interest Charged : i
12/29 12/28 INTEREST REVERSAL $0 10cr
12/29 12/28 INTEREST REVERSAL $0.74cr
12/29 12/28 INTEREST REVERSAL $4 83cr
TOTAL INTEREST FOR THIS PERIOD $5.47cr
Total for Account 7790 $7,408.46CR

Total Fees Charged in 2024 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2024 $547CR

Continued on Next Page

25



E UMPQUA BANK

January 2024 Statement 12/27/2023 - 01/24/2024 Page 4 of 4
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469480) Elan Financial Services (: 1-866-552-8855

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.

**APR for current and future transactions

Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subject to Interest Percentage with
Balance Type By Type interest Rate Variable Charge Rate Statement
**BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 17.49%
“*PURCHASES $0.00 $000 YES $0.00 17 49%
*ADVANCES $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 29.24%

(' Phone ? i+ Questions Mail payment coupon ~~.=—. Online
I - with a check e
Voice. 1-866-552-8855 Elan Financial Services Elan Financial Services myaccountaccess.com
TDD: 1-888-352-6455 P.0. Box 6353 P.O. Box 790408
Fax 1-866-807-9053 Fargo, ND 58125-6353 St, Louis, MO 63179-0408
End of Statemnent 26



.

720z Aenuer

souew.loued
8 SOISIELS
suoptado DL

27



gz-uer® pz-uers
ALIDYILNI

SLNNOD dIDNISSVd MVY

3dAL IDIAYIS A9 SAWOD ALA

\28



gz-uerm pz-uerm |

. ~ (3AISNVADO/S1¥VLIIN) i
J1LLNHS Od (dOOT 180d) 92/9 1y (ALID NTODNIT) 7 LY (HDVIE NONNYD) € 1Y Z 1y (dOOTNMOL) L 1Y

oLsz | Lesz

SdWOD dlA
11NOA A9 dIHSAIAIM ALNNOD-NI



~ YOLDINNOD WLSVOD X09 13

—l

£Z-uer = pg-uer =

SdWOD dlA
31NOY AL dIHSYIAIA ALID-Y3LNI




SdWOD dlA
IdAL IDIAYIS A€ dIHSIIAI YVA
e




AVHLINY

ECUErM pg-uen

937100 ALINNWINOD
3344 HLINOA SSVd JOLISIA VLOMN AV AOONVTIIL

NOILD3INNOD 3dly

SdWOO dlA
SINODILVD YIONISSVd

32



¥vam Aud-iewpm Aunod-upm

£¢-03d £2-ANON e 10| Q) £¢-d3S

z0z Kenuer nayy €20z 1snbny

3dAl IDIAY3S AQD dIHSHIAN
dN3d1l HLNOW-XIS




dvae Aud-ewpm Aunod-ulm

L6ZL SLy o

rzoz Aupnupf B €707 Aupnupf
diHSJd3dl SIDIAY3AS TVIOL

c207
1



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT

January 2024

RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE Jan Jan YTD YTD YTD %

2024 2023 FY 23-24 FY 22-23 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 453 790 3,854 6,189 -37.7%
NW Rides 352 623 1,948 3,808 -48.8%
Dial-A-Ride Tota 805 1,413 5,802 9,997 -42.0%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1. Town Loop 3,430 3,476 25,985 24,825 4.7%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 250 258 2,330 1,720 35.5%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 1,770 1,286 15,063 9,567 57.4%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 973 534 8,193 5,474 49.7%
Rt 6: Port of Tillamook Bay Loop 331 542 2,597 2,576 0.8%
Pacific City Free Shuttle 0 0 2,067 2,608 -20.7%
Local Fixed Rt Total 6,754 6,096 56,235 46,770 20.2%
ntercity Service
Rt 5: Portland 475 510 4,994 4,157 20.1%
Rt 60X: Salem 0 740 7,309 5,691 28.4%
Inter City Total 475 1,250 12,303 9,848 24.9%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 7 27 75 105 -28.6%
Special Bus Operations 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Other Services Total 7 27 75 105 -28.6%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 8,041 8,786 74,415 66,720 11.5%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 23-24 | FY 22-23 | Change |
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 4,338 129 40,818 34,260 19.1%
Senior/Disabled 2,387 644 26,607 25,491 4.4%
Child/Youth 508 32 4922 4,361 12.9%
Total 7,233 805 72,348 64,112 12.8%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 23-24 | FY 22-23 | Change
Ride Connection 77 801 637 25 7%
Tillamook Bay Community College 235 1,663 842 97.5%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 30 502 403 24.6%
NW Rides 352 1,948 3,808 -48.8%
Youth Free 703 ' 6,084 N/A N/A
Amtrak 28F 694 611 13.6%

35



Primary Performance Measures Report
thru January 2024

Passengers Cost Cost Farebox
per Hour per Trip per Hour Return %

Dial-A-Ride
Dial-A-Ride 1.7 $ 5441 % 94.05 5.8%
NW Rides 1.2 $ 90.81 § 108.78 60.6%
Total 1.5 $ 66.63 $ 100.26 30.9%
Deviated Route
Rt 1: Town Loop 10.3 $ 9.30 % 96.24 7.2%
Rt 2: Oceanside 1.9 $ 5261 $ 99.37 1.5%
Rt 6: PORT 6.6 $ 16.60 $ 109.45 5.0%
Rt 3: Manzanita 4.1 $ 2823 §$ 14.40 2.9%
Rt 4. Lincoln City 3.3 $ 3712  $ 23.75 2.3%
Total 5.2 $ 21.04 $§ 109.49 3.4%
Intercity
Rt 5: Portland 17 $ 7398 $ 12464 10.9%
Rt 60X. Salem 4.2 $ 3012 $ 127.05 8.1%
Tota 2.6 $ 4792 $ 12553 9.9%
Other Services
Trippers 0.9 $ 10236 $ 91.39 0.3%
SBO #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0.0%
Total 0.9 $ 10235 $ 91.38 0.3%
FY 2023-24 YTD 3.8 $ 2912 $ 11146 10.1%
FY 2022-23YTD 3.2 $ 30.67 $ 97.17 19.5%
Percent Change 20.8% -5.1% 14.7% -48.3%

O:\OPERATIONS\Ridership Tracking\2024 MIS\TCTD MIS Report 2023-24_01.24

36



Tillamook County Transportation District January 2024

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Jan-23 15 49.0% 93.62
Oct-23 1.5 36.9% 90.55
Nov-23 1.5 35.4% 88.23
Dec-23 1.5 31.9% 94.23
Jan-24 1.5 30.9% 108.26
Deviated Fixed Routes
Jan-23 4.8 5.0% 94.96
Oct-23 53 4.1% 96.35
Nov-23 53 4.2% 94.26
Dec-23 5.2 3.9% 101.83
Jan-24 52 3.4% 109.49
Intercity Services
Jan-23 2.3 10.1% 108.52
Oct-23 2.9 12.0% 109.17
Nov-23 2.8 12.0% 106.07
Dec-23 2.7 10.9% 115.34
Jan-24 2.6 9.9% 125.53
Other Services
Jan-23 1.8 1.0% 95.41
Oct-23 1.1 0.2% 82.71
Nov-23 1.1 0.3% 81.80
Dec-23 0.9 0.3% 87.11
Jan-24 0.9 0.3% 91.38

Dial-a-Ride includes County-wide DAR, NW Rides, Veterans Transportation
Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach,
4 Lincoln City, 6 POTB Loop

Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde
Other Services; Trippers, Special Bus Operations




Coordinating Committee In-Person Meeting
March 8, 2024 | 10:00 am—12:00 pm

HYBRID
TCTD 3600 3 Street, Tillamook

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/|/87552290259

Call In: 1 253 215 8782
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259

Agenda
10:00—
10-05a 4 Introductions Cynda Bruce
4 Consent Calendar (Action Item)
10:05— February Meeting Minutes (Attached) Cynda Bruce/All
10:20a Financial Report v
4+ NWOTA Standing Items
10:20— Emissions/Ridership Tracking Sarah Lu Hesth
10:403 Marketing Update
Website Update

10:40- .
11:10a 4 Website Development MAC/AIl
11:10-

10 4 FY 2024-2025 Budget Draft Cathy Bond/All
11:30a
11:30- <4 Decarbonization/Alternatives Fuels Study All
11:45a Application Review
11:45- " i
11:50a Other Business All
11:50a - "
12:00p Member Updates All

Attachments:

February Meeting Minutes
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with
disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at
least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

www.nwcannector.org

T SUSSETEMPIRE
i be TRANSPORTATION
- DISTRIC

TRANSPORTATION

Benﬁ}unty & 33



NWOTA Meeting Minutes
February 16, 2024

Virtual meeting called to order at 10:06am.

Iin Attendance:  Cathy Bond, Cynda Bruce, John Dreeszen, Cody Franz, Sarah Lu Heath, Craig Johnston,
and Arla Miller. Cody Franz a new ODOT Regional Transit Coordinator working within NWOTA.

Consent Calendar: Minutes were reviewed and two amendments were offered,

e Under Web Services Update — 2™ paragraph, 3™ sentence, please revise to read ‘Trillium’s
outstanding invoice was discussed.’

¢ Under Member Updates — | believe it should read ‘...CCR is now offering a Vanpool option..."

The financial report provided by TCTD was also reviewed; it was noted that a bank charge was in the
process of being removed. A motion to approve the consent calendar with recommended changes was
made by Craig Johnston, seconded by John Dreeszen and approved unanimously.

Marketing Update: Transit Happy is providing regular updates. Ad campaigns are underway targeting
riders in the valley. She is working on a social engagement strategy to improve metrics and provides
regular calendars of posts for approval before posting.

Website Update: MAC has successfully duplicated the website and is working through installing their
transit alert product. They expect to complete the transition by the end of February.

FY 2024-2025 Budget Draft: The group heard from Cathy Bond, the Finance Supervisor, for TCTD about
the current and upcoming budgets. Our current FY2023-2024 budget will be reviewed and a
supplemental budget will be presented. TCTD is clarifying bookkeeping practices to separate NWOTA
funds. NWOTA can expect to prepare a draft budget before the May budget committee hearing. The
Board of Directors will review the proposed budget in June.

Train the Trainer Program: The group heard from Cathy Bond regarding TCTD’s ability to accomplish
training in-house. Rules and regulations were discussed as well as tracking and scheduling
methodologies. Individual agencies will work towards staffing certifications and processes that will allow

upgraded licensing training to take place in-house. Testing responsibilities are already shared across the
region.

Decarbonization/Alternative Fuels Study: The group agreed to apply for ODOT 5339 Bus Facility Funds.
The proposed Scope of Work will include an alternative fuels feasibility study for each agency in NWOTA.

Other Business: Arla mentioned that access to the Remix route planner may not be available in time for
2025-2027 planning. ODOT does expect to renew the contract but it’s anticipated there will be a
disruption in availability while finalizing a new contract.

It was also noted that there is a bill proposed in the short session regarding a new commercial vehicle
tax that may affect public transit vehicle purchases.

39



Member Updates:

LCT is working on their budget as well as considering a rebranding of their transit service. They've also
welcomed a new grant writer to the team.

SETD is transitioning from Ecolane to Evolution. They have recently received an FTA reimbursement. The
District will be reviewing accessibility issues and opportunities.

CCR is working on their budget and remarked that Dial A Ride is going very well.

TCTD will be taking their collective bargaining agreement to the board shortly for approval. The transit
center remodel is moving along and is anticipated to open in April.

The meeting was adjourned at 12:10pm.

40



DATE:
TO:
FROM:

Tillamook County Transportation District

“Connecting the community through sustainable transit services”

March 20, 2024
TCTD Board of Directors

Brian Vitulli, General Manager

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER REPORT

Administration/Coordination

Board of Directors: Please forward potential candidates for Budget Committee to the GM.
Financial auditors on site February 21 through 23.

Attended NWACT Transportation Grants Workshop on February 22.

Met with representative from Nestucca School District on February 23 to discuss feasibility of
providing transportation services for a new CTE facility planned to open in Beaver in spring
2025.

Issued press release to media announcing approval of new collective bargaining agreement.
Covered by Headlight Herald, Tillamook Pioneer, Mass Transit Magazine, North Coast Citizen,
BNN, and ATU, Local 757. (See press release on page 3.)

Participating in the Tillamook Education Consortium countywide spring exploratory sessions
on March 13, 20, and April 3. Will present to students, information on the Tillamook County
Transportation District — who we are, what we do, how we’re governed and funded, and who
and where we serve. Will also discuss employment opportunities at the District.

Attended the Tillamook Coast Visitor Association Tourism Awards Banquet on February 23.
Attended the ODOT Public Transportation Advisory Committee (PTAC) meeting on March 4.
Attended the OTA Board meeting on March 5.

With Finance Supervisor Bond, attended Oregon Department of Revenue Basic Local Budget
Law training in Albany, OR, on March 6.

District staff participated in a Worksource Oregon hiring event held at the Tillamook County
Community College on March 6 from 10:00 AM to 2:00 PM. (Flyer shown on page 3.)
NWOTA meeting on March 8.

Attended the PC | Woods Parking Advisory Committee meeting on March 12.

Attended the SDAO 2024 Website Best Practices Webinar on March 13.

On March 20, provided an informational presentation to the Kiwanis Club explaining what the
District does and who it serves.

Planning & Development

3600 THIRD ST. STE A, TILLAMOOK OR 97141 ¢ (5803) 8158283 * FAX (B03) 815-8005

WWW. TILLAMOOKBUS.COM

41



Page |2

Met with the Transportation Advisory Committee, stakeholders, and Kittelson & Associates,
Inc. on March 4 to review the DRAFT Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services
Transportation Plan (known as our CTP), solicit feedback, and to seek TAC recommendation
for approval to the Board. The TAC recommended approval and the Board will consider
approval at their March 20" meeting. (Addressed as Agenda Item 15.)

Provided Tillamook County Chief of Staff with several PC Shuttle costing and service scenarios
to consider during budget development.

On March 12, met with Tillamook County Chief of Staff and South County Destination
Manager to discuss PC Shuttle details for 2024 season.

Grant Funding

Submitted grant application With NWOTA partners on January 31, met with staff from Center
for Transportation and the Environment (CTE) to discuss our intention to develop a zero-
emission vehicle feasibility study that identifies and analyzes agency needs, evaluates current
and future ZEV technologies and available vehicles, identifies potential funding sources, and
recommends (if feasible) a pathway for the alliance to transition toward zero emission
operations.

On February 13, attended the NREL (National Renewable Energy Lab) Electric Transit User
Group meeting to discuss EV (electric vehicle) charging and hydrogen refueling infrastructure.
ODOT recently released an advanced notice of funding for the 2024-2026 Mid-Cycle

Discretionary Grant Solicitation. Funding is available for capital, operations, and planning. The
grant agreement period is from October 1, 2024, to June 30, 2026, for most awards. The
solicitation opened on January 4, 2024, and the application deadline is March 12, 2024.

Facility/Property Management

Renovations to TCTD Transit Center are continuing. Administration building renovations
commenced on November 13 on the Dispatch and breakroom areas.
o Attending bi-monthly project management meetings with contractor and PM
consultant.
o Substantial completion of all tasks scheduled for March 1, 2024.

Operations/Vehicle Maintenance

With full ratification of the new collective bargaining agreement, the Operations
Superintendent is rolling out a series of Operation Bulletins meant to inform Operations
personnel of some of the changes to the CBA, and intended to remind them of proper
practices, procedures, and expectations that are to be adhered to at all times in carrying out
the mission of the District.

3600 THIRD ST. STE A, TILLAMOOK OR 97141 + (503) 815-8283 * FAX (503) 8152834
WWW . TILLAMOOKBLUS.COM

42



Page |3

Tillamocok County Transportation District

“Connecting the community through sustainable transit services”

PRESS RELEASE

February 27, 2024

Media Contact:

Brian Vitulli, General Manager
503-842-3115
bvitulli@tillamookbus.com

Tillamook County Transportation District and ATU Local 757 Agree to New Five-Year
Collective Bargaining Agreement

The Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors unanimously approved the
new contract at its February 21 meeting. “We are pleased to have an agreement with union
leadership that is fair to our employees and recognizes their value to the community,” said
District Board Chair Mary Johnson.

ATU Local 757 and the Tillamook County Transportation District are proud to announce the
successful ratification of a five (5) year contract for the ATU members in Tillamook, OR. “ATU
members in Tillamook love their community and have a big heart for what they do. The
District and the union are proud to work together to keep the community moving,” said Shirley
Block, President, ATU Local 757.

The new contract — which covers drivers, dispatchers, and vehicle maintenance employees -
includes wage increases for all ATU members, updated language responsive to Oregon's
anti-discrimination laws, the addition of Juneteenth as a holiday, increased bereavement
leave, and much more. Both the District and the union came to the negotiating table with
good ideas about how to sclve problems and support ATU members.

“The union and the District are hopeful that the strong collective bargaining agreement,
increased wages, and community-focused mission will increase employee retention levels
and attract talented applicants to the District,” said Tillamook County Transportation District
General Manager, Brian Vitulli.

For more information, please contact Brian Vitulli at bvitulli@tillamookbus.com.

3600 THIRD ST. STE A, TILLAMOOK OR 97141 « (503) 815-8283 * Fax (503) 8152834
WWW.TILLAMOOKBUS.COM

3600 THIRD ST. STE A, TILLAMOOK OR 97141 ¢ (503) 8158283« Fax (503) 8152834
WWW . TILLAMOOKBUS.COM

43



Regular Meeting 2/21/2024
Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Wednesday, February 21, 2024 — 6:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors
Mary Johnson, Board Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Director
Jim Heffernan, Director
Marni Johnston, Treasurer
Jonathan Bean, Secretary
Thomas Fiorelli, Director

Absent
TCTD Board of Directors
Linda Adler, Vice Chair

TCTD Staff

Brian Vitulli, General Manager

Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor/Interim Board Clerk
Jules Deputy, Brokerage Manager

Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent - virtually

Guest

Arla Miller, ODOT Public Transportation Division, Regional Transit Coordinator
John Cline, Citizen

Barbara Aufdermauer, Citizen

Sharon Shreve, Citizen

Julie Chick, Citizen (unable to connect to meeting, emailed attached statement
to be noted in the minutes)

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None.
5. Public & Guest Comments:

Barbara and Sharon expressed concerns regarding the closing of the Tillamook
dialysis center and the transportation needs of those patients not covered under OHP
or Medicaid.

6. Executive Session: 6:11pm -6:47pm

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1

44



Regular Meeting 2212024
Convened under ORS 192.660(2)(d) to discuss labor negotiations, all guests and
media excluded, attended by all present Board members as well as GM Vitulli, OS
Reed, FS Bond and BM Deputy.

As a result of executive session, there will be a motion later in the Agenda.

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
7. Financial Report: FS Bond December 2023 included in Board packet pages 1-23.

Dir. Fiorelli asked why we didn’t receive STIF discretionary funds. FS Bond explained
that the grant application was incomplete, so those funds weren’'t awarded. However,
the 5311 grant was able to support the loss of those discretionary funds.

8. Service Measure Performance Report: OS Reed provided service statistics and
performance measures for the month of December 2023 and Quarterly report (Oct-
Dec 2023) included in Board packet pages 24-45.

Chair Johnson stated there would be no need to report 60x/70x services in the future.
Dir. Fiorelli agrees. Dir. Fiorelli asked how trips are counted. OS Reed explained trips
are counted as passengers board the services.

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Vitulli provided the following updates
included in Board packet pages 46-47.

Chair Johnson asked about the comment in the minutes regarding Trillium proposal.
The minutes have been corrected should state “invoice,” not “proposal.”

10.NW Rides Brokerage: BM Deputy provided the following updates:
a. Announced Steele Fleischer is now the new Brokerage Coordinator.
b. Final 2023 statistics: Members transported - 49,097, trips completed - 53,085;
hours driven - 58,600; miles driven - 10,771,605.

11.General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in
Board packet pages 48-54 (see GM Report in packet for details):

. Administration/Coordination

Planning Development

Grant Funding

Facility/Property Development

Operations and Vehicle Maintenance

©oooow

GM Vitulli shared the post on Facebook announcing that TCTD's Employee of the Year
is Jeremy Bellante and about services provided for the Homeless Connect event that was
held on 1/24/2024.

Chair Johnson asked if there is a petition to sign regarding SB 1553-1 to show support.
Dir. Fiorelli states that support can be provided by testimony at the Senate hearing. He
asked if it would benefit the District for him to testify. If so, he will submit written testimony.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed n quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words

2

45



Regular Meeting 2°21.2024
Chair Johnson asked if GM Vitulli has received any response regarding the future budget

and services of the PC Shuttle. GM Vitulli has not received any response.
12.Miscellaneous: None.

CONSENT CALENDAR

13.Motion to Approve the Minutes of January 17, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
14.Motion to Approve December 2023 Financial Statement

15. Motion to Approve TAC Committee Appointment

Motion by Dir. Hanenkrat to approve Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Dir. Bean.
Motion Passed

By Directors Hanenkrat, Bean

Fiorelli, Johnston, and Heffernan

and Board Chair Johnson

Director Adler Absent.

ACTION ITEMS

16.Resolution 24-03 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute ODOT 5311 Grant

Agreement No. 35645.

GM Vitulli explained the grant. FS Bond pointed out page 74 section showing the
project description covers human services and could help transport individuals
impacted by the closure of the local dialysis center in Tillamook.

Motion by Dir. Fiorelli to approve Resolution 24-03 Authorizing the General Manager
to Execute ODOT 5311 Grant Agreement No. 35645. Motion Seconded by Dir. Bean.
Motion Passed

By Directors Hanenkrat, Bean

Fiorelli, Johnston, and Heffernan

and Board Chair Johnson.

Director Adler absent.

17.Resolution 24-04 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute TCTD/ATU Collective

Bargaining Agreement for the period 2023-2028.

GM Vitulli explained the resolution and confirmed that the ATU ratified the proposed
CBA on February 10, 2024.

Motion by Dir. Bean to approve Resolution 24-04 Authorizing the General Manager

to Execute TCTD/ATU Collective Bargaining Agreement for the period 2023-2028.
Motion Seconded by Dir. Johnston.

Motion Passed

By Directors Hanenkrat, Bean

Fiorelli, Johnston, and Heffernan

and Board Chair Johnson.

Director Adler absent.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize siatements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

3

46



Regular Meeting 22172024
18.Resolution 24-05 In the Matter of Declaring and Disposing of Surplus Vehicles

Dir. Fiorelli asked how we determine the useful life of a vehicle. GM Vitulli explained
there is an FTA/ODOT schedule for each class of vehicle. The District will continue
to use the vehicles until they are ready to be disposed of or replacement vehicles are
delivered.

Motion by Dir. Fiorelli to approve Resolution 24-05 In the Matter of Declaring and
Disposing of Surplus Vehicles. Motion Seconded by Dir. Bean.

Motion Passed

By Directors Hanenkrat, Bean

Fiorelli, Johnston, and Heffernan

and Board Chair Johnson.

19.Resolution 24-06 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Professional
Services Contract with Madison Ave. Collective for NWOTA Website Management

GM Vitulli explained the PSA. As the fiscal agent, the TCTD Board of Directors would
approve the contract. This will cover hosting of the NWOTA NW Connector website
domain. This cost includes the transition from Trillilum to Madison Ave. Collective.
Chair Johnson asked if the partners are paying equally. FS Bond confirmed it would
be covered in the partnership fees under the terms of the NWOTA contract. Dir. Fiorelli
asked if the domain would be locked-in, so the website domain is not lost. GM Vitulli
confirmed the domain would be locked-in for NWOTA.

Motion by Dir. Bean to approve Resolution 24-06 Authorizing the General Manager

to Execute a Professional Services Contract with Madison Ave. Collective for NWOTA
Website Management. Motion Seconded by Dir. Heffernan.

Motion Passed

By Directors Hanenkrat, Bean

Fiorelli, Johnston, and Heffernan

and Board Chair Johnson.

Director Adler absent.

DISCUSSION ITEMS
20. Staff Comments/Concerns:

General Manager Vitulli: Thanked the Board for their support. He celebrated one year
on February 6. It has really helped his transition! Appreciates your leadership and
willingness to help get the CBA passed. Thanked staff as well for their support over
the last year. Our great staff is part of the success for the District.

Operations Superintendent Reed: The GM came into the District during a hard
transition. To have someone like Brian has been amazing and | thank you for hiring
him. As staff, we pour our heart into this job and he's a great addition.

These muinutes contain materials which paraphrase and, or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

4

47



2.

Regular Meeting 2/21:2024
Financial Supervisor Bond: Agreed with OS Reed that Brian came into the District at
a vulnerable and difficult time. He has done an amazing job of picking us up and
moving us forward. Thanked the Board for doing the hard work and getting us a great
GM.

Brokerage Manager Deputy: Thanked Arla for all the support. Thanked John Cline for
all he does for District and NW Rides. Thanked the guests for coming in and sharing
their story regarding the closing of the dialysis center. Thanked Brian for not running
from the building. It's been a great past year.

Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:

Dir. Fiorelli: Thanks to staff for everything you have done with the CBA, the community
will benefit. Riding and enjoying Route 3, talking with drivers and passengers. The
passengers are happy and don’t seem to have any unmet needs at the moment. Will
ride into the District and will come visit twice a month. Will be attending the upcoming
Oregon Active Transportation Summit. He said the summit is very interesting and he
looks forward to attending. He encourages others to attend.

Dir. Heffernan: Swells with pride to be part of the District. It's a wonderful thing that
the staff, Board, and drivers do for the community.

Dir. Bean: Good news from this month’s Board meeting. Thanked the guests for
sharing their stories and hopes the District can help them with their dialysis needs.

Dir. Adler: Absent.

Dir. Hanenkrat: Thanks to staff, everyone does a great job.

Dir. Johnston: Happy that the CBA is completed. Told the guests that their dialysis
needs are on a lot of people’s radars and hopes it gets the attention it needs. Bless

them and good luck.

Chair Johnson: Congratulations on getting the CBA done. Thanks to Arla for
everything she does for us.

Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 8:03pm.

These minutes approved this 20" day of March 2024.

ATTEST:
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager
These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

5

48



Dear Tillamook County Transportation Board and elected officials to
my son and me.
| am a parent

And the Sammy’s Place/COAAST Network
About the Human Service Transportation Plan
3 minutes of time.

Intro Blake,

Want to recognize some of the Outstanding things we’ve
experienced, drivers, working on storm responses, and some
families getting exactly what they need for twenty years!

Now that you are an adult living in TC, what are some things you
want to do?

1. Do things in the community
2. Make more friends

3. Find a place to live with roommates

Hopeful Outcome:

1. To revisit the accessibility policy from 2015 to include
accessibility to mean including people we serve, including
ppl experiencing disabilities in the work, the plan
development, the implementation, the decisions.

Attachment to Minutes of 2/21/2024 1
Public Comment from Julie Chick

49



2. To encourage your work to authentically hear from those in the
human services system to create the plan, that Blake with my
support, tonight.

Example: Medicaid dollars for transportation ‘support’???

The Human Services Plan was primarily directed at the providers
and professionals, which is great. Our work at Sammy’s Place
through COAAST Network is: Please do not forget the most
important voices, those using and receiving those human services
that need transportation. Blake, with my support, is that voice
tonight. We have been in the DD service system for more than 19
years and as an adult, transportation will be key!

We would like to help educate what that means, how it looks, and
better yet, how it could look, someday!

Thank you so much for doing this incredibly important work and our
elected officials we appreciate when someone stops to hear us.

| had planned to attend via zoom but no provided links worked
and so | could not access your public board meeting.

Attachment to Minutes of 2/21/2024 2
Public Comment from Julie Chick 50



Respectfully submitted and wish it were in person during public
comments,

Julie chick
Nehalem

503-739-2240

Attachment to Minutes of 2/21/2024 3
Public Comment from Julie Chick

51



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Approving the TCTD )
Coordinated Public Transit-Human )
Services Transportation Plan ) RESOLUTION NO. 24-07

WHEREAS, The Tillamook County Transportation District Transportation Advisory

Committee (“Committee”) completed its planning process at their March 4, 2024 meeting;
and

WHEREAS, At their March 4, 2024 meeting, the Committee unanimously voted to
recommend that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors (“Board”)
adopt the March 2024 Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan
(the “Plan”) incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, This Plan is required by the Federal Transportation Administration
and the Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”) to guide how the District uses
its Section 5310 and Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund monies; and

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Plan, and finds it in the best interest of
the District to adopt it.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Plan is adopted and the General Manager is authorized to take any
necessary steps to formally approve the Plan.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of March 2024.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager

52



™
o

SALVIDOSSY B : IO
NOST3LLIM . ¥20¢ w0C YOIOW
UlleaW slojoaliq JO pinog

upjd uoypbpodsuni]

SIIAISS UDWINH PajpuIpIoo) Jouysig uoyppodsuni) AjunoD) Yoowbjjil




54

sjooloud Aluoud-ybiy e

sOIBaI0US 41D -

S|00S) |08l0Id

sbuipul4 yonaiinQ
solydoipbouag AlUNOD JOOWD||I]
MBIANIBAQ J0d8lold -




55

soIBa10U)S ZILOU]

SpasauU [swun AlIllUBSP| e

SODIAISS Ul SADD AJlUSP|
SODIAIBS JO UOIDDIANP SZIWIUIW e

SRR AR we
...r....,i.lri..ldr. |
-l...l.

"'SODIAISS UOolpIodsuUDl]

Dllgnd uo puadap oym sisylo pupo ‘Adusioljoid ysiiBug paliwil Ylim
SIONPIAIPUI ‘SSUIODUI JOMO| Y}IM SIONPIAIPUL ‘Ojdoad BUNOA ‘sIoluas
‘sallIgosIp Ym ajdoad Joj spasu uoliplodsunll 211gnd Ajiusp|

M3IAIBAQ }odloud




2024

2023

2022

yoIipw — Aipnupf |
SUOIDIUSSaId |OUld — /

AIDNUD[ — ISQWSAON |
UD|d UoHDHOdSUDI] S9DIAI8S UDWNH Palbulpioo) paibpdn —9

12qwasaq - 19qod0 |
uD|d Uolpluswa|duw) aiodald ‘seibalbiS ‘spaaN uolpuodsuni] AJllusp| — G

jnoybnouyy | YooaUNO Jiand — ¥
Aow | SUOIIDPUSUILLODSY UD|d Joulio4 JO UOHDNIDAT — €
Abow - yoiow | suoljipuoD bulisixg — g
jnoybnouyy | juswabpuby puo uolpiiu| josloid — |

i
>33

©
()

souUDJIaWI|

PUD SYSO|




%8°LE
%y'8lL
%5°LT
%8°LT
%S°LS
%6’ LY
%0°SL
B1TI
%9°LS
%6'6Y
%681
%€°0C
%9°€€
%69
%0'SS
%L’y
%0'LT
%081
%6ve
%L1

%161
%8'YT
yaadl
%0°EE
%EL
%S'€T
%00
%1'€T
%0°0
%8'€
%L1
%9°Cl
%E'6
%00
%E LI
%00
%0°ST
%¥0C
%161
%0°l¢c

%l L1
%8'8C
BlYL
%9°¢Cl
%Yl
%EEL
%CCl
%0°0C
%9V
%8'8
%9°L1
%L VE
%LEL
%S°ST
%6'8
%C L1
%581
%681
%L61
%E'8C

viv
yoC's
2l
60171
99¢€
768
G0C
744
L6l
€09
v/iE
£0¢
0e8
£9¢
Gel
€91
yic'l
68¢°1
06€°22
95CLECY

o7

9}0}s BY} UDY} 1BYBIY
91D §[|9D POP|Og/PaPLYS

solydoibowa




SUICH (0 PBYNIOM B

SBINUIN 4€-0C =

SDLNUIN SIOW 10 04 =

SOINUIW 62-0T =

S2LNUIW 468-09 = SRYNUIW 45-0F »
SOINUIN 41-0| » S34NUIKY O] UDY} §587

\%0E6C |\ . 2068
T / b %0LS
.| .
%09°'G o007 B8

Sowil] [9ADI] SN0

818°29%

G68'67$

%Y C9 881°19¢€°E

050¢ 0j4074

(Po1s0D8104 pUD PaPIODaY) uoPINdOd AUNOD) YOOUIDI|i|

000'se

58

solydoibowaq



uob3aIQ ‘AjuncD yoownjL
dnoig 3o0jg Ag uoypindod Do} 3y} Jo abBDUSDIAY D SD SI0IUSS
¥ 2nBi4

prisoanic] a6po asoy 1D ujooury
puwn
s80eid pajeuliiseg
*SNSUBY PUE SONID HH HO3 5510y
"M pueig

%GE UBLY @10p l
wse-oc
woe-cz S

E B
%5202 | ]
%02 uey; ssa7 ,,ﬁvi,i,,

uone|ndod Jolueg

e ey oty fiamy

uobalQ ‘AjunoD yoownljif
dnous »o0)g Aq uolpindog |pjo] au} Jo 96DJUDDIDG D SO YNOA
€ 2inBig

] : abpo) asoy Ko uesup)
purig
sadelg _uﬂ.m—..mmmwa
~SNSUBY PUE SBNID

%Ppe UBYL BIOW -
w20z [

UIMOY 58|
woz-o N AsaN

o
%91-2t
opZ) UBY) SSaT |

MHUOd gou0y
M Uk

uone|ndog YyInox

Aped

o1 sttt o

59



o
(o]

salousbo ol|gnd |0207 «

suolPZIUDBIO PasSDg-YLo « m\%m\/s_Dm
sdNoIb ADDDOAPY
soouUsbo 82IAIBS UDWINY [1JOId-UON ¢ ”m@C_UC_H_
sosuodsalg| -
019 'OAISS >®£ 9S0y] JO LOO@.:.DO

Spasau uolbuodsupl) 1Sa10aib ayl ‘eAIas Ady|
OUM [NOJD SISPIACIA 9DIAISS |0DO| JO ASAINS




61

sjuspuodsay 0 %
%0/ %09 %05 %0y %0¢E %0¢C %01 %0

jusuwiypal] joyody/Bnig

Bupjung
BUYlo

SIDDPIYD
SJUBAS ALUNUIWIOD
ﬁcmEE_OQQO unoo
uolnalosy

&cmEE_OQQo 82IN0S HIOM m._- _ D mm M

uoDINP3
JuDq pood|

ABAINS

_ SOOIAISS JOIUSS/I9P
Buulply gor

LOUDHIGDYS] [DUOHDIOA
| Buiddoys A1g0019 :

sjusudjuioddo ad1AIaSs [DIDOS

sjuswijuioddo [pjusp/ooIpaw
juswifolduig

2Spoau uolipliodsunuy
1S81pallb 8yl 8ADY SIUSIID INOA OP SI9UM




62

S|USpuUCday 1O IBAQUINN
4 Ot 8 9 4 C 0
S921ASP AljIqow o) sAbmypd dois sNg SjqIsSe00DU|
JISUDIL 85N 0} MmOy BUIpUDISISPUN JO YO0 s
BuloApl} uaym s1sAIB2I0D/SUCIUDAWOD PN pErrr
SUOIIDUISEP PUD SBDUSPISSI Of 850]D JOU SAO)S sNY memeem

S9DIAISS [DI1o8ds pup jsunlipiod 0] AlqiBie Jouls s —— —

SUODAIDSDI B5UOdsal pUDWSP Bupbw ANOIPIA e

BUYlo “|[|| ‘ﬂ m._,_ D mm m

SDIAISS PUSYOOM ON s

S3[DIYSA S|QISSOOTIO {UDIDUINSU] e

sasodind duy} 9|qiBI|e PaJoUSeY mmm s R

Jisunip AQ 8|qIsseooDuUl sAdu) SUN0I |DD0T T = i

sowll} Hsupiy BUO| AJOAISSOOXT s —_——

$5900D SjUSASId 553IPPD jJusupwulad JO YO0 resmmmmmEmETTs — —

SODIAISS UOIDHOASUDI| S|QDPIOHDUN memsss s

2920} SJUSBIID INOA [Pyl
sebua||oyD uolpLIOdsUDIL UIDUI 8U} 810 JDUM



L1

(UADM SIBUDIW) JIVD ¢

(sioquinyD
SIWIDI) UCHDHIODYSY |OUOIDDOA SHA ¢
(UOSUDMS D1F) YlDBH ISHUBAPY
(AomojioH poyD) ds AS|IPA PODNISEN ¢
(UoogquajjoH |a1uPQ) s8DIASS IXD| DYIDDd ¢
(]9zlus M DIIN[) YuDg POO4 Uobali)  «
(U910 APUID) JBjUSD S|IIW BUDW ¢

:SUOIIDZIUDDIO SNOUDA $SOIDD a|doad
JUSISLIP UBASS POMBIAISIUI OM 4

SMBIAIS|U
:sbuipuil
yonaino

™
(o]




64

SP22U POSO3IDU

JUSWIBSA|OAUI JIBPJOYDH0IS -
s|IoNPIAIpUI Buuamodwiy -

PUPWISP PESOBIOU SADMDSMD |
MSIAIS|U|

SIBULIDA YlIM UOIDIOQD|[0D)
uoljopodsupnd; 21gnd ylim sebusjoyn -
SODIAIDS [DILUSSSS O] SS800Y >®v_
SODIAISS UOLDIOdSUDI] PaZIIONPIAIDU
:sobus||pyd pub spasu
UOIL0IOdSUDI] UOWIWOD [DISASS S19M BI8Y]




€l

SDIAIBS
a|gpIel eplacid
Ol 8|qp 89 0} }jpis
UID}al PUD [INID3Y

{l poBU Oym
s|doad 1o} suoldo
uolppodsupi}
S|gPPIoHD
13}JO PUD §|9A3)|
92|AJISS UIDISNS
0} $82INn0s Buipuny
S[|dPis Hess

silaquiaw

195N [|o AJUNWILLIOD
siouppd |jpuoibal O} 9|qISSI2D PUD I0 JO sp@au ay]
PUD |J0D0] YlIM a|goJinbs aip |DY) Jo8W O] 82IAISS
sdIysuO |21 MOIO SODIAIDS OPIACIY paAoidwl 8PIACId

&, Yl

Yol
(o]

S|005) UD|d




66

saibaplis Aluoud-ybiy so palluspl usag aApRY ploq u! saibaouls

'SUOIIDDO| JusWAO|dWS puD [DIUSPISSI

JO2UU0D S8 1DU} SODIAISS UolIPHOdSUDL 9pIAcId Of sallUNUIOAdO MBIASY e
"9DIAISS JIBYY PlINgal ABY) SD YDdDag UouubnD Ul SI9Ssunl) paull)

UIDJUIDW O} JDUISIC UoDLIOASUDI| 24dWF JasUnS YLM UoUDUIPIOOD 2AcIdW| «
*SODIAIDS

Buisn uo 2lIgnd sy} 8§PoNPS 0} $|00} PUD swIBoId Buluiny [8ADI) AO[2ASJ «
IB1US D sudzilD

JOIUSS BY| PUD SBIN0I PBXIL/I181USD JISUDI} 8U} Udamlaq A}lIgIssaD00D sAoIdW| «
SOUIQDSIP YLm aidoad pub SIOIUSS I0) SapU pazIpIsgns 18)J0

0} siap|aoid (JWIN]} uolppodsunly |DDIpsWw Aduablaula-uou YlIm |DDIIUOD) e
'sodAr duy 1ayio pup ‘Buiddoys

‘IooIpsw ‘JuswAojdws Buipnoul ‘se2IAIBS JO SedAl ||D o) ALUNWWIOD i)

Pa|qpSIP-A|IDIUSWAOIBASD PUD -A[IDNIDS||S1UI BYJ Ul 8S0Y] 10} 8DIAISS 9A0IdW| o mm_ @m._.o\_._.m C O_&

‘paalss Buleg » _
2ID suolp|ndod ay} DY} SINSUS 04 AUNOD joowpl|l] tnoybBnoiyl suolipjndod

spasu |p1Dads BUIAISS $S1L|IDD]) JDBU SSDIAISS B1N0I PBXI) PBIDIASP IOJIUOW e

"SOIIIIDD) [DDIPSW PUD S8DIAISS |DIDOS PUNOID SDSID O) SS922D SACIAW] o
SUOIO3ULIOD

a|lL [SD|/isily o|gIxal} oplacid 0} sjojid 81N0old paxy paibiAsp juswa|du] «
(949 ‘'sadA} ao1Al18S 13Y}0 3}DPOLLLLIOIDD

0} sapIy MN pupdxa ‘AjljIqD[IDAD 3sD31oul) sjuswaAoiduwil apIy-y-|DIQ DWW »
*'SUOIJDD0] SIIIAISS |[DIDOS O} SIDIAISS Pl

-D-|DIP PUD ‘S3}N0I1 PIXI) P3IDIASP ‘S3JN0I1 POXY UIIMJI( SUOIIIUUOD aAoIdWl] «
"Abg oownDj|i} jo
Hod ayj pup ‘Ajunod yinos ‘Ajunod YpoN o} sajnol uo Buisnooy ‘sduj puardsam

pup ‘BuiusAd ‘ADp-pil 310W SpPN|OUl O} IDIAISS SN N0 paxij pupdxy «

PSIPUIPIO0D

¥ @B6Dd diD



67

| _ SUOHO0} jusLUACIiLS pUC

MO 5
L @ _ il | [PRUBPISSS JOBULOD §55q (O §30IAISS UOIDHOTSUDI, SPIK0Id O} saltunuoddo mamay
- - = 3 - == —— ="
“BOIAIRS JAY} PIING R ABYY SO YODSg UOUUDT) LIt 51245UI04)
MO
i § Patly UIDLISUL Of JOUssi(] UORPHOTSUTS] SidUiT 185UNS YiiM UODUIDI00D aacidiu]
“wnipayy e | | ssomies Buisn uo oiGnd sy aj0oNPS Of 5100} PUD SWDIBCID BUILIDS |8AD) COjaAS(
winipayy @ 1 4614 ﬁl. r _ “SSLHIOD] [OIIPBW PUD SSOIMSS [CI508 PUNOID SOSID Of $§5000 oAk
| o S= e Baoy o
wmpayw O | [
SUSZYIT) IOKIBS SLY DUD $SEN0) PEXUIDIUSD IS0 DY) LSSMIS ALRqISS200D anciduy)
= i s i i w = “SONTOSP Ui 2j0oad pUD SI01USS 10 59DH PATIDISANS
wmMpaw O
3 J2HO Of LEPIK0IC {IYWIN} UOHRPOTSUDL [O0IP3LU ADUSBIBLLIS-UQU i JODHL0T)
— = | = ! S = i == ===
| | “sadAl dut sayio : i
winpaw C | puc ‘Buiddoys ‘[0DiEaLL JusSlUAS|dLIS BUIRA|SUI 'SR0IAIDS JO SedAL |0 40 AHUNLULLOD mm _ m-—- OL.—- m C O _ l
_ PI[QCSIP-AOIUBLICC[SASD PUD -A|CNIOS)SluUl 94} UL S50UL JO) 801AISS SACIIW) e o :
—— = ‘pass BuISg 840 SUOYOINGOS Syl JOU; 24NsUS Of AlUNGT YOOWDI JnoyBnoy) m O C— \—OO
TR o s P tagy 4o Ui §ou; L AUNOD L noyBnaiy U ._. =
. i

- suciipjndod spaau |oivads BulASS SSIHIIOC JOSU SETIAISS 81101 DXy PJOIASD JOIUCIHY

waipay ® ybiy _ “SUCHDRULOD SjiLs 150|/J5 SIGIKa] @pIAoid O3 s1opd 93n0s Paxiy Pejonap jusialdil]
“ybiy ® _ 468 JTEaE - “S20IAJSS PLDAXE PUD SACIOLL| AIGDIOAC 2508100 -SPR7I0I]
_ = _ 3 “SUOHDOO| §801AIES [DIDOS Of SHTNIDS |
46 ® _ 461k _ ‘ _ i
| _ _ _ BPL-D-|DID PUD 'SSINCI POXY PRIDIASH 'S8IN0J BAXY LSAMEE] SUOHOSUUOD SAGdw]
3 _ "ADg ACOLUDIE] IO 104 BU} PUD ‘A{UNGT UpNOG “AJUNOT) YHON Of S31N04 US BUISNo0)
YbIH _ @ YSIH | s | = .

‘Sl pUSYSSM PUD "SUIUSAS ADP-PILL DI0LU SEN|TU] QF SMAISS SNG 81A0a paxy puodxy

s21B3ypis 90iA15S UoybLodstnag

{oW spaan uolynjuawsapdug ABajois

/parsas sdnoisy 30 Aynowg




68

so1b6ajoi)s Ajuoud-ybiy so payiuspl usag sApY ploq Ul sa16a10.1iS

"ADMDND0Y YBNnouy} € ajnoy Buojo
sdoys Bo|} palaAu0D oyl 1o ajod pub ubis dojs sng O SPIACI «
"0]8 ‘BpIsuns2Q
‘DIDPIBSAOID D Paadspoos) spnduUl PINOD asay|
"J18)|BYys D pasau Abw uolipjndod ou1oads B aleym seop|d 1o
1O sBuUIpIDOog JO siaquinu aB.0D| Y}IM SUOILDIS J0 SIS}|SUS SPIAOI] e
'sdoys sNQg 1D saydUSg PUD ‘SUOKDBIIP SPL O} MOY ‘UOILDUIIOJUI
aIp} ‘(sa4nol paipIAsp Buoib Ajpioadss) aBpubis 10w ppY
‘paspbydind

9q o} (¥vQ 10} sasnq [|DWS IO SUDA-IUIW ‘SDDIAISS B}N0I PaXY mm_om._.c.._._.w U C_n_
loj pazis-wnipaw "6:3) s3]21YaA Jo sadA} ay} ssaippb pjnoys
up|d |93} 3yl "Yimoib 331AI9S 3)PPOWWOIID 0} uoisundxa
}o3|) a|qissod sp [|9m sD ‘Syi] |nJOsSN 1ISY} JO pua ay} Yopal
A3y} sp sasnq Buysixa jo a|npaysds juswaopjdal b apal) -
‘'suoljpjndod
spaau [p1oads Buowp diysiapll 96pINOOUS 0} SISYDNOA
lo/pup swpiboid Apisqns 9ipj pSONPSI1 OUDYUS O} SNUPUOD .

03]DUIPI00D

ainonsou|

Zr=1y 9bod d1D




69

T ﬂ A . | | *ADMDYD0Y
f ubnoiyy ¢ aynoy Buoip sdoys By papleauoD syl jo sjod pun ubis doys sng © apincid
AL [E—— o o = 318 ‘BPSUDE0Q BOPIBADD
wnipsw o “Ubd paadspoos apnioUl PIN0D asay) “I8fiaUs D pasu Abw uoypjndod oyoads
0 8iayMm se0pid |0 10 SBUIPIDOQg JO Slaquunu B0 Y SLIOIDIS JO SIBUSs 8pIACld
E:_uw? = ~ “ | R - = - -5d0Js SNQ D $8UOUSq PUD ‘SUCHISID. i .
| | _ SpU O} MOY ‘UORDULIOJU 810} '(s81nol palpep BuoiD Alpioadsa) ebnubis alow ppy @ . -
——r 3 — = ~ pasbuoind eq 0} (¥ 10} SISNG JOWS JO SUDA-IUIL ‘SaOIAISS wm_ m.—. O\—._. m C o — &
B - _ " SIN01 PaXY 1O Pazs-LNIPaLL B8} saioiysa Jo sadA) sy ssaippn pinoys uoid 198l x i ; ; i
| 81 "UMOIE 901A16S 9}DPOWILIODDOD O} UOISUDAXS Joa[} 3]dISSOT SO [18Mm SO ‘Y In1asn U ®.—. O C _ UL O O U
. _ 1184} 10 PUB BUy UDDSI AByy SO sasnq Bujisixs JO s|NPayos lustusanidal D 808D - e
. — M u— i —=i— ~ ‘suoypindod spasu [ooads Buown diysiapl
8BDINCOUS 0} SISUDNOA JO/PUD suniBold Apisans aipj padnpal SoUDYUS Of 8NUKUOD)
Amioing 19W spasN cm:uEwEw_m_\m_:. i ”mu.xﬂn:hm ¥l

/P3Ains sdnoig 10 Afjaoupa




70

saiBajolls Aluoud-yBly so palljuspl usag aADY ploq Ui sa1bsoulS

(pouy
HSUDI] AJUNOD) YWD A "B°8) VIOMN 0} Aousbp Jisupiy jayjio Buippo mgﬁo_me_ .
"SUOILO JISUDI) 0INI AOIBASP O} JUSWIUISAOD [DQLI UHM MIOM -«
"SIDUISIP [OOYDS YLIM pUD AlUNOD
YOOWD(|I] Ui SWnIB0Id pOOYP|IYD APDS YiiMm SLIOS Bullbuipiood anuijuo) -
"DBID
OlBW PUD|LOJ J810a1b 3y} Ul $810UabD [ISUDI} YIIM UOIIDUIPIO0D A0 dW| -
"'219|dWOD S| |]oPOWaI By} 9DUO IBIUSD
HSUDI} UMOLUMOP 1D JJDJS 104 seo1ponId jsaq jusuwabounuw AjljiIgow ajpal)) -
'sabupyd adJAISS : \
Bujwioju) saayILIWod AIOSIAPD O} s9AlDjuasaidal 1Ispu m“m>_u._ov< . mm_mm._.cg._.m C 0_0_
‘(AjunoD ujoour '6°3) paISA0 ||9M SD jou 3ID JDY} SUOKDDO| Ul 9pU-D-|DI _ S
vhc ool MR ..d_mao_w_wa_: [BoIpoiL 6As0% 10H0G SIFLONMN SUEUIA SHOM - P3]DUIPIO0D)
‘suoypzjupbio =
I19yjo pup ‘s1sAojdwia ‘s19plAoId 9IIAISS [DIDOS ‘9ID|d S, AWWDS ‘IDjuad)
SHIW SUDW ‘J¥VD ‘sa1ouabp jisupi} oNqnd Yjim uolypuIpIood 3SD3IdU| -
‘suoyjoIpsunf [po0o] pup ‘siapiaoid uoyppodsunly [P0 ‘S}OUSIP JSUD}
jua22plpb ‘siIsAojdwa ‘siIsuppd |[P20] ‘qlD] U99M}3Q UOHPUIPIOOD ddubyug -
‘saaAo|dwa
112y} 10} sassod snq asoydind oy siaAojdwia 10} swpiboid ajpai) -
'S9DJAISS 3DUIPI0O0D 0} s1duuD|d yisupl} usamjaq sbuyaaw azunbiQ -

Zy ebod 41D




71

Mo O MO] 3 “{oeiy Jsuni] AJUNOD YWD A B8} W1ONMN 0} AousBD jsuniy 1oyio Buippo alojdxg
MO © T ubBiy I —_F *suoldo IsUDI} DI dojBASD Of JUSWUILIAACH JCOUL ULIM JI0M
== s TS e e e s = *SIOUISID [O0UDS UM
wnpa
i ! | pun AuNoD Joowol Ul swoiB0id POOUPIL AIDS UM SPO0YS DUUIPIOoD enuiuod
wnipsw _ Y IO & "DaID OB\ PUD|LOJ 1810aD U} Ul SaloUsbD PSuDI) UM LoouUIRIond sAoidu
I [ i [ *515|dWOD 5] [SPOLUSI SUL S0UD
wnpaw o Moy $
| IBJUSD JISUD UMOIUMOD |0 LDJS 10} $801100.d 158q jUsLuaBouDW AJNIqow 30810
~ ybiH ” @ 1 mo1 | ¢ | -seBupyo soAes BURLIOIU SSBLHLLLLIOD AICSIAPD Of S8AND]USsaIda] JSpU SSISAIR PRY
| [ = | = TE e = {AJUNOD UIODUI - 3 g .
ubiH _ P 3 58] PBIFAOOD |[am SD JOU 81D JOU SLIOHDIO] Ul SPU-D-OIP PUD SSPIy MN UBAOILY sdu m m _ m._. O\_._. m C O _ n_
L

[POIPBW B/18S 18190 O (WIOMN] SOUDIjy HSUDI| UOBBID 1SBMUHON UL UM 3O

T i | | .mmomouco@o 1BUL0 PUD ‘SISA0ICUS "SIBPINOId §0IAISS ® i O C _ 0_ O O
ubIH ) s 5 s

| IDID0S “ISIUaD SN SUDI ‘JNYD ‘So10UsBD [ISUDIL Ofignd Yim LOIIDUIRIOOD 80810

[ _ *SUOIDIPSIN JD30] PUD 'sI8pIACIA UOoHDICASUD)) [BO0] ‘SIOLISID

ybiy ® S _ A . .
| | JISUDIL U20D[PD ‘sisAoidws ‘Steupnd [000] ‘G1D] Usamiag UoIiouIpIocd 90ubyul
—_— — ! — = = = - - T == p= L -
ybiH @ MOY [ | ‘sasAolds KBl Jo) sasspd sng asoyoind o) sisAo|dwls Jo) swoibold ajpalD)
ybiH . | MmO [ s _ “S9OIAIES B]DUIPIOOS O} SIsUUD|d [sUDJ] Ussmaq sbuljestu sziuoBi0

mm_m.w*u:w rcncﬂccgﬁ PUD UOYDUIPICOD

W .m.vewz :o:u?wEw_aE ]

/p3aA1as sdnois Jo Agnsgpa $§500 ABajoiys

Aotig




72

saiba)olls Ajuoud-ybiy so paiiluspl ussaq aADY ploq Ul sa1bsjoils

1odpd-uo pup auluo papiAoid saIAISS By}
JO ssaUBIDMD alowold pup poddns 821AISS JSUOLSND SACIAW| e
‘(swisysAs ssod/juswApd
‘sa|NpPayYDs payplbalul ‘Bulayiow patablip) B8] se2Inosal pub
‘ABO|OUYDS} ‘SODIAISS DIDUIPIOOD JBYLNS O} VIOMN UIULM HIOM e
‘suoijdo
Hsuply apm-uoibal ajowold 0} aj1sgam Y IOMN 83Ul 8z101|Iand
‘sppuUUPyYO aidiinw ybBnouy} Buiiaxiow 821AI8S JISUDi) SA0IAW| e
‘wbiboid Buliaiow aAlsusyaidwod b Bulp|iNng 8NUILUOYD) e mm_mm._.og._.m Co_n_
"ysiupdg ul sjpuajpwl mMaud |jb ysiqnd o} anuyuo) . -finlle _
‘saljIjIqDSIp |pjusw yjm ajdoad 10j Buiuipiy AJALISUSS Um._.oc_—nugoou
IaAUp aplaoid pup swpiboid Buluibly ISALIP Ul JSOAU] O} SNURUOD) « !
‘'siapll pajqpsip-A|pjuswido|aAsp
pup -A|pno3|ajul Bulysissp UO sND0 b YIM ‘Ybjs 1dupund (o
10j BUIUIDI} SSOUSIDMD AHIIDSIP PUR 931AISS JISWOJSND 3oUDyug o
"uolppodsuniyy
Juaj|> 9JbUIPI00D O} SUOHDZIUDBIO 19YjO pUD S}OLISIP [O0YDS
‘SaI}I|IOD} [PIIPpaW ‘S91OUSBD BDIAISS |DIDOS YHIM 3DIOCRI||0D) o

Zy obond 41D




“1adpd-uo pup auluo

1P spaaN
/panas sdnois)

s e e = _ pPapir0Id $8D1AI9S SU] JO SSBUSIDMD SJ0WoId puUD Hoddns 82JAISS JaULI0LSND SACIdW]
T bou = [ i -(swaysAs ssod/uawAnd ‘sajnpayas pajpibaiul ‘Buyayow peabin]
k B°8) $821n0581 PUD ‘ABOJOUYDS} ‘SBOIAIBS 9JDUIPIOOD JaYLIN] OF VIOMN UILIM JIOM
wnipsw ® MO $ “SuUOLdO Jisuni) apm-uciBal ajowold of 1isgam YIOMN 8y} azIoiand
wnipaw " 4 “SlpuuDLD ofdinu YyBnoiys BUitsSIoW 32(AI8S Jisuni) aaoidwy)
T wnipaw ® T = ‘woibold Buyay b aAisuayaIdiiod b BUIPING SNUHUOD
ybiH O Moy $ ‘Ysupds i spopaiow mau o ysignd of snuyuod
e . Q - i | “SBUIIGOSIP JDJUSW UM ajdoad
10§ Bujuinay ARALISUSS JISALP SPIACIA PUD SLWDIBOId BUIUIDA JSALD Ul JSSAU| O] SNUIUOD
uBIH o _ i R *S19pU PIADSIP-AOJUSUAOBABD PUD -AI0N}Dajialul BUlSISSD UO SN0}
| D Upm “04s Joupod (D o) Builioy SSOUSIDMD AJIGOSID PUD 9DIAISS JOLLOISND 22UDYUT
“UoHPHOdSUD JUSND S§DUIPIO0D Of SUoKDZIUDBIO

Y6iH ®

13410 pUD SIOUYSID [00YDS ‘SaYIIoD] [DIIPSW ‘SaIDUSBD SDIAISS [DIDOS LijIM 81DI0gPII0D

Yopayno PUD ‘B01AISS JBWoisnD ‘BuisiIow

co:c-ﬂ.mEm_n_...r_
io Aunoyng

ABajpig

™
N

saIba]DIIS UD|d

PaIDUIPIO0D




4
N~

salba]IiS UD|d

seiba]ouls Ajoud-ybiy so palliuspl usag 9ADY ploq Ul saibalplis

SDBID BDIAIBS-PBIWI]|

pUD $3IJUNOD UsaMm]aq sassod A|Yiuow PajuNOISIP SPIAOI] e
‘9|doad awooUi-MO| pPUD ‘sjuapnys

‘saIgqpsip Ypm ajdoad ‘siojuas 10} saIp} paonpai jusws|dwyje
‘V1IOMN $SO12D

S92JAI9S jIsubljpipd pub pubWap-uo pubndxs O} SIDALIP S1IH «
‘unjd juswaspjdai

9|21YSA pup swibiboid 9o3ubudBJUIDW JO3)} JISUDIL DNUPUOD) »

Buipun4 pup jpUdD

"S9SNQ UO I4-IM 10 Buipuny Junib snsinde Um._.o U —U.._OOU
*SISJUSD JISUDI} JD I4-IM DNIgnd |jo)sul e .
"AJUNOD Joown||I tnoybnolayl puo (o] AbmybiH
BUO|D SINOYDD|Q OIPDI SSBIPPD PUD SWBJSAS Olppl apnIBd e
"wlioj juswwod
1o dpw wissAs oIDUAP b ybnoiy} ‘waysAs ayj jnoqgo jndul
apiaoid o} s1spU 10} A[IgD 3y} pUD SUS|D ISPU PUD ‘SJUSAD ‘SMau
uo uoypbuuioju; ouupid duy b pasy JIBHIM] Jo/pup abpd doogaodny
D O} SHJUl] SD YONs ‘SaIND3} [PUCIHPPD SpN|dUl O} djsqam appibdn.

ey-z¥ o6Dd d1D ; = = AT —



0
N

winpaw © _ “SDBI0 BIIAISS-PAILI PUD SAIUNOD UsaMiad sa5sDd AIGUOLU PajUNCOSID SPIACI
— [ 1] I -gidoad swwodu
ybH ® _
-MO| PUD ‘SIUSPNIS *SSUNIGDSID UM 81doad “SIOIUSS J0J S2I0) PadNPal jusws|duwl
yBiH P ubIH ] W IOMN S50100 S80IASS |ISUDLDIDd PUD PUDLLSP-UO PUDAXS O SISAUD 2IH
ubiH ® Mo] $85 | ‘unid juowaonidal 9DIYeA PUD SWoIBO.A SOUDUSIUIDW J23)] JISUDI] SNULUOD |

sajbajols Buipuny pub |pjidonsH

presy "$95NG UO IH-IM 40 Buipuny JuniB ansing @ ; ;
Mot [ ] | 'SID{UDD HSUD O -1 DN Jogsu m m _ m-_. OL.—. m C O _ &
] "AJUNOD JOOWDYjHL JnoyBnoiyy . ; : =
wnipaw £ : : .
puo 10t AomybBiH BUoiD SiNoMODIG OIPDI SSRIPPD PUD SUUBISAS 010 apoiBdn U @.—- O C — UL O O v
i | ‘U0 JUBUIWOD 10 dpws e
WDISAS DIUDUAD D yBNOIUL ‘WBISAS oY) Jnogp ridul spiacid O} sispul 10) A oyl
YBiH w [ MO s

PUD [SUBID JBPU PUD ‘SIUSAS ‘SMaU UG UOIDWLIoIU Liuupid dul D (paa] JalIM] 10/pun
_ | sbod %00qa204 1 0} SHLi| SO YONS Sainips) [DUokIPRD apnibul 0) ajisgam apniBdn

.mm_mm:u:m ABojouyoaj

oW spaaN uolojusWB|dW]
/paniss sdnole 10 Aynoung ABajoys




76

dlol
O} SO|qPIBAIIBP UD|d [OUl) SPIAOIC O) UOSISIY 4 QOJFm JPX@Z
juo|d sy} jdopy «







Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Tilamook County Transportation District (TCTD) appreciates the input, energy, and commitment
of local and regionat stakeholders who participated in this plan update. The following
organizations and individuals made significant contributions toward this effort:

TCTD TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE
»  Chris Kell, Committee Chair
»  Ross Tomlin, Committee Member
»  Brook Wyntergreen, Committee Member
»n  Sonya Kazen, Committee Member
»  Mary McGinnis, Committee Member
»  Ron Rush, Committee Member
»  Nick Torres, Committee Member
»  Jeff Hazen, Committee Member
»  John Dreeszen, Committee Member
»n  Jim Heffernan, Committee Member
n  Cathy Bond, TCTD

TCTD COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION PLAN PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM

» - Brian Vitulli, TCTD

»  Mike Reed, TCTD

n - Susan Wright, PE, Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

»  Russ Doubleday, AICP, Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

»  Poppy Yang, PhD, Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

»  Doug Pilant, Former TCTD General Manager — Doug passed away in 2022. This plan builds
on the foundation Doug helped the District achieve during his 10 years of service to the
Tilamook County Transportation District. He contributed much to this community that we
will forever be grateful for.

COMMUNITY PARTICIPANTS

The project management team would like to extend their gratitude to everyone who provided
feedback to this project through surveys, interviews, and the stakeholder workshop. A list of aill
partficipants can be found at the end of the Coordinated Transportation Plan.

Page 2 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

a\“ l’ 2s. e



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTFOAUCTION .vvn e ottt T R P S B T T A A s b ek S8 5 s st e SR e s S T et b

Coordinated Transportation PIan REQUIEMENTS ...t ees s s seesen s

Assessing Need and Identifying Proposed Service and Capital Improvements ..., 7
PIAN OFGONIZATON etrtieeerterteieserieseeresaissesissseeseesrestssesessessestessenesasenssssessnesssnssasssensensesensnsssssessessessensesesns 7
DEMOGITDNICS ..uieiucieuirumrreeaersenrereasss s sressessessesmesssssessssesssssesssenseseessssessasssessnsssssssssasessessssssenssnseessessssesseenes 8

General PORUICHON . i i e s sisiiieionersssonssonssssansatit mvmsoseaniossm e asmensenansesevsmmnesiD

Title VI POPUICHIONS ..iusmmsmsmsismsssssisisvimatssims sssionie i iy i asssanisiisnsssissa 12
Employment and Commute TraVEl POHEIMNS ......oviieceeeeeee ettt 22
EXISTING TIANSIT SEIVICES 1.ttt ettt ettt et ettt et et e ettt et et et e ettt ereneeeeeene e e 25
Tillamook County Transportation DISHCT ...t 25
Sunset Empire TransSpOortation DISTCT ... ittt ettt ettt eseeae e 27
LINCOIN COUNTY TIANST ..ottt ettt ettt ee e et re st e et e e e ene st eaeene e ereeenes 27
YAMNIl COUNTY TIANSIT 1ottt et ettt et et e et e e e e et 27
TEMBT 11ttt b et ee e s s e et et s et ettt n et et en e enns 27
CEITIONS Lottt ettt ettt e e r e et e s e bt sttt eae st ettt et e et eeeeeeeeneseeeenneas 28
Ricle: COMDE ElTORunm. ... TR oo sl S Mg SO e vt v SRR, B0, v 28
NOTTRWEST POINT ..ottt ea ettt st s et e e esee e e e e et eneeeeeeeaeeseaeeeenas 28
ATNITAK/GIEYNOUNG ..ttt et sttt e e et et e s et e et et et er et eaeeaeeneenens 28
SIAKENOIAET QUITEACK ...ttt ettt ree e seeenene 30
INVENTOTY SUTVEY ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et st se et et et te et s e eenateaearesrereens 30
IMFEIVIEW SUMIMIGITY ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt ae et e et ee s s e e e e ee et et er e s et e e e eeeeereens 35
Transportation Advisory Committee Presentation ... ...t 36
TAC Transportation Advisory Committee Presentation ... e 36
GOQIS ANA OBJECTIVES ..vniiiiiisiietetc ettt e nen et es e e e 37
NEEAS ANA SHOTEGIES ..ttt er et et e et et e neseane e 39
NEEAS ASSESSIMENT ...ttt et ettt et s st s sttt s s es et et e e s es e e e 39
SHATQGIES - numinnmsaiamonints cousvmssssvesss s b oS i oA T o e N G o S e o s G Lo 40
IMPIEMENTATION PIAN ¢ttt et cae s s s s ess e asseas s e es e et et e st e et es e st e et e snseaan s s ee s s et sneneaneens 44
EVAIUGHON CHEEIIT ..ottt bbb es s es e b s s bbb h st st r s s b esetsnins 44
CONCIUSION 1ottt bbb ese bt e b et st en e e et eeee e eereessssetes s s 54
CommUNity POrICIDONTS i s iirssstisisrosasi sassosstsashinsamssssmsmssvreanssnymysnsssensassas 55

Page 3 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

m\“ " 2s. e



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan:

FIGURES

Figure 1. Tillamook County Historical and Projected PORUIAHON ......voveveceeeeeeseresesisseesesssessssassesesseees 8
Figure 2. Tillamook County Population Density (People per Square Mile) by Census Block Group 11
Figure 3. Youth Population in TIIAMOOK COUNTY ...t ccssecscesesessesesssssessssrssnsssscsessenns 15
Figure 4. Senior Population in TIIAMOOK COUNY ...t 16
Figure 5. Poverty in THAMOOK COUNTY it eiieeesseeeassseesesesees esssesssssassssaesssnsessasessssasssensesessssssnns 18
Figure 6. Minority Populations in Tillamook County ... avsinane2 |
Figure 7. Existing Transit Services Connecting to TI||OmOOk CounTy Tronsportohon DlsTrlcT .............. 29
Figure 8. What populations do you serve? ............... G R PR C B|
Figure 9. Where do your clients have the greo’res’r need for 'frcmsporfo’rlon2 ................................... 31
Figure 10. What are the main fransportation challenges your clients face? ...c.vvveveeeeveeercevveenenn, 32
TABLES

Table 1. Tillamook County POPUICHON GIOWTN ......iiiiiei i ss s tsr s sa e aess s erae 9
Table 2. Tillamook County POPRUICHON FOTETASTS ...vivimiiieiiseicreiiriisiesesiesssssessssessssssssssssensssssssnsesessassses 10
Table 3. Tillamook County TiHle VI PORUITHONS......ccviicieie ittt seer st ee st sa e 13
Table 4. Youth and Senior Populations for THAMOOK COUNTY .. ceeetaesis e esssesassnsesneas 14
Table 5. Ratio of Income to Poverty for THAMOOK COUNY ..ot 17
Table 6. Race and Ethnicity for THAMOOK COUNTY ...c.ecciriieereeciere et eree e sessssse e sasra s nesaerssassasssesesens 20
Table 7. Population with a Disability in THAMOOK COUNTY ...ciiiiiiiiieiciisiiiisecssssesaesssissssssas crsenesnes 22
Table 8. County and State Employment CharaCtErStiCSs. ... sissseosesssrsssesssssesens 23
Table 9. Commute Travel Times for Workers Living in TIIAMOOK COUNTY ..cuicveicriveieeeiecevenee e 23
Table 10. Top Employment Industries for TIIAamook COUNtY WOTIKETS .....cvierieevsisesieressssiessisesiensns 23
Table 11. Employees Coming to and Going from THAMOOK COUNTY ...ovvveiieesersirseeseessseresiessessssssens 24
Table 12. Distance to Work for Tillamook County Residents (left) and Employees (right) ............... 24
Table 13. TCTD Voucher ReCipients AN COSES ...iiiiiieiiieeriisisssssiseessessessessessssssesssessssesssssssssssssnens 26
TAblE 14, TAMET FOIES ... pusmarsssiomisas s s s s 5 s e o T TRV A PR S B S0s 27
Table 15. Survey Respondents — TranSportation SEIVICES ...ovwuiiieieeeiesesssesesesseessesssesssssssssssssessesns 33
Table 16. Survey Respondents — Transportation FUNGING ...t e 34
Table 17. Strategies AN PrOTTHES . .uiwicieireeere et eeessessee e resssesssseesessesenssasresasassarssessersssensrsssonsonsons 45
Table 18. FUNAINg SOUICES i ayaris s s is Sl s s s e s s s s s 49
Table 19. High-Priority Strategies and Available FUNAING POOIS .....ceicviisinseiricisesienionsinsssinesnens 52

ACRONYMS

ACS — American Community Survey

ADA - Americans with Disabilities Act

ADL - Activities of Daily Living

CARE - Community Action Resource Enterprises

CAT = Canby Area Transit

CDAR - Central County Dial-a-Ride

CDP - Census-Designated Place

CTP — Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan/Coordinated Transportation Plan

Page 4 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

&ﬁ“ Eigﬁ_& »



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

C-TRAN - Clark County Public Transit Benefit Authority Area
DAR - Dial-a-Ride

DHS - Department of Human Services

FTA — Federal Transit Administration

IADL - Instrumental Activities of Daily Living

LEHD - Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics
MAX - Metro Area Express (TriMet)

NDAR - North County Dial-a-Ride

NEMT - Non-Emergency Medical Transportation
NWOTA - Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance

ODOT - Cregon Department of Transportation

PMT - Project Management Team

PRC - Population Research Center

RVHT - Rural Veteran Healthcare Transportation Grant
SAM = Sandy Area Metro

SDAR - South County Dial-a-Ride

SMART - South Metfro Area Regional Transit

SNAP - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

STF — Special Transportation Fund

STIF - Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund
TAC —Transportation Advisory Committee

TCTD - Tillamook County Transportation District

TDP — Transit Development Plan

TriMet - Tri-County Metropolitan Transportation District of Oregon
UGB — Urban Growth Boundary

WES — Westside Express Service

Page 5 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\{/// o



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

INTRODUCTION

Tillamook County updates its Coordinated Transportation Plan (CTP) approximately every five
years to work toward community goals while fulfiling state and federal funding requirements. This
planning process encourages open dialogue and coordination between public transit and
human service transportation providers to ensure that key populations, such as older adults,
people with disabilities, and people with low incomes, are served as efficiently as possible with a
high quality of service. Public transportation services within Tillamook County are primarily
provided by Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD). TCTD led the development of this
CTP update.

The Federal Transit Administration's {FTA's) Section 5310 program funds projects and services that
enhance the mobility of seniors and persons with disabilities. The Oregon Department of
Transportation's (ODOT) Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF), created in the House
Bill 2017 Transportation Funding Package and merged with the Special Transportation Fund (STF)
program in July 2023, is a wide-ranging public transportation funding source that supports
planning, deployment, operations, and administration costs. Specifically for a coordinated
fransportation plan, client-based projects and services will need to be included in the CTP to be
eligible to receive TCTD funding. TCTD implements projects and services funded by §5310.

As the designated STIF Qualified Entity, TCTD can distribute federal and state funds to itself and
to eligible subrecipients to support the mobility of seniors and persons with disabilities. This
update to TCTD's CTP captures outstanding CTP projects from the previous update which will
inform future STIF planning along with TCTD's Transit Development Plan (TDP).

The intent of the CTP is to be a "living" document that identifies needs and investment priorities
for seniors, people with disabilities, and low-income people. Transit providers and partners in
Tilamook County will use the plan to make funding decisions and seek funding through grants to
develop and enhance transit services for seniors, people with disabilities, and low-income
people. Since the plan must be updated every five years, it has been written in a way that can
incorporate ongoing updates and revisions.

Coordinated Transportation Plan Requirements

ODOT provides the following requirements for Coordinated Transportation Plans:

n (1) An assessment of available services that identifies current transportation providers
(public, private, and non-profit);

» (2} An assessment of fransportation needs for individuals with disabilities, older adults, and
people with low incomes. This assessment can be based on the experiences and
perceptions of the planning partners or on more sophisticated data collection efforts,
and gaps in service (Note: If a community does not intend to seek funding for a
particular program, such as Section 5310 or 5311, then the community is not required to
include an assessment of the targeted population in its coordinated plan);

n  (3) Strategies, activities, and/or projects to address the identified gaps between current
services and needs, as well as opportunities to achieve efficiencies in service delivery;
and

Page 6 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

RA\ L [ /7R .




Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan.

»  (4) Priorities for implementation based on resources (from multiple program sources),
time, and feasibility for implementing specific strategies and/or activities identified.

Assessing Need and Identifying Proposed Service and
Capital Improvements

Reflecting legislative priorities identified in the Keep Oregon Moving act, the CTP addresses the
transportation needs of people residing and traveling within the region, especially those
residents in low-income communities. Key project and program provisions of the CTP include the
following STIF Criteria:

h  Increased frequency of bus service to areas with a high percentage of Low-Income
Households.

n Expansion of bus routes and bus services to serve areas with a high percentage of Low-
Income Households.

n  Fund the implementation of programs fo reduce fares for public fransportation in
communifies with a high percentage of Low-Income Households.

n  Procurement of low or no emission buses.

»  Improvement in the frequency and reliability of service between communities inside and
outside of the Qualified Entity's service area.

n  Coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers to reduce fragmentation
in the provision of transportation services.

n  Implementaiion of programs to provide student transit service for students in grades 9-12.

Plan Organization

This CTP update is organized into the following sections:

n  Demographics: This section reviews the existing demographics, population trends, and
employment trends in Tillamook County, with emphasis on the target population groups
for a CTP (e.g., people with disabilities, seniors).

»  Existing Services and Resources: This section lists all known public, non-profif, and private
transpoertation providers within Tillamook County. In addition to TCTD, these groups help
provide fransportation services for those in need.

»  Stakeholder Involvement: This section provides an overview of the public outreach work
for the CTP update, including online surveys, interviews, and a stakeholder workshop.

»  Goals and Objectives: This section outlines the goals for the CTP, as well as a list of more
specific objectives that will help TCTD meet those goals.

»  Needs and Strategies: This section outlines the identified needs and supporfing sirategies
for the CTP. The needs and strategies have been split into six categories: fransportation
services, infrastructure, coordination and organization, marketing/customer
service/outreach, technology, and capital and funding.

»  Implementation Plan: This section prioritizes the strategies and matches funding sources
to high-priority projects.

Page 7 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ ] //R ”



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

DEMOGRAPHICS

The following describes the general population characteristics, Title VI populations, and other
demographic and employment characteristics of Tillamook County.

General Population

Tilamook County is located along the northemn Oregon coastline. The Oregon Coast Range
comprises most of eastern Tillamook County, which is sparsely populated and has minimait
development. Most of the County's populated areas are located along the Coast, along
Highway 101. Adjacent counties include Clatsop County to the north, Washington County to the
east, Yamhill County to the east and south, and Lincoln County to the south.

Tilamook County is home to an estimated 27,390 residents. The largest populated area is the city
of Tillamook, located along US 101 and OR 6 highways, with an estimated population of 5,204
residents. There are four population centers located around Nehalem Bay that, when grouped
together, comprise the second largest populated area with an estimated 2,509 residents. They
include the cities of Manzanita (603), Nehalem (270), Wheeler (422), as well as the Bayside
Gardens, a census-designated place or “CDP” (1,214).! Other cities and census-designated
places with populations between 1,000-1,500 residents in the County include the cities of Bay
City and Rockaway Beach and the unincorporated community of Pacific City.

Figure 1 shows the historical and projected population for the County from 1990 through 2050. As
shown, the county has seen steady growth over the last 30 years, adding nearly 6,000 new
residents according fo the U.S. Census Bureau. Oregon's Office of Economic Analysis estimates
that the county will grow by an additional 4,000 residents over the next 30 years.

Figure 1. Tillamook County Historical and Projected Population

35,000
32.000 31,328
29,000
26,000

23,000

20,000
1990 2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 2050

Source: US Census Bureau (1990-2020 data}, Oregon Office of Economic Analysis {2030-2050 datay)

I A census-designated place (CDP) is a concentration of population defined by the United States Census Bureau for
statistical purposes only.

Page 8 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

A\, o



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

U.S. Highway 101 runs north-south through the County, providing direct connections between
most destinations within the County. Oregon Highway 53 connects the Nehalem Bay area with
Clatsep County to the north. Oregon Highway 6 provides a connection between the city of
Tillomook and the Portland metropolitan area to the east. Oregon Highways 22 and 130 provide
connections between southern Tillamook County and the Salem-Keizer metropolitan area to the
east.

Table 1 shows the population growth in Tillamook County and its cities between 2010 and 2020.
Tilamook County has seen moderate overall growth over the past 10 years with an average
growth rate close to 9% since 2010, which is slightly under Oregon's overall growth rate over the
same time period. By perceniage, the fastest-growing city is Rockaway Beach with a 9.8%
growth rate over the decade.

Table 1. Tillamook County Population Growth

Change from 2010 fo 2020

Number Percent

Geography. 2010 Census 2020 Census

Oregon 3,831,074 4,237,256 406,182 10.6%

Tillamook County 25,250 27,3%0 2,140 8.5%
Bay City 1,286 1,389 103 8.0%
Garibaldi 779 830 51 6.5%
Manzanita 598 603 5 0.8%
Nehalem 271 270 -1 -0.4%
Rockaway Beach 1,312 1,441 129 9.8%
Tillamook 4,935 5,204 269 5.5%
Wheeler 414 422 8 1.9%

All Cities 9,595 10,159 564 5.9%
Barnesdale* — 193 193 —
Bayside Gardens 880 1,214 334 38.0%
Beaver 122 163 41 33.6%
Cape Meares 99 135 36 36.4%
Cloverdale 250 267 17 6.8%
Fairview* - 498 498 -
Hebo 232 207 -25 -10.8%
idaville 337 374 37 11.0%
Neahkahnie* - 197 197 -~
Neskowin 134 205 71 53.0%
Netarts 748 894 146 19.5%
Oceanside 361 366 5 1.4%
Pacific City 1,035 1,109 74 7.1%
Pleasant Valley* - 620 620 —

All Census-Designated 4,198 6,442 2,244 53.5%
Places

*Census-designated places added since 2010 United States Decennial Census

Portland State University’s Population Research Center (PRC) develops long-term coordinated
population forecasts for Oregon's counties and their cities. Note that cities, areas within urban
growth boundaries, are referred to as "sub-areas" in PRC reports. The Tillamook County
Coordinated Population Forecast for 2020 through 2070, which is the latest report available at
this time, the County is expected to experience the following:

Page 9 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

«n“i&%ﬂ WE . %



Tilamook County Tra ﬁsgqrfatibn' District Coordinated Transportation Plan

The countywide average annual population growth rate is forecast fo hold steady around
0.3 percent over the period. Given slow positive growth, Tillamook County’s fotal population
is forecast fo increase by roughly 4,000 people (7 percent] between 2020 and 2070. This will
fransiate info a total countywide population of 30,173 in 2070.

In accordance with the countywide forecast, we forecast that all of Tillamook County’s
urban growth boundaries (UGBs) will also experience population growth between 2020 and
2070. In particular, Bay City, Manzanita, Nehalem, Rockaway Beach, and Wheeler will drive
population growth, with the largest raw population growth coming with Tilamook City. We
forecast the area outside Tillamook County's UGBs to grow only slightly in population over
the course of the forecast period, from about 14,400 in 2020 fo about 14,600 people in 2070.
This slowdown is due fo the existing limitations in housing construction oufside of UGBs paired
with decreases in PPH and occupancy rates accompanying the aging population. With
growing population within UGBs and declining population outside of them, we forecast a
spatial redistribution of the population. Specifically, we forecast that the county's population
share outside UGB areas will drop from 55 to 48 percent by the end of the forecast period,
with that share absorbed throughout Tillamook County's growing sub -areas.

- Coordinated Population Forecast for Tillamook County, its Urban Growth Boundaries
(UGB], and Area Outside UGRs, 2020-2070, Portland State University Population Research
Center

PRC forecasted population figures for Tillamook County and its sub-areas are provided in Table
2. The PRC population methodology addresses places within a UGB individually; forecasts for
areas outside UGBs are consolidated into a single forecast. For Tillamook County, this means that
individual population forecasts for CDPs are consolidated into the forecast for areas outside
UGBs.

PRC population forecasts differ from those derived from US Census data in Table 1 due to the
fact that US Census estimates only address populations located inside city limits or CDP limits,
whereas PRC estimates address all residents within an area’s UGB.

Table 2. Tilamook County Population Forecasts
' 2020 2030 2020-2030 | 2040 2030-2040

Location

i Forecast Forecast Increase | Forecast Increase

Tilamook County 26,076 26,810 +734 27,570 +760
Bay City UGB 1,425 1,551 +126 1,673 +122
Garibaldi UGB 774 771 -3 767 -4
Manzanita UGB 798 857 +59 924 +67
Nehalem UGB 1,215 1,331 £ .16 1,493 +162
N 1,469 1,579 110 1,702 £123
Tillamook UGB 5,603 5,822 +219 6,097 +275
Wheeler UGB 423 451 +28 487 +36
g B 14,369 14,448 +79 14,425 23

Figure 2 shows the population density (people per acre) of Tillamook County by block groups.
Most of the County's population is found in block groups that include cities or census-designated
places. Even given this concentration, population density is relatively low, rarely exceeding a

Page 10 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\{///R %



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

half person per acre. The only block groups with a population density exceeding one person per
acre is found in the city of Tillamook; population densities in most block groups in this area

reaches six persons per acre.

Figure 2. Tillamook County Population Density (People per Square Mile) by Census Block Group

Thezto s
M PR =
S N "\ et .
Koy e ~ T
- |8
d i
if - —
.""
| 3
Cape Meares g
I'. ki | - 2. =
L. s
Oceanside (Lr : Ll el
- I r ot = J
A}-_fetar S Cd i
] - i
1 3!
| dilhg o
,r{.ﬂ-u-, o o NP ¥ A - |
S ! (e
I
1.
] - TS |
ﬁl s
< - Beaver |
ﬁ(},‘ i
[ 4 e |
| r
) M o
Pacific City Hebo - ) .
"- = = — — _____ Population Density by
| . Cloyerdale Census Block Group
{ ol
{ / ! [ ] 0-20th Percentile
I bl { | 20-40th Percentile
Neskawin - 40-60th Percentile
' 3 | - 60-80th Percentile
80-100th Percentile
. — Grand .
2 ] fill
ClMie | Ronde Fort Hill il Cities and Census-
S y__ ' Designated Places
0 Grand
Lincoln City. Rose Lodge Ronde
Page 11 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

aﬁ“ l’ .

87



Tillamook County Transportation Disirict Coordinated Transportation Plan

Title VI Populations

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-1) states that “‘no person in the United
States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in,
be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
receiving Federal financial assistance.” In combination with subsequent federal
nondiscrimination statutes, agencies receiving federal financial aid are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, age, economic status, disability, or sex
(gender). Title VI populations include individuals who identify as minorities (both racial and
ethnic), low-income, disabled, elderly (ages 65 and over), and youth/children {ages under 18).2
These populations are identified because their access to an automobile or their ability fo drive
an automobile may be limited or non-existent. While this may also be the case for individuals in
the general population, there is a greater possibility that access to transit is more crucial for
those within the identified populations.

Key findings for Title VI popultations in Tillamook County include:

n  Overall, Tllamook County's population is older and experiences more poverty than the
State of Oregon as a whole.

»n  The Tillamook and Pacific City have the highest percentage of people under the age of
18 of any community in the county, comprising 25% and 33% of the population,
respectively. Conversely, there are five communities (Cape Meares, Manzanita,
Neahkahnie, Neskowin, and Oceanside) where more than half of the population is over
the age of 65.

»n  When considering those living at twice the federal poverty level or below, fhis includes
nearly half of all residents in Tillamook and Wheeler. Qutside of the incorporated cities in
the county, 42% of all residents are living at or below this threshold, including é6% of
residents in Pacific City.

»  More than 80% of Tillamook County residents are White, above the nearly 72% of
statewide residents. Across all racial minority groups, Tillamook County is at or below the
statewide average.

Table 3 summarizes the Title VI populations in Tillamook County and the State or Oregon as a
whole. The following sections include detailed demographic summaries for age, income,
race/ethnicity, and people with disabilities in Tilamook County and its communities.

2 Other relevant federal statutes include the Federal-Aid Highway Act, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA),
Executive Order 12898 Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations, and Executive Order
13166 Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency. (FTA. 2015. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, available at ).

Page 12 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ // A %



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Table 3. Tilamook County Title VI Populations

Demographic Tillamook County State of Oregon

Population3 27,390 4,237,256
Percent youth (under 18 years old)4 19.1% 21.0%
Percent seniors (65 years or older)4 24.9% 17.2%
Percent minority populations3 19.7% 28.3%
Percent Hispanic or Latino3 10.8% 13.9%
Percent below poverty lines 38.0% 30.8%
Population3 27,390 4,237,256
AGE

Figure 3 and Figure 4 illustrate the proportion of youth (people under the age of 18) and seniors
(people ages 65 and older) by block group within Tillamook County. Asillustrated in Figure 3,
youth populations are generally found in block groups that include more populated places such
as the areas around Manzanita Bay, Bay City, and the city of Tillamook. Youth populations can
also be found in the block groups encompassing the eastern portion of Netarts and the part of
Pacific City located east of the Nestucca River. Areas with concentrated amounts of seniors are
generally found throughout the County, as illustrated in Figure 4. The highest concentrations are
found in block groups along the central and northern County coast lines. Among the more
densely populated areas of the County, places around Nehalem Bay, Bay City, and the city of
Tillamook have high amounts of senior population.

Tillamook County as a whole has a lower percentage of youth (19%) than the statewide
average (21%) The percentage of youth within cities and CDPs varies greatly, ranging between
no youth to nearly a quarter of the population. More than 20% of the populations Bay City,
Nehalem, Tillamook, Bayside Gardens, and Netarts are residents younger than 18 years in age.

Conversely, the County has a higher percentage of seniors {25%) than the state average (17%).
With the exception of Nehalem, all places in Tillamook County have a higher percentage of
seniors compared 1o the state average. The share of seniors in some areas is estimated to
exceed half the population.

3 2020 United States Decennial Census
4 , Table B0O1001

5 , Table C17002

Page 13 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ ///R »



Tilamook County Transportafion District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Table 4. Youth and Senior Populations for Tillamook County

Geography. i, Percent Senior Percent
Oregﬂ 4,129,803 867,943 21% 709,555 17%
Tilamook County 26,389 5,033 19% 6,560 25%

Bay City 1,675 341 20% 301 18%
Garibaldi 797 74 9% 268 34%
Manzanita 393 15 4% 196 50%
Nehalem 355 82 23% 43 12%
Rockaway Beach 1,166 165 14% 321 28%
Tillamook 5,231 1,298 25% 263 18%
Wheeler 357 54 15% 135 38%
All Cities 9,974 2,029 20% 2,227 22%
Barnesdale 907 227 25% 245 27%
Bayside Gardens 103 0 0% 43 42%
Beaver 80 9 11% 44 55%
Cape Meares 177 0 0% 83 47%
Cloverdale 182 23 13% 37 20%
Fairview 312 46 15% 59 19%
Hebo 170 0 0% 98 58%
Idaville 164 0 0% 123 75%
Neahkahnie 778 183 24% 326 42%
Neskowin 546 40 7% 281 51%
Netarts 1,076 355 33% 235 22%
Oceanside 4,495 883 20% 1,574 35%
Pacific City 907 227 25% 245 27%
Pleasant Valley 103 0 0% 43 42%

All Census-Designated 80 9 1% 44 55%
Places

Sovurce: Table BO1001, 2019 5-year American Community Survey Estimates

Page 14 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ l’ 2s. ”



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Figure 3. Youth Population in Tillamook County

LY
Neahkahnie

Oceanside
3 4

Neskowin

¥

S

Lincoln City, Rose Lodge

zanita

Youth Population

I| Less than 12%
' [::] 12-16%
_ 16-20%
- 20-24%

More than 24%

— Grand Will: B
| Ronde o il Cities and Census-
{ Designated Places
=T Grand
Ronde

Page 15 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

a\“ "il..

91



Tilamook County Transportation Disfrict Coordinated Transportation Pian

Figure 4. Senior Population in Tillamook County

Senior Population
Less than 20%

20-25%

- 25-30%
- 30-35%

More than 35%
Grand

1B
Ronde pore i L Cities and Census-
Designated Places

Grand
Lincoln City_Rose Lodge Ronde

Page 146 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

\\irs. ”



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

HOUSEHOLD INCOME

The federal poverty threshold is calculated by the size of the household and is adjusted annually.
fn 2021, the threshold for an individual is $12,880 in annual eamings, and $26,500 for a household
of four. The US Census Bureau measures poverty by looking at the ratio between a household's
income and the household's poverty threshold, called the ratio of income to poverty.
Households with an income-to-poverty ratio below 1 are eligible for federal assistance programs;
however, households with a ratio between 1 and 1.99 still experience the impacts of poverty
and may be eligible for other benefits, such as the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
(SNAP, formerly known as Focd Stamps). Figure 5 displays the percentage of the population in
Tillamook County with a Poverty to Income Ratio below 2. In Tilamook County, areas with higher
amounts of poverty are found primarily along US 101 with the highest concentrations in Tillamook
City.

Table 5 summarizes the percentage of population in Tillamook County with a Ratio of Income to
Poverty level 1.99 and below. The County experience higher levels of poverty (38%) compared
to the state average (31%). Except for Manzanita (18%) and Nehalem (25%), all cities in Tillamook
experience higher levels of poverty, ranging from 36% in Rockaway Beach 10 49% in Tillamook.
The occurrence of poverty in Tillamook County's CDP's is mostly concentrated in Pacific City
(66%). The amount of poverty in other CDPs varies significantly, ranging from no poverty to nearly
half of the population.

Table 5. Ratio of Income to Poverty for Tillamook County
: Population Below

Geography Total Population Poverty Threshold of 1.99 Percent
Oregon 4,052,019 1,248,819 31%
Tilamook County 25,676 9,759 38%

Bay City 1,652 608 37%
Garibaldi 783 295 38%
Manzanita 393 69 18%
Nehalem 355 90 25%
Rockaway Beach 1,166 414 36%
Tilamook 5,231 2,548 49%
Wheeler 308 148 48%
All Cities 9,888 4,172 42%
Bayside Gardens 885 304 34%
Beaver 103 13 13%
Cape Meares 76 0 0%
Cloverdale 177 33 19%
Hebo 182 16 9%
Idaville 312 125 40%
Neahkahnie 170 18 11%
Neskowin 164 0 0%
Netarts 778 356 46%
Oceanside 546 89 16%
Pacific City 1,076 708 66%

All Census-Designated 4,469 1,662 37%
Places

Source: Table C 17002, 2019 5-year American Community Survey

Page 17 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

\hrs. ”



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Figure 5. Poverly in Tillamook County

Tarp g

Poverty

T Less than 20%
20-30%

|"' ‘ More than 50%
Brvies R — Grand Willz
—— | Ronde poremin Cities and Census-
e — : Designated Places
- onand
Lincoln City Rose Lodge Ronde

Page 18 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

a\“ " /R .



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

RACE AND ETHNICITY

Information on race and ethnicity includes a combination of Hispanic or Latino origins as well as
race at the Census Block geographic levels. Origin can be viewed as the heritage, nationdlity
group, lineage, or country of birth of the person or the person’s parents or ancestors before their
arrival in the United States. People who identify their origin as Hispanic or Latino may be any
race. Race is based on racial classifications issued by the Office of Management and Budget
(white, black or African American, American Indian or Alaska Native, Asian, Native Hawaiian or
Other Pacific Island, and Some Other Race). Respondents in the 2020 Decennial Census can
select two or more races.

Figure 6 illustrates the percentage of minority population by Census block in Tillamook County. In
the US Census Bureau's American Community Survey (ACS), minority populations include non-
white racial groups as well as people identifying as Hispanic or Latino. Overall, Tillamook County
has a lower percentage of minority population (19.7%) compared to Cregon (28.3%). Areas with
that have a minority population larger than the State average include Tillamook (28.2%),
Fairview (43.5%), and Hebo (44.3%). Most of the minority population in these three areas are of
Hispanic or Latino ethnicity. Manzanita and Neahkahnie have the lowest amount of minority
populations (8.8% and 4.6% respectively).

Page 19 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

A“‘ l’ /R ”



Tilamook County Transportation Disﬁit'-:"tf-'Coordiri_.afe'd?'l'tunsp‘o,rtaiibn:- Plan

Table 6. Race and Ethnicity for Tillamook County

= o | LA 2z 3
4 g | 2o o = o o
o >0 Q = T o b o
3 3~ | 592 a =
Geography 2 @9 |85 23 | 2 3
2 2|23 Sl
g Sa |23 25| &8 | 2
3 5 ® 3 3 3 0
o o g o o
- 2 -
Oregon 4,237,256 13.9% 71.7% 19% 1.0% 45% 04% 05% 6.1%
Tilamook County 27,390 10.8% 80.3% 03% 09% 1.0% 03% 05% 59%
Bay City 1,389 109% 81.1% 0.1% 0.9% 1.5% 01% 0.5% 4.8%
Garibaldi 830 51% 86.3% 0.6% 12% 1.0% 01% 02% 55%
Manzanita 603 1.8% 912% 08% 0.5% 28% 02% 05% 22%
Nehalem 270 3.7% 800% 0.0% 1.5% 1.1% 0.4% 1.1% 12.2%
Egg‘gﬂwcy 1,441 34% 859% 0.1% 08% 1.9% 03% 07% 67%
Tillamook 5,204 19.5% 71.2% 02% 0.9% 1.2% 07% 03% 6.1%
Wheeler 422 3.1% 889% 0.2% 1.4% 07% 0.5% 1.2% 4.0%
All Cities 10,159 12.7% 78.0% 0.2% 0.9% 1.4% 05% 05% 5.8%
Barnesdale 193 52% 84.5% 0.0% 1.0% 1.6% 00% 05% 7.3%
Bayside Gardens 1,214 86% 81.5% 03% 05% 1.7% 02% 05% 6.6%
Beaver 163 67% 828% 0.0% 1.2% 0.0% 00% 00% 9.2%
Cape Meares 135 22% 91.1% 0.0% 07% 00% 00% 00% 59%
Cloverdale 267 13.5% 74.5% 00% 34% 04% 0.0% 1.1% 7.1%
Fairview 498 20.1% 66.5% 0.4% 1.2% 24% 08% 0.6% 8.0%
Hebo 207 193% 657% 00% 29% 0.0% 0.0% 1.0% 11.1%
Idaville 374 53% 824% 05% 0.3% 1.1% 00% 08% 9.6%
Neahkahnie 197 2.5% 954% 00% 00% 0.5% 0.5% 0.0% 1.0%
Neskowin 205 39% 878% 00% 05% 20% 00% 00% 59%
Netarts 894 53% 867% 03% 1.0% 13% 00% 02% 51%
Oceanside 366 3.8% 86.6% 05% 0.0% 1.9% 00% 0.8% 6.3%
Pacific City 1,109 60% 87.4% 0.2% 12% 07% 01% 04% 4.1%
Pleasant Valley 620 58% 877% 00% 05% 05% 00% 00% 55%
All Census-

Designated Places 6,442 7.8% 83.2% 02% 09% 1.2% 0.1% 04% 62%

Source: 2020 United States Decennial Census

Page 20 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Figure 6. Minority Populations in Tillamook County

Viro

Minority Population

E:] Less than 10%
Ez 10-15%
15-20%
- 20-25%

More than 25%

ey Grand M

. Ronde £ort win - Cities and Census-
" Designated Places
Grand

Ronde

Lincoln City  Rose Lodge

Page 21 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

a\“ ' ' 1. ”



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

POPULATIONS WITH A DISABILITY

information on disabled population was gathered from ACS data through the SNAP program.
Disability status is a self-reported variable within the data source. Disability within ACS datais
limited to four basic areas of functioning: hearing, vision, cognition, and ambulation. If is further
supplemented by Katz Activities of Daily Living (ADL) and Lawton Instrumental Activities of Daily
Living (IADL) scales which relate to difficulty with bathing, dressing, and performing errands.

Tillamook County has a higher rate of people with disabilities (22%) compared to the State (14%).
Generally, cities and CDPs have a higher rate of people with disabilities compared to the
County (25% and 23% respectively). The highest estimated rate of people with disabilities occurs
in Rockaway Beach (30%), Hebo (35%), Idaville (42%), and Beaver (50%).

Table 7. Population with a Disability in Tillamook County

0 Geography Total Population Disabled Popuiation | Percent Disabled
Oregon 4,089,521 587,093 14%
Tilamook County 25,781 5,706 22%

Bay City 1,665 353 21%
Garibaldi 789 206 26%
Manzanita 393 115 29%
Nehalem 355 80 23%
Rockaway Beach 1,158 349 30%
Tillamook 5,231 1,326 25%
Wheeler 308 81 26%
All Cities 9,899 2,510 25%
Bayside Gardens Q07 172 19%
Beaver 103 52 50%
Cape Meares 80 16 20%
Cloverdale 177 57 32%
Hebo 182 63 35%
idaville 312 131 42%
Neahkahnie 170 18 11%
Neskowin 164 30 18%
Netarts 778 212 27%
Oceanside 546 89 16%
Pacific City 1,076 214 20%

All Census-Designated 4,495 1.054 23%
Places

Source: Table C17002, 2019 5-year American Community Survey

Employment and Commute Travel Patterns

Table 8 provides a snapshot of employment and median household income data for Tillamook
County compared to the state from 2019 5-Year ACS data. This is the most recent complete set
of ACS data, but it reflects pre-pandemic employment and income conditions.

As shown in the table below, 50 percent of Tillamook County residents are in the labor force
(below the 62.4 percent figure for the entire state), but the unemployment rate for both
geographies are just above 5 percent, The median household income for Tillamook County is
$49.895, nearly $13,000 below the statewide median household income.

Page 22 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\ |/ /7R ”



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportfation Plan

Table 8. County and State Employment Characteristics
Population Median Household

Location Aged 16+ % in Labor Force | % Unemplo.yegl |  Income
Tillamook County 21,797 50.0% 51% $49.895
State of Oregon 3,361,188 62.4% 5.5% $62,818

Source: American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, 2015-2019

The ACS also provides data on travel times for all employees. Table 9 below breaks down
commute fravel times into groups and shows the numiber and percentage of Tilamook County
workers within each commute travel time group. As shown below, more than half of all
employees have a commute fravel fime of 20 minutes or less, but more than seven percent of
employees have a commute travel time of 60 or more minutes. Similar to the previous table, all
datais from 2019 and does not reflect shifts due to the pandemic.

Table 9. Commute Travel Times for Workers Living in Tillamook County

‘ Commute Travel Time Employees

Less than 10 Minutes 2,967 29.3%
10-19 Minutes 3,298 32.5%
20-29 Minutes 1,099 10.8%
30-392 Minutes 902 8.9%
40-59 Minutes 573 5.7%
60-89 Minutes 485 4.8%
90 or More Minutes 254 2.5%
Worked at Home 564 5.6%

Source: American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, 2015-2019

The Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics {LEHD), a division of the U.S. Census Bureau,
provides a breakdown of the types of employment for county residents. Table 10 shows the top
five employment industries for Tillamook County workers. Similar to the previous employment
data, all LEHD daia is from 2019 and does not reflect shifts due to the pandemic.

Table 10. Top Employment Industries for Tillamook County Workers

B Industry 1 Employees 1 Percentage
Manufacturing 1,614 17.9%
Accommodation and Food Services 1,311 14.6%
Health Care and Social Assistance 1,186 13.2%
Retail Trade 833 9.2%
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 711 7.9%

All Other Industry Sectors 3,352 37.2%

Source: Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2019

Table 11 below shows the top 10 locations for where workers living in Tillamook County are
working (left) and where workers whose job is located in Tillamook County are living (right). While
the city of Tillamook is the top home location and top job location, respectively, the rest of the
top locations differ significantly. Four of the top 10 locations for where workers who live in
Tillamook County are traveling to for work are outside of the County (Portland, Salem, Hillsboro,
and Beaverton), and of the top 50 work destinations for workers who live in Tillamook County,
only 57% are within the county. Conversely, two of the top 10 locations where workers who work
in Tillamook County live outside of the county (Portland and Salem), and of the top 50 home
locations for employees who work in Tillamook County, 71 percent already live within the county.

Page 23 | Kiitelson & Associates, Inc.



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Table 11. Employees Coming to and Going from Tillamook County

County Resident Work County Employee Home Count’lishara

Count { Share

Locations _ Locations
Tillamook 2,635 23.5% Tillamook 1,530 17.0%
Portland 860 8.0% Bay City 349 3.9%
Salem 323 3.0% Portland 256 2.8%
Bay City 318 3.0% Rockaway Beach 247 2.7%
Garibaldi 286 2.7% Pacific City 221 2.5%
Pacific City 285 2.6% Netarts 206 2.3%
Manzanita 26 2.1% Garibaldi 159 1.8%
Hillsboro 212 2.0% Bayside Gardens 139 1.5%
Rockaway Beach 185 1.7% Salem 109 1.2%
Beaverton 152 1.4% Manzanita 106 1.2%
All Other Locations 5,396 50.1% All Other Locations 5,685 63.1%

Source: Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2019

Table 12 shows the distance to work for residents in the county as well as employees in the
county. The results shown in the table below are consistent with the findings from Table 11.
Workers who live in Tillamook County are more likely to fravel outside of the county or travel long
distances to reach their workplace. Fewer than half of all employees have a commute distance
under 10 miles, while nearly one-third of these are fraveling greater than 50 miles. Conversely, for
employees who are working in Tilamook County, more than half are traveling less than 10 miles,
and just over one in five employees are traveling greater than 50 miles to reach their place of
work.

Table 12. Distance to Work for Tillamook County Residents (left) and Employees (right
7 Distance Count Shure Distance

Less than 10 Miles 4,969 46.1 Less than 10 Miles 4,973 55.2%
10 to 24 Miles 1,389 2.9% 10 to 24 Miles 1,252 13.9%

25 to 50 Miles 1,042 9.7% 25 to 50 Miles 861 9.6%
Creater than 50 Miles 3.378 31.3% Greater than 50 Miles 1,921 21.3%

Source: Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2019

Page 24 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ |/ /A e



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Pian

EXISTING TRANSIT SERVICES

This section provides an overview of existing fransit service in Tilamook County. TCTD is the largest
transit provider in the county. Figure 7 maps all TCTD service, as well as all connecting transit
providers. A comprehensive list of fransportation service providers and social service agencies
was updated by TCTD, via survey, and via the National Transit Database, and is included below.

Tilamook County Transportation District

The Tillamook County Board of Commissioners established the Tillamook County Transportation
District on July 16™, 1997 as an ORS 267.510 transportation district. TCTD offers nine bus lines as
well as dial-a-ride service. These services are detailed below.

DEVIATED FIXED-ROUTE SERVICE

TCTD has five deviated fixed-route bus lines that are serve communities within Tillamook County
and other coastal communities outside of the county, as well as a seasonal shuttie bus that
operates within Pacific City. All routes (except for the Pacific City shuttle) run seven days a week
and allow for deviations within three-guarters of a mile of the scheduled route if requested at
least two hours in advance.

Route 1 (Tillamook Town Loop) offers hourly service within Tillamook, as well as the Tillamook
Creamery, and the Fairview district to the east of downtown. Route 2 (Tillamook — Oceanside —
Netarts) makes five runs to the unincorporated communities to the west of Tillamook along the
Pacific Ocean. Route 6 (Port of Tillamook Bay) makes four runs between downtown Tillamook
and the Port of Tillamook Bay. These three routes have a $1.00 fare for a single ride and a $3.00
fare for an all-day ticket. An unlimited monthly pass costs $30.00, and a discounted monthly pass
(for people under the age of 18, over the age of 60, or people with disabilities) costs $20.00.

Route 3 (Tillamook — Manzanita - Cannon Beach) makes six runs a day between Tillamook and
Manzanita (with four of those runs continuing onto Cannon Beach), while serving the
communities in between. Route 4 (Tillamook - Lincoln City) makes four runs a day between
Tillamook and Lincoln City, while serving the communities along Highway 101 in between these
two cities as well as Pacific City. These routes also have a $1.00 fare for a single ride and a $3.00
fare for an all-day ticket.

The Pacific City shuttle offers free service in Pacific City and Tierra del Mar on Friday through
Sunday from Memorial Day through Labor Day to help improve transit service during the busy
summer season. Service generally runs every half hour from 11:00 AM to 5:30 PM, with hourly
service for the two hours before and after this time period.

INTERCITY SERVICE

TCTD operates one infercity bus route, Route 5 (Coastliner) between Tillamook and Portland.
Route 5 service runs three trips between Tillamook and Portland's Union Station, with stops in
Banks, North Plains, Hillsboro, and Beaverton. One-way fare is $15.00, and a 10-trip pass is
$120.00. Children ride for free. Service between Banks and North Plains into the Portland
metropolitan area is free, subsidized by Ride Connection. At the end of 2023, TCTD discontinued

Page 25 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\|/ /7N "



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

its two other intercity routes: Route 60X (Lincoln City — Salem) and Route 70X (Grand Ronde —
Salem) due to the ongoing driver shortage.

DIAL-A-RIDE SERVICE

All residents are eligible for TCTD’s Dial-a-Ride service, which operates Monday through Friday
from 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM. The service s first-come, first-served until all spaces are accounted for,
so advance reservations are recommended. Dial-a-Ride service is broken into three
geographies: the North County service zone (NDAR) covers Manzanita, Nehalem, Wheeler,
Rockaway Beach, and Garibaldi. The Central County service zone (CDAR) covers Tilamook, Bay
City, Netarts, and Oceanside. The South County service zone (SDAR) covers Pacific City, Beaver,
Hebo, Cloverdale, Neskowin, and Tierra del Mar.

The base fare for Dial-a-Ride service is $4.00 for the first five miles. For trips over five miles, the fare
is $0.50 per mile. Seniors, youth, and persons with disabilities can travel up to five miles for $2.00,
but each additional mile remains $0.50. Up to two children under the age of 12 can ride for free
with a paying adult.

NW Rides and TCTD Voucher Activity

NW Rides is a non-emergency medical transportation brokerage that facilitates rides across a
three-county area (Tillamook, Clatsop, and Columbia counties) for the Columbia Pacific
coordinated care organization. TCTD is one of the providers that can help provide rides to
medical appointments through the NW Rider brokerage.

TCTD also provides vouchers for fransit passes to agencies and non-profit organizations that
provide them to their students/clients/employees/etc. Table 13 below shows all voucher activity
for TCTD over the last two fiscal years.

Table 13. TCTD Voucher Recipients and Costs

; Incomplete Fiscal
Customer ; Fiscal Year 2020-21 Year 2021-22

Adventist Health Tillamook $1,146.50 $417.00
Care, Inc. $20,517.50 $6,580.00
Care, Inc STF $7,5%90.00 $4,200.00
DHS Child Welfare (Tillamook) $1,328.00 $420.00
DHS Vocational Rehabilitation $2,100.00 $420.00
Integrated Services Network $1,780.00 $680.00
Resource Connections of Oregon $936.00 $432.00
Shangri-La $672.00 $48.00
St. Alban's Episcopal Church $760.00 $45.00
St. Mary’s by the Sea Catholic Church $1,053.00 $510.00
Tides of Change $1,464.00 $1,099.50
Tillamook Bay Community College $3.488.50 $1,549.40
Tillamook County Hedlth Department $72.00 $63.00
Tillamook County Sheriff's Office $824.00 $500.00
Tillamook Family Counseling Center $31,880.00 $20.072.14
Tilamook Police Department - $40.50
Vocational Rehabilitation - $180.00
Worksource Oregon (Tillamook) $360.00 $395.00
TOTAL $75,971.50 $38,316.54

Page 26 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

@lﬁﬁi@% i ﬁ ' N

102



Tillamook County Tran'sp:oriuﬁ;an: District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Sunset Empire Transportation District

The Sunset Empire Transportation District provides fixed-route, paratransit, and dial-a-ride service
to Clatsop County. Fixed routes serve Astoria, Warrenton, Seaside, and Cannon Beach. Fixed-
route service runs seven days a week. Paratransit service operates within three-quarters of a mile
of fixed-route service, while dial-a-ride service is limited to the Jeffers Mills, Svensen, and Knappa
areas with a frip destination in either Astoria or Warrenton.

TCTD's Route 3 with service between Tillamook and Cannon Beach connects with Route 20
(Cannon Beach to Seaside) weekday service and Pacific Connector (Cannon Beach to Astoria)
weekend service. Both routes have a $3.00 one-way fare.

Lincoln County Transit

Lincoln County Transit provides deviated fixed route and dial-a-ride services seven days a week.
TCTD's Route 4 with service between Tillamook and Lincoin City provides access to Lincoln
County Transit's network across the county and along the coast to Newport and Yachats.

Yambhill County Transit

Yambhill County Transit operates 9 fixed-route bus lines Monday through Friday. Routes 5 and 7 in
Newberg are currently suspended. Yamhill County Transit offers paratransit and dial-a-ride in
Newberg and McMinnville. Yamhill County Transit connects with TriMet and Cherriots service.

TriMet

The Tri-County Metropolitan Transportation District of Cregon {TriMet) is the transit operator for
the Portland metropolitan area, which includes parts of Multhomah, Washington, and
Clackamas counties. TCTD's Route 5 service connects with TriMet in Washington County and
downtown Portland. TriMet is the largest transit operator in Oregon and provided more than 58
million boarding rides in Fiscal Year 2023 via 76 bus lines, five MAX light rail lines, and the Westside
Express Service (WES) commuter rail. TriMet offers 24-hour service on two routes (Line 20
Burnside/Stark and Line 57 TV Highway/Forest Grove), and service across the rest of the system is
generally available from 3:30 AM to 2:30 AM. Fares on TriMet are shown in Table 14 below. Fares
allow passengers to ride on any combination of TriMet services and the Portland Streetcar. The
Hop Fastpass card can pay for fares on TriMet routes by tapping the card to a Hop reader.
Transit fare is deducted from a passenger's Hop card account. If a 1-day pass or monthly pass is
met, no further fares are deducted from the Hop card account for that day or month.

Table 14, TriMet Fares

Fare Type 2%?;;2;’" 1-Day Pass | Monthly Pass
Aduli (ages 18-64) $2.80 $5.60 $100.00
Honored Citizen (ages 65+) / Youth (ages 7-17)! $1.40 $2.80 $28.00
LIFT Paratransit $2.80 - ~

! Honored Citizens also include people on Medicare, people with disabilities, and people who qualify based on income.
Children age ¢ and under ride for free with a paying passenger.

Page 27 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\|] /7R 1



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

LIFT is TriMet's shared-ride service for people who are unable to use regular buses or trains due to
a physicat or mental disability. Passengers must apply and be registered customers in order to
use LIFT. The LIFT service covers all locations within TriMet's service boundary that are three-
fourths of a mile of existing TriMet bus and light rail routes. Service is generally available from 3:30
AM to 2:30 AM daily, but it may differ in some parts of the TriMet Service District. Advance
reservation is required for all trips and must be made before 5:00 PM on the day before the frip.

The TriMet system provides connections to surrounding transit systems, including TCTD, C-TRAN,
Sandy Area Metro (SAM), South Metro Area Regional Transit (SMART), Columbia County Rider,
Canby Area Transit (CAT), Yamhill County Transit, Central Oregon Breeze, Northwest POINT,
Amtrak, and Greyhound.

Cherriots

Cherriots, which serves the Salem/Keizer region, provides seven day a week service on 28 local
and intercity bus lines. Cherriots also provides paratransit service within the entire Salem-Keizer
urban growth boundary, as well as dial-a-ride service within the Salem-Keizer urban growth
boundary, prioritizing medical appointments. A one-way full fare ride costs $1.60 on all routes,
and $3.00 on the 1X route for service to Wilsonville. Monthly full fare passes cost $45.00. A one-
way reduced fare ride costs $0.80, and a reduced fare day pass costs $1.50. Monthly reduced
fare passes cost $22.50.

Ride Connection

Ride Connection is a non-profit corporation that operates transit services in Washington County.
Ride Connection operates WestLink service between Forest Grove, Banks, North Plains, and
Hillsboro, providing connections to additional Ride Connection service, TriMet, and TCTD's Route
5 Coastliner service between Tillamook and Portland. Ride Connection also subsidizes trips
between Banks and North Plains and the Portland metropolitan area on TCTD Route 5 service.

Northwest POINT

The Oregon Department of Transportation operates four POINT routes across the state to provide
intercity transit service. The Northwest POINT route, between Portland and Astoria, provides twice
daily service, including stops in Cannon Beach and at the Sunset Transit Center in Beaverton.
TCTD’s Route 5 Coastliner service connects with the Northwest POINT route at both Sunset Transit
Center and Portland's Union Station, the terminus for both transit routes. TCTD's Route 3 connects
with the service in Cannon Beach. One-way fare varies from $3.50 to $18.00 depending on the
origin and trip length. Tickets are available for purchase at Amtrak's website, Union Station, or at
a variety of locations in Astoria and Seaside. The Cascades POINT route also connects at Union
Station, providing service along the I-5 corridor between Portland and Eugene.

Amtrak/Greyhound

Amirak runs three routes through Portland: Cascades service between Eugene and Vancouver,
BC, Couast Starlight service between Seattle and Los Angeles, and Empire Builder service
between Portland and Chicago. These three routes combine for eight daily arrivals and

Page 28 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

104




Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transporfation Plan

departures. TCTD's Route 5 Coastliner service serves Portland's Union Station, providing
connections between TCTD and Amtrak's broader service network.

Greyhound runs two routes through Portland: Los Angeles to Vancouver, BC, and Portland to
Denver. TCTD's Route 5 Coastliner service serves Portland’s Union Station, providing connections
between TCTD and Greyhound's broader service network.

Figure 7. Existing Transit Services Connecting to Tillamook County Transportation District
. Astoria

}'. [l O s T 0
F.Seaside - \}

&
pT: . -
' B e -
[ ~ Portlands. = v
Tilamodk \ _x:__i_i-.._t._';.‘g;; :
i j.f_ :
ﬂ‘_l -

Transit Providers k

- Amtrak

= , em Tilamook County
{ \n? { T “l&\"" i Transportation District
A" . RN Ride Connection
Lo : / ~ WestLink
|
)

/ Sunset Empire
} Transportation District

Newport | . ._ ' [ NorthWest POINT

J i Yamhill County Transit

Corvallis ) )

f ! E Lincoln County Transit

| . 8 |
|

/ | N = TriMet

i ——— Cherriots

0 ) 25 Miles o o D e e
f— 1 gy 3 “ ' Esrl, HERE. Garmin_ () CpenStreetMap contributors and the GISiiser
T J J Forimunity =

Page 29 | Kiftelson & Associates, Inc.

105




Tilamook County Transportation Disirict Coordinated Transportation Plan

STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH

Stakeholder involvement is essential for a successful Coordinated Transportation Plan. Engaging
the appropriate organizations and individuals in this planning efforts is critical to identifying the
needs of the target populations, the public tfransportation resources available, local context,
and prioritization of strategies.

This section summarizes responses to the provider survey to inventory transportation services in
Tillamook County, provider interview summary, stakeholder workshop feedback, and TCTD
Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) feedback.

Inventory Survey

The inventory survey was published online for distribution to all known transportation providers
within the TCTD service district. The goal was to better understand the populations served,
vehicle assets, frip costs, and needs for service improvements. The survey had 18 responses, with
nearly half of the respondents representing non-profit human service agencies. The remaining
respondents represented advocacy organizations, faith-based organizations, local public
agencies, and other groups:

»  Non-profit human services agencies (8)

»  Advocacy organizations (4)

n  Faith-based organizations (2)

»  Local public agencies (2)

n  Youth fransportation providers (1)

»  Public community college (1)

»  Hospitals/health services (1)

% Private for-profit fransportation providers (1)

NOTE: Some organizations identified as multiple types from the list above.

The first survey question asked each respondent what population they serve. Of the 17
respondents who answered this survey question, 15 (88%) indicated they serve low-income
populations. Additionally, persons with disabilities, older adults, and persons with limited English
proficiency were commonly identified as key groups served by the surveyed agencies and
organizations (Figure 8).

Regarding fransportation needs in the second question, 65% of agencies/organizations reported
employment frips as a top requirement. More than half also cited medical or dental
appointments as frequently needed. In addition to these primary needs, survey participants
commenly mentioned fransportation for grocery shopping, social service visits, and other daily
errands (Figure 9).

Page 30 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\1/ /7R e



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Figure 8. What populations do you serve?

@ Persons with low-income

100% ) .
B Persons with physical
- disabilifies
" i Older adults or Seniors
=
80% B Persons with limited English
proficiency
o
" 70% ® Persons with developmental or
= cognitive disabilities
O 0%
g B Homeless
Q ates)
% 50% 2 Youth {18 or younger)
224
S 40% B Students
5 |
|
30% i s Veterans
20% 1 B People in recovery from
:J substance abuse
10% 1 A B People with chronic medical
\ needs
0% | E Tribal members

Figure 9. Where do your clients have the greatest need for transportation?

Employment

Social service appoiniments

Grocery shopping |
Vocational rehabilitation

Job training
Elder/Senior services ' |
Food bank
Education

Work Source appointments
RecIeoﬁon

Coué’f appointments
Communi’ry events

Childcare

Other
Banking ‘

Drug/Alcohol Treatment |

_ | | | | | |

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

% of Respondents

Page 31 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

\2s. o



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan:

The top three commonly cited transportation challenges faced by targeted disadvantaged
populations include lack of resources to afford services, absence of late evening options, and
service access barriers due to lack of permanent addresses (Figure 10).

Figure 10. What are the main transportation challenges your clients face?

EE————_—_—_—_——_————————— )N cffordable transportation services
.\ |dte evening service
AEEEEEEEEE—— | ack of permanent address prevents access
EEEEEEEEEE—. [xcessively long transit times
EEE—. | ocal routine trips inaccessible by transit
EEE—— Restricted eligible trip purposes

IEsEeeeeeee————  |Nsufficient accessible vehicles

EEE—————————— No weekend service

e Other

— Difficulty making demand response reservations

I————— Strict eligibility for paratransit and special services
E—— Bus stops not close to residences and destinations
I Neced companions/caregivers when traveling

e | ack of understanding how to use transit

Im————— naccessible bus stop pathways for mobility devices

2 4 6 8 10 12
Number of Repondents

(]

To address the transportation needs and challenges of disadvantaged populations they serve,
the majority of agencies and organizations surveyed (11) choose to provide or to fund
transportation services and programs. Regarding specific service types offered, five agencies
noted providing demand-response services. Six agencies indicated they offer some
combination of program transportation, fixed-route service, or non-emergency medical
fransportation (see Table 15).

In addition to directly providing or contracting transportation services, many agencies and
organizations opt to fund other forms of transportation assistance. For example, eight surveyed
respondents indicated they fund transit tickets or passes, while five fund gas vouchers. The most
commonly identified sources of funding for these transportation services included federal funds,
state funds, grants, and private donations (see Table 14).

Page 32 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

«zﬁ.&@ ﬁ ﬁiﬁf‘& 108



“amnww

*DUJ 'S8IDIDOSSY R UOS|alIy | €€ ebod

109

uoiolIgoysy
[DUODOOA
juswppdad

S2ll0d FO0WD|IL
UyoINyD BUSIDZDN
A00WIDJ|IL

absajjon
AlunwiuwioD

Apg joowpjj]
abupby) jo sapli
Uyd1nyoD 2lIoUInsD
DS oy} Aq AIDW S
92D|d SAWWDS
ERIINERS

IXO] OYIODd

Jupg poo4 uobaliQ
DIDJIOM

PIyD - SHAO

Juogd

poo4 AJUNo0D YUON
winIbOId uolIsuDl]
UiNoA |Oo0Yds

UBIH SIN-YO¥-YoaN
ou|

‘JoJusd S| SUOW
AlJusay

spupH Buidiay
JIVD

A00WD|IL

= UHOOH {SHUSADY

HoNDHeCsDN Sfigdsay ajnoy-pax sopr .. sop spun sSSP SAPIA
winiboid -pubwiag NoY¥-pPaxH puny §,usaoq Pl spund P sepiAoid ;

_ uoypziuobi
£5901AI9S uoyppodsupij L 9

apiaoid Ajjoalip uoypziunbio InoA seoqg
$32jAIaS uoljppodsupi) - spuapuodsay AdAINS ‘G| 3|qp]

iapiaoid noA op $921A188 uolppodsuniy jo sadA} JIBUm

upjd uojbpodsupi] pajouIpIcoD I21sIa :o:uroa.m_:u: Ajuno?d oowbij|iL




iy

DU ‘S9IDIDOSSY g LOS|SU | € oBbd

110

uoyoyqoysy
[DUOHDDOA
Juswiundad
82]|0d JoowD||iL
y2InyD SUSIDZDN
J00WD||iL

abogj0D
AllunwiwioD

Aog yoowj|iL
abupby) Jo sepi)
yainyd 2Jloyibd
pas sy} Aq ADW JS

I - 22D|d S,AWLIWDS
[ERINEN

IXD| JHiIdDd

yupg poo4 uobalo

SIDJIBM

pIy>S - SHAO

quog

pPO0o4 AJUNOD YUON
wpIB0Id UOIHISUDI]
YINoA [00YDS

YBIH SIN-YO3-YDaN
gell]

19]uUaD S SUDW
Allusay

spupH BuidisH
F¥VO

Joowino|iiL

— YI{[OSH {SHUSADY

294D | sapIVY
suoypuo .
Buibipyd i G [9ADIY

{Papunj sa31A1as uoyppodsubij INOA 21D MOH iPpunj noA op sa2jAI9s uoyppodsupiy Jo adA} IDUM

buipung uoybpodsuni] - sjusapuodsay AdAINS 9| 3|qD]

upnjd uoljppodsupi] pabUIPI00D |ILYsIg uoyppodsupi] AJunoD HOowWD||iL




Tilamook County Transportafion District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Interview Summary

After completing the inventory survey, the project team followed up with specific organizations
for interviews. These were designed to better understand an organization’s specific
transportation needs and to ask follow-up questions based on answers provided in the survey.
Interviews were completed with the following individuals and organizations:

»n  Chad Holloway, Nestucca Valley Schooi District
»  Cindy Green, Marie Mills Center

»  Daniel Hettenbach, Pacific Taxi Services

»  Eric Swanson, Adventist Health Tillamook

»  Jamie Chambers, DHS Vocational Rehabilitation
»n  Julia Wentzel, Oregon Food Bank

»  Michele Wayne, CARE

While each organization had specific fransportation needs, there were several needs and
challenges that we common across multiple interviews:

»  Transporation Coordination Needs:

¢ Individudlized Transportation Services: Organizations expressed a need for
individualized transportation services tailored to specific client needs. These included
transportation for those with support needs, janitorial crews, or clients accessing rural
clinics.

¢ Access to Essential Services: Ensuring access to essential services like medicall
appointments, work opportunities, and extracurricular activities was a common
theme.

e Challenges with Public Transportation: Several organizations noted some difficulties
with existing public transportation options, including uncomfortable rides,
inconvenient schedules, and difficult to access locations.

¢ Collaboration with Partners: Coordinated plans emphasized coliaboration with
fransportation districts and other relevant organizations to address transportation
needs effectively.

»  Changes in the Last 5 Years:
¢ Increased Demand: Multiple organizations report an increase in demand for
transportation services, particularly individualized options for employment purposes.

»  Anticipated Challenges in the Coming Years:
e Empowering Individuals: Organizations aim to empower individuals to access
transportation independently, reducing reliance on staff. Challenges include
inconvenient bus schedules and locations.

»  Engagement in the Planning Process:
s Involvement of Stakeholders: Organizations suggest engaging various stakeholders,
including other service providers, community colleges, and participants, to gather
insights into transportation needs.

»  Impact of COVID-19 on Transportation Services:

Page 35 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\ W 0. 111



Tillamook County 'Tﬁ: nsportation District Coordinated Tra n‘sp;oﬂuﬁb n Plan

e Increased Needs: COVID-19 has increased fransportation needs, particularly for
essential services like medical appointments, housing, and employment.

Transportation Advisory Committee Presentation

On December 131, the project team held a stakeholder workshop with the TCTD Transportation
Advisory Committee (TAC) and other inferested parties in Tillamook County. The summary of
relevant plans, demographics, inventory of existing services and resources, draft goals and
objecftives, and draft needs were presented to stakeholders during a workshop. Key comments
and needs from the discussion are as follows:

»  The Marie Mills Center pursues grants to help meet needs for people with disabilities, and
the CTP provides a list of needs and strategies that they can use in their applications.

»  Thereis a specific need to improve driver fraining around working with developmentally-
disabled passengers.

»  There is a general need for TCTD to educate the public on how fo use fransit (e.g. not
knowing that exact fare is necessary). It is a challenge to effectively communicate.

»  There is not a lot of visible homelessness in the County, but anecdotally there are a fair
number of unhoused people who are couch-surfing. The south county area has a lot of
trailer parks with temporary residents that may not be captured in demographic data.

»  The draft needs cover many of the issues well, and that empowering individuals should
apply to everyone — doing this effectively will empower developmentally-disabled riders.

»  Most requests for rider assistance are coming from seniors, not people with disabilities.

»  The downtown fransit center is being renovated and will include a new dispatch center,
which will provide real-time travel information and in-person help.

»  TCTDis part of the Northwest Oregon Transit Aliance (NWOTA), a parinership between
five transit providers. The workshop group discussed if any other agencies, such as Yamhill
County Transit Authority, should be added in the future.

n  Thereis a need for drivers across all TCTD services, not just dial-a-ride.

»  Mobility management continues to be a need for TCTD.

The December 131 TAC meeting presentation in included in Affachment A.

TCTD Transportation Advisory Committee Presentation

On March 4t, the project team presented to the TCTD TAC. The presentation focused on the
plan’s strategies and prioritization. Key comments and needs from the discussion are as follows:

»  How some communities have more than 50 percent of their population who are seniors.

»  How the stakeholder outreach process informed some of the high-priority strategies (e.g..
more fixed-route bus service in North County, South County, and to the Port of Tillamook
Bay).

n  There are relatively few locations along OR 6 where there are radio blackouts, and those
are likely to be addressed soon. A bigger challenge is radio blackouts at more remote
places within Tillamook County.

The TAC voted to recommend adoption of the plan by the Board of Directors. The March 4th TAC
meeting presentation in included in Attachment B.

Page 36 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\ Hﬁ Ps. 112



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

These goals and objectives come from a variety of sources, including the 2016 coordinated
plan, previous transit planning efforts, and public outreach. The goals provide high-level
guidance for TCTD as the needs are met and the strategies are implemented, and the
objectives provide more specific detail to inform the plan goals. While goals #4 and #5 are
always relevant, they are included here to reflect the post-pandemic world where staffing
shortages are common at many fransit agencies and funding is more volatile than before.

GOAL 1: PROVIDE IMPROVED SERVICE TO MEET THE NEEDS OF ALL COMMUNITY
MEMBERS

Objective 1 A: Provide reliable fransportation for essential destinations, such as medical
needs, employment access, and social service appointments.

Objective 1B: Seek opportunities to expand dial-a-ride services for essential destinations
and for north county and south county residents.

Objective 1C: Address non-emergency medical transportation needs through coordination
with health providers, the Columbia-Pacific CCO, and other local
transportation providers.

GOAL 2: PROVIDE SERVICES THAT ARE EQUITABLE AND ACCESSIBLE TO ALL USERS

Objective 2A: Address the needs of all users, with a focus on seniors, low-income residents,
and people with disabilities.

Objective 2B: Provide more travel training, information assistance and referral services for
special needs populations through user-friendly and accessible educational
tools.

Objective 2C: Improve marketing of services and education across fransportation service
arecs.

Objective 2D: Listen to TCTD's riders and work to implement improvements based on rider
feedback.

GOAL 3: GROW RELATIONSHIPS WITH LOCAL AND REGIONAL PARTNERS

Objective 3A: Expand voucher options for partner organizations, where possible.

Objective 3B: Listen to the needs of all partner agencies and, to the best of TCTD's ability,
work with these agencies to identify solutions.

Objective 3C: Coordinate with other transit providers and jurisdictions to ensure that transit
users can fravel seamlessly within Tilamook County and beyond.

GOAL 4: SEEK STABLE FUNDING SOURCES TO SUSTAIN SERVICE LEVELS AND OFFER
AFFORDABLE TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS FOR PEOPLE WHO NEED IT

Objective 4A: Seek out funding from a wider variety of sources.

Objective 4B: Review fares annudally to ensure that farebox recovery and equity objectives
are being met.

Page 37 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ (/7N e



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Objective 4C: Focus on daily administrative and maintenance needs to ensure smooth
operations.

GOAL 5: RECRUIT AND RETAIN STAFF TO BE ABLE TO PROVIDE RELIABLE SERVICES
Objective 5A: Continue investing in fraining resources so that staff contribute to the District's
positive image.
Objective 58: Create a more robust and formal training program for non-emergency
medical fransportation drivers to provide stretcher transportation service.

Objective 5C: Maintain a good relationship with the union and ensure a positive work
environment,

Page 38 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ \ l,’lg "



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

NEEDS AND STRATEGIES

Developing a comprehensive and updated needs assessment is an important part of the
Coordinated Plan planning process. The Coordinated Plan focuses on the fransportation needs,
gaps and challenges specific to seniors and people with disabilities. The Coordinated Plan will
identify strategies intended to address these needs.

Needs Assessment

The needs assessment was developed using demographic analysis, stakeholder outreach, and
through a survey of transportation providers, social service agencies, and other organizations.

The needs and associated strategies are split into five categories: fransportation services,
coordination and organization, marketing/customer service/outreach, technology, and capital
and funding.

TRANSPORTATION SERVICE NEEDS

n  Wider fixed-route bus service spans
¢ More evening and weekend service on Route 1: Town Loop
e Befter connect with Route 3: Tillamook-Manzanita-Cannon Beach to connect with
Sunset Empire Transportation District after their bankruptcy
e Expanded service on Route é: Port of Tillamook Bay
¢ Expanded geographic scope of service into outlying and rural areas of Tillamook
County

n  More connectivity to services and employment and increased service geographic
scope and route connectivity
e Social service connections, such as local food banks, destinations around the Port of
Tillamook Bay, Marie Mills Center, and other providers.
e Destinations for seniors and people with disabiiities, such as senior centers, disability
organizations, etc.
o Identifying ways to get more people to use deviated route services where possible

»  Expanded dial-a-ride including door to door, daily service to popular locations and same

day service

¢ Improved first- and last-mile connections connecting to the fixed-route service
network

¢ Expanded NW Rides services to provide stretcher service for Medicaid and private
pay clients

»  Non-emergency medical fransportation (NEMT) trips throughout Tillamook County,
including affordable service for residents who don't qualify for Medicaid.

»  Increased independence for intellectually- and developmentally-disabled populations
within Tillamook County.

»  Travel training for riders and for bus drivers
o Specific emphasis on working with intellectually- and developmentally-disabled riders

n  Improved accessibility at the Senior Citizens Center at 4th Street and Stillwell Avenue

Page 39 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ /7R T



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

»  Building out the sidewalk network around bus stops

COORDINATION AND ORGANIZATION NEEDS

»  More coordination with public transit agencies, social service providers, employers, and
other organizations

n  Expanded Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA) to include dial-a-ride, paratransit,
and NEMT

»  Evaluation of NWOTA's current size and whether the alliance could be expanded

»  Increased driver fraining, especially for intellectually- and developmentally-disabled
riders

»  Additional North County and South County representation in TCTD decision making

»  Interal coordination to provide travel information for passengers at the newly-
remodeled downtown Tillamook transit center

»  Coordinating transportation efforts with early childhood programs and school districts in
Tillamook County

MARKETING, CUSTOMER SERVICE, AND OUTREACH NEEDS

h Increased fransit service marketing through traditional media, social media, TCTD Rider
Guide and online

»  Additional marketing of the NWOTA website to help increase region-wide transit options

n  Working with NWOTA on additional cross-agency trip coordination (e.g., integrated
schedules, tickefs and passes)

n Meeting with transit planners at other agencies to coordinate services

»  Marketing with partner agencies (social service providers, medical facilities, school
districts, etc.) fo better understand individual and group transportation needs

»  Travel fraining for intellectually- and developmentally-disabled aduits on TCTD services

TECHNOLOGY NEEDS
»  Two-way radio blackouts along Highway 101, at more remote locations within Tillamook
County, along OR 6, and in Portland
» No Wi-Fi available on buses

CAPITAL AND FUNDING NEEDS
h  Ongoing fransit fleet maintenance, as well as planning for replacement vehicles
% Additional drivers for all services, and additional dial-a-ride vans
»  Reduced-fare options for seniors, people with disabilities, and low-income people
»  Affordable transit options for people traveling on longer distance trips between counties
or on more limited service routes
»  Maintaining fare subsidies and bus pass vouchers for partner organizations

Strategies

The sTrotegies presented below are intended to address the identified fransportation needs for
seniors and persons with disabilities. This is an important element of the Coordinated

Page 40 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\|///R e



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Transportation Plan in that it responds to federal planning reqguirements; in addition, it provides
an opportunity to document regional service priorities as well as to identify lead entities
responsible to implement them.

TRANSPORTATION SERVICE STRATEGIES

n  Expand fixed route bus service to include more mid-day, evening, and weekend trips,
focusing on routes to North County, South County, and the Port of Tilamook Bay.
»  Improve connections between fixed routes, deviated fixed routes, and dial-a-ride
services to social services locations.
»  Dial-A-Ride
¢ Increase dial-a-fide availability through additional vans, drivers, scheduling software
optimizations, and extended service hours.
¢ Confract with fransportation providers to offer subsidized on-demand rides for seniors,
people with disabilities, and agency clients. Determine if other providers (e.g., taxi
companies) can help serve medical trips that fravel outside of Tillamook County.
¢ Allow reservations through the fransit agency.
e Market NW Rides as a county-wide transportation service and Diai-A-Ride services as
a single zone system to eliminate customer confusion.
¢ Expand NW Rides to accommodate private pay clients and stretcher service.

h o Implement deviated fixed route pilots to provide flexible first/last mile connections.

n  Monitor deviated fixed route services near facilities serving special needs populations
throughout Tillamook County to ensure that the populations are being served.

n  Improve service for those in the intellectually- and developmentally-disabled community
for all types of services, including employment, medical, shopping, and other trip types.

n  Contract with non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) providers to offer
subsidized rides for seniors and people with disabilities.

n  Improve accessibility between the transit center/fixed routes and the Senior Citizens
Center.

» Improve access to areas around social services and medical facilities.

n  Develop travel fraining programs and tools to educate the public on using services.

h  Improve coordination with Sunset Empire Transportation District to maintain timed
transfers in Manzanita and Cannon Beach as they rebuild their service.

»  Review opportunities fo provide transportation services that best connect residential and
employment locations.

INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGIES

n  Continue to enhance reduced fare subsidy programs and/or vouchers to encourage
ridership among special needs populations.

n  Create areplacement schedule of existing buses as they reach the end of their useful
fife, as well as possible fleet expansion to accommodate service growth. The fleet plan
should address the types of vehicles (e.g. medium-sized for fixed route services, mini-vans
or small buses for DAR) to be purchased.

»  Add more signage {especially along deviated routes), fare information, how to ride
directions, and benches at bus stops.

Page 41 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

ﬁ*‘xﬂﬁ&k% mgfifﬁ& "



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

»  Provide shelters at stations with large numbers of boardings or at places where a specific
population may need a shelter. These could include Goodspeed Park, Cloverdale,
Oceanside, etc.

n  Provide a bus stop sign and pole at the converted flag stops along Route 3 through
Rockaway.

COORDINATION AND ORGANIZATION STRATEGIES

»  Organize meetings between transit planners to coordinate services.

n  Create programs for employers to purchase bus passes for their employees.

»n  Enhance coordination between TCTD, local partners, employers, adjacent fransit districts,
local fransportation providers, and local jurisdictions.

» Increase coordination with public transit agencies, CARE, Marie Mills Center, Sammy's
Place, social service providers, employers, and other organizations.
e Identify gaps in wheelchair accommodations for partner organizations.

n - Work with the NWOTA to better serve medical frips through NW Rides and dial-a-ride in
locations that are not as well covered (e.g. Lincoln County).

»  Add diverse rider representatives to advisory committees informing service changes.

n  Create mobility management best practices for staff at downtown transit center once
the remodel is complete.

»  Improve coordination with fransit agencies in the greater Portland Metro area.

»n  Continue coordinating efforts with early childhood programs in Tillamook County and
with school districts.

»n  Work with fribal government to develop rural transit options.

»  Explore adding other transit agency to NWOTA (e.g. Yamhill County Transit Area).

MARKETING, CUSTOMER SERVICE, AND OUTREACH STRATEGIES

n  Collaborate with social service agencies, medical facilities, school districts and other
organizations to coordinate client tfransportation.

»  Enhance customer service and disability awareness fraining for all partner staff, with
focus on assisting intellectually- and developmentally-disabled riders.

»  Continue to invest in driver training programs and provide driver sensitivity training for
people with mental disabilifies.

»  Confinue to publish all new materials in Spanish.

»  Continue building a comprehensive marketing program.

»  Improve transit service marketing through multiple channels.

»  Publicize the NWOTA website to promote region-wide transit options.

»n Work within NWOTA to further coordinate services, technology, and resources (e.g.
targeted marketing, integrated schedules, payment/pass systems).

»  Improve customer service support and promote awareness of the services provided
online and on-paper.

TECHNOLOGY STRATEGIES

n  Upgrade website to include additional features, such as links to a Facebook page
and/or Twitter feed; a trip planner; information on news, events, and rider alerts; and the

Page 42 | Kittelson & Associates, inc.

A\, "8



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

ability for riders to provide input about the system, through a dynamic system map or
comment form.

n  Upgrade radio systems and address radio blackouts along Highway 101 and throughout
Tillamook County.

»  Install public Wi-Fi at fransit centers.
»  Pursue grant funding for Wi-Fi on buses.

CAPITAL AND FUNDING STRATEGIES
»n  Continue transit fleet maintenance programs and vehicle repiacement plan.
n  Hire drivers to expand on-demand and paratransit services across NWOTA.
1 Implement reduced fares for seniors, people with disabilities, students, and low-income
people.
»  Provide discounted monthly passes between counties and limited-service areas.

Page 43 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\|/ /7R e



Tilamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

The strategies in this Coordinated Transportation Plan have been scored using three evaluation
criteria outlined below.

Evaluation Criteria

The evaluation criteria for these strategies focuses on the costs and benefits, ease of
implementation, and group(s) served, or needs met. These criteria are established af the
following scales:

n  Costs - High-level estimated costs considering the scale of implementation.
o $:Less than $25,000 annually
s $%:$25,000 to $75,000 annually
o $3%: Greater than $75,000 annually

n  Difficulty of Implementation — Considers whether the strategy can be implemented
quickly and with iittle complication, beyond costs to implement.
* Low: Infrastructure, staff, and other resources are already in place
o Medium: Some infrastructure, staff, and other resources are in place, but more will
need to be obtained
e High: No infrastructure, staff, or other resources are in place

n  Group(s) Served/Needs Met — Considers how many of the following groups benefit from
this strategy: Low-income populations, people with disabilities, youths, older adulits,
racial/ethnic minority, zero-vehicle households, households with Limited English
proficiency, veterans, and employees.

o @:Fewer groups served or needs met
v @ Many groups served or needs met

Page 44 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

a\“ l’ bo. 120



= B W 2
. W
\ I _._.HHM. v

=

*DU| ‘S8IDIDOSSY g UOS|ay | 6 eBDd

|

wnipaw

suolpjndod spsau jpioads Buowp diysiepu
abDINODUD Of SISYDNOA JO/pUD SWDIBoid APISQNS 8104 PSONPSI SDUDYUS O} SNUU0D

mﬂ.u:.m Em.*u?__w.m::_

"SUOKDDO] JusulAo|dws puo

MOT ® wnipaw $
|DILUBPIS] }OBUUOD (58] DY} $92IAI95 Uolppodsupi) apiacid o} saijunpoddo maiasy
"9DIAIBS 2B} PINgal Ay} SD YdDag UOUUDD) U SI9JSUDI)

Mo (D) winipaw $
paWl} UIDUIDW 0f 12ULsIq uoippodsund) aadulg Jasuns YiMm uolpuIplood sAcidu]
wnipaw ® wnipaw S$ *s@olAes Buisn uo ognd sy} 810oNPa 04 5100} pup swpibold Buiuiply j9ADI} dojaasq
wnipaw ® ybiH $S "SaIIIOD4 |ODIPBUI PUD S8DIAISS [DIDOS PUNOID SDBID O} SS802D JA0IAW]
BusD

wnipaw © wnipaw N
SUSZIJID JOIUSS BY} PUD SBIN0I PaXI/idIuad JISUDI} Y} U9amad AH|I0IssaD00 aAoidul
SSIIIgPSIP Yim ajdoad pub SIOIUSs IO} sapil PazIpISgns

wnipaw © wnipaw ss
134140 04 s1apiroid (IWIN) uolDLOdSUDI) [DIIPAW ASUSBISWS-UOU YHIM JODIUOD)
sodA} dug Jayjo
wnipaw ') wnipaw SS pup ‘Buiddous ‘[paipsw ‘JuswiAo|dws Buipnoul ‘S8DIAISS JO SadA} ||D 10f AHIUNWIWOD
pajgpsip-AlpiuswdojeASP pUD -A|IDNIO3)I2}Ul BU} Ul 8S0Y] JOj 9DIAISS aA0IdW|
‘paAtds Buieq aip suolpindod syl {pY} 3INSUS 0} AJUNOD JoowDli] tnoybBnoayt

wnipaw ()] wnipaw S
suolp|ndod spasu |pioads BuiAIas SaIIOD}) JDSU S8IIAISS 3JN0I POXI) PBIDIASP JOHUOW
wnpaw ® ybiH N "SUOIOBUUOD 3i 1SD|/}SIl) B|qIXa]} SpIAoId O} s10JId 81N0J PaXi} PaIDIASD jusws|du|
ybiy ® ybiy $$8 "$9DIAISS pupdxa pup aAcidul ‘AID[IDAD 85D3aI0uUl :8PIY-Y-PIq
*SUOIIDD O] S8DIAIBS |DIDOS Of SBDIAIBS

y6iH ® ybIH $s
SPU-D-|DIP PUD ‘S9}N0J PaXY} PBIDIABP ‘S91N0J PBX]} USSMIBJ SUOIIDBUUOD SA0IdWI)
‘ADg YOOWDJ|i] JO HOd 8} PUD “‘AJUNOD) UYNOS ‘AJUNOD YPON O} s84nod Uuo Buisnoo
ubIH F YBIH §8$ o ' |

‘sdi} pUS3eOM PUD ‘BUIUSAS ‘ADP-PIW 810W 3PNDUL Of 8DIAISS SNQ 94N0J PAXY PUDAXT

121

salbajpls 9diAIas no__u_‘_oam:aw_.

19N SPaaN
/PaAias sdnois

ABajpis

sayuoud pup sa1624oxs */ | 3oL

up|d Uoyppodsuniy pajpUIPI00? J21ISI] UOYDHOSUD)




DU| ‘SIDID0SSY ¥ Uos|auD | 9 aBnd

AN
AN
—
"S}OLYSIP [OOY DS UM
E) wnipa
SRS O i s$ puD AJUNOD Yoowp(jiL Ui swoiboid pooyp|iyd AUDS yiim SHOYHS Bulibuiplood snuliuoD
wnjpaw ® wnipaw S ‘'DAID OlBW PUD]LO J81paib 8y} Ul $a10uUsBD JISUDLL YlIM UOPUIPIO0D aAcIdwj
"249|dWwioD §| [BpOoWal 8y} 90U0
wnipaw ® Mo S
12JU8D JISUDI} UMOLUMOP D JDJS 10§ saoijop.d Jsaqg fuswabouniu Ajigow 88D
ybiH ® Mo $ saBuUDYD 821A19S BUILLLIO)UI S8BJILULIOD AIOSIAPD O} SSA|JDIUSSSIdS] ISPU SSISAIP PPY
‘(AjunoD ujoour
ybiy @ wnipaw S 69} PAISAOD [|]BM SD JOU BID DU} SUOLDIO| Ul SPL-D-|DIP PUR $aply MN Ybnouayy sduy
IDOIPBW BAIBS J8148q O} (VIOMN) 8DUDIffy JisUpi] UOBSIO §SOMUHON SUL YHM JIOM
suUolPZIUDBIO IBYLO PUD ‘SisAo|dws ‘SISpIACId 8DIAISS
ybIH ® wnipaw $
|DID0S “IBIUBD S| SUDW ‘JY VD ‘SeIousbD jsupl) oignd YHm UuoyDuIpIooD 8sDaou|
"SUOHDIPSKUN] [PD0] PUD ‘S1ISPIACI UOIDHOASUDIY [0D0] ‘SIOUISID
ybiH @ wnipaw $
HisupJy JUs2DIPD ‘sivAojdwsa ‘sisuppd [PDO] ‘g1D] USSMISJ UOIDUIPIOOD 82Upyul
ybiIH ) Mo X ‘soaAojdwa Iy} 104 sasspd sng aspyoind o} sisAojdws Joy swpibold ajosi)
ybiH ® Mo $ ‘S9DIAIDS B1DUIPIO0D 04 sisuuD|d Jisupiy usamiaq sBultesw sziubBIO

"ADMDYD0Y

Mot O wnjpaw 3
ubBnouys ¢ a1noy Buojp sdoys Boyy papaAuod sy} o sjod puo ubis doys snq D 8pIACId
‘D8 ‘BpISUDaD ‘S|DPISACID
wnjpaw ') wnipsw $$ HDd paadspoos) apn|oul pjNoD 85a8Y] "Isldys b pasu Abw uolpindod oyioads
D aiaym saop|d D Jjo sBuipinog Jo siaquunu abinj Yjim SUOIDYS D S18}aUs apiaold
-sdojs sNqg JD $8YDUSQ PUD ‘SUOIDIIP

wnipaw @ wnipayy 3
SPU O} MOY ‘UOHDULIOJU] 1D} ‘(S9N0I pajpIAsp Buojp Alpioadss) aBpubis siow ppy
‘pasoysind 8q 04 (Y 10} $8SNQ |IDWIS JO SUDA-IUIL ‘$S8DIAI8S
9]N0J paxy 10] pazZis-uwinipaul .O.mv S9[DIYLBA JO me\ﬁ SYJ sSaIppb pjnoys C_U_Q 199[}

ybiH4 @ wnjpaw S

9U] "Y}MmoiB 9DIAI8S 3]0POUWLIODDD O} UCISUDAXS 183} 8]qissod SO [|om SO ‘8] |njasn

119y} JO pud 3y} yooai Ay SO sasng Bulsixa Jo S|npayos jJuswadn|dai b 8)081D

W SpaaN | uoypjuawajdwj

/paniag sdnois jo Aynoiia ABajpus

up|d uoyppodsuDi] PajpUIPI002 §aiisiq UoypHodsUDI] AJUnoD 3oouwDiji]




DU| ‘SOIDIDOSSY ¥ UOSIaHD | /i DDy
MO1 @ winipaw $ S9SN UO I4-IM 104 Buipuny jupib ansing
MoT7 @® winipaw $s "SI2JUSD {ISUDI |D 13- M Dljand [|ojsul
*ALUNOD YoowDjji| tnoyBnoiy

winipaw ® wnipaw $S

puo (01 ApmybBiH Buojp 5iN03DDIY OlpRJ SSBIPPD PUD SWajsAs oippJ sppibdn
*LUIOJ JUSWIWOD Jo dow
WIBSAS DILUIDUAP D yBnouy} ‘walsAs sy} jnogo yndul apiaoid oy s1opu 1oy APIgo sy
HBIH ® mel $ PUD ‘SUB|0 I8P PUD ‘S{USAS ‘SMaU U0 uolbuwloyUl Jauup|d du) D (pes) 18lim] 10/pun
abDd 300geoD] D O SHUI| SO YDNS ‘SBINIDSY JOUOIPPD 8pn|oul 0f S{sgem appibdn

.mm_c:.w.»mo_o:mwa 1

15dod-uo pup suluo

wnipaw ) mo7 $
paplAcid S8DIAISS BY} O S58UIDMD ajowioid pup poddns S21AI8S JSWOISND SA0IdW)
*(swieysAs sspd/juswind ‘sajnpayos pajpibaiul ‘Bulispw pajebing
wnipaw ) wnipaw s 5 .

B 8} s82IN0sal puD ‘ABOJOUYDS} ‘SBDIAISS S}DUIPIOOD JSYUNY OF VIOMN UIYHM HOM
wnipaw © Mmo] S ‘suoljdo Jisupi} spim-uolBal ajowold O} SHsgeMm YIOMN Su} 9zioijand
wnipaw ® wnipaw g "slpuUDYD ajdignw ybBnoiy} Buljadpu 921AISS JIsupi) 9A0IdW)
wnipaw ) wnipaw $ ‘winJboid Bulladiow aAisusayaidwod b Buiping anuiuo)

ybiy ') MO $ *YSIUDdS Ul SPLSIDW M3U || ysiignd of anuijuod
"SSYIIGOSIP [DjUSW Yiim o|dosd

ubIH © MoT s
10} BUIUIDL} AHAISUSS ISALD 9pIAcId puD suupiBoid Buluioi) JISAUP Ul 1SSALI Of SNUIIUOD
*SI9pU Pa|qpSIP-AlIDiUusWIdOIBASP pUD -Ajionjoajiaul BulysiSSo UO SN0y

ybiy O Mo S
D Yl ‘4Dis Jouund [jo J0) BuluIDl) SSaUSIDMD ALIGDSIP PUD 82JAISS J8UIOISND 82uUDyu]
‘UOYDHOdSUDI} JUBID 8}DUIPIO0D 0} suoypzZIUDBIo

YBIH @ wnipawy 3

MO7

MOT]

JOU40 PUD SPOLISID [00YDS ‘SOIIIOD] [DIIPSW ‘S8I0USBD 9IAISS [DID0S UM 810I00D||10D

(Dauy fIsupi] AUNoD JiYywo A "B a) YIOMN O} Aousbo yisupiy 1ayjo Bulpppo a10|dxg

Mo

Ayond

|aW spasN
/paa1ag sdnois

*suoldO HSUDIL [DINI AOIBASPD Of JUSLWIUISACD (DAL YIIM HIOM

ABajpois

up|d UoyppodsuDI] PAJBUIPIOOD §IHIs|Q UoyPHOdsUDI] AjUnoD }oowWDijjL

123




L1\

goll)

‘

S9JDIDOSSY g UoS|ay | 8y obDd

wnipow © wnipaw NS *SDID 9DIAISS-PB}iW| PUD SSI{UNOD USaM}aQ sasspd AlLUOW PajuUNODSIP SpPIACId
4BIH ° ipaly " ‘a|doad swoou)
~MO| PUD ‘SjUSpPNJs ‘SaljiigpsIp UM a]doad ‘SIoluas 10} $8ID) padnpal juswajduj

ybiy ') ybiy $$ "VIOMN SSOLO0D S9DIAISS LISUDIDIOd PUD PUDWSP-UO PUDAXS O} SISALP alIH
ybI4 @ Mo7 $¢s up|d juswiaop|dal S|DIYSA PUD swpiboid 9oUDUSUIDW |93} HSUDIL SNUIUOD

Aguoud

/paaiag sdnoi jo Ajinana

sa|bajous Buipund v:u. jopdod

ABajpijs

upjd uoyopodsubi] PajPUIPIooD §21sia uoyppodsubil) AjunoD dHoowDjjiL

124




ation District Coordinated Transporfation Pian

This section will identify timeline and funding opportunities for the high-priority strategies. Table 18
shows the funding sources aligned to each strategy.

Table 18. Funding Sources

s
Q
g
=3

Funding

Source Description

Operating
Capital

| City/County Facilities
Marketing/Quireach

are dllocated to states, which then distribute them to regional
and local agencies for fransit planning. m_u . _
§5310: Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities I
Program. Formula funding for the purpose of meeting the
fransportation needs of seniors and people with disabilities. X X X
ODOT dllocates state 5310 funds to rural areas via local STF '
|_agency and may reserve for discretionary programs.
§5311: Federal Transit Administration's Rural Area Formula ‘
Program. Formula funding to small cities and rural areas with
populatfions of less than 50,000 for transit capital, planning, and
operations, including job access and reverse commute projects. X X X
|
|

§5304: Non-Metropolitan TroporTo’rin F’Ioning Grant. Funds ' ‘

Funds are distributed to providers through ODOT. Additionally, no I
Federal Transit | less than 15 percent of funds must be spent on the development |
Administration | and support of intercity bus transportation, unless the intercity
(FTA) Grants bus needs of the state are being adeguately met.

§5339: Funding for small urban and rural areas, as well as transit
agencies in large urban areas, to replace, rehabilitate, and
purchase buses and related equipment and to construct bus-
related facilities.

Other: The FTA periodically releases additional funding
opportunities. In 2019, the FTA released the Integrated Mobility
Innovation opportunity, providing $15 million for demonstration
projects focused on Mobility on Demand, Strategic Transit
Automation Research, and Mobility Payment Integration. For
FY20, the FTA also announced the Mobility for All Pilot Program to
invest in mobility options that connect older adults, individuals
with disabilities, and people with low incomes to jobs, education,
| and health services.

Formula funds for expanding access to jobs, improving mobility,
relieving congestion, and reducing greenhouse gas emissions,
while providing a special focus on low-income populations. STIF
funds may be used for public transportation purposes that
support the operations, planning, and administration of public
transportation programs and may also be used as the local
maftch for state and federal grants.

Statewide
Transportation
Improvement
Fund (STIF)

e 90 percent of STIF funds are distributed to Qualified Entities
(TCTD)

e 5 percent of STIF funds are available via discretionary grants
for flexible funding. |

e 4 percent of funds are available via discretionary grants for
projects enhancing intercommunity services and the
statewide transit network.

Page 49 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

125




Funding
Source

|e 1percent of the funds are allocated for program

Coordinated Transportation Pla

Description

administration and a technical resource center.

Operating

City/County Facilities

Matrketing/Qutreach

Rural Veteran

This program, under ODOT, provides demand-response services,
providing veterans access to physical, mental, and/or
behavioral healthcare. Access is not limited to VA-authorized

.Ir‘{ealfhcare. health care facilities; access o services that contribute to a X
ransportation : . :
Grant (RVHT) veteran's vyell-bemg may be gccommodcﬁed as Yvell. This
program aims to focus its services to veterans but is open to
shared rides with civilians.
| Private/public sponsorships involve a private entity, such as a
local business owner, working with the public agency to fund a
Private/Public | project (e.g., bus stop shelter and sidewalk connection X X X
Sponsorships maintenance). In return for their investment in the community,
these business owners often have recognition for their role,
providing a marketing venue for the business.
Funds allocated to projects through a competitive grant
STIP Enhance | application process. Eligible projects include public fransit X
capital improvements.
Similar fo transportation system development charges but more
Multimodal focuse_d on improvemems to mul’rimoda'l tfransportation options.
Impact Fees If a TIF is established, the fixed-route service could work fo X
allocate a portion of funds toward transit-enhancing
| improvements,
Eligible projects include safety improvements that positively
affect the ability of children to walk and bicycle to school.
ODOT Safe Projects must be within a public road right-of-way, consistent
Routes to with jurisdictional plans, supported by the school or school X
School Grant | district, within a one-mile radius of a school, and able to be
Program constructed within five years of the application. Project
examples include sidewalks, median refuge islands, rapid
flashing beacons, etc.
| Discretionary grant program including initiatives such as
Innovative Mobility Grants, which ODOT is currently determining
a framework for, and Immediate Opportunity Grants of $5,000 or
less for qualified activities. Examples of eligible activities include:
gan.sporiclhon e Transportation-focused community events such as Open
ptions : X
Program Sfre'e}‘s., Bike Rodeos, e"rc. _ o
e Activities fo engage historically underserved communities in
active or multimodal transportation outreach or education
Purchase of items associated with bike and pedestrian safety
outreach, such as bicycle racks, helmets, locks, etc.
Rural This one-off ODOT funding opportunity seeks to support rural
Transportation | Communities in the following ways: X

Equity
Program

e Identifying and engaging underserved communities in rural
areas to provide transportation options, like bicycling,

Page 50 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

126



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

Funding

Description
Source P

Operating
Marketing/Outreach

City/Couniy Facilities

walking, and public transportation, in order to access to
critical services and destinations

e Building capacity within local governments to maintain
relationships and connections to underserved communities,
with a focus on including underserved groups in future
planning efforts

e Matching communities’ needs with outside funding
opportunities (i.e., federal and state programs and resources)
through strategic investment planning

In addition to these, roadway facility owners (cities, Tillamook County, ODOT) can pursue
walking and bicycling facility improvements through the following funds:

»  Surface Transportation Block Grants
n  State Highway Fund

»  Road Fund Serial Levy

»  Road Utility Fee

»  Vehicle Registration Fee

»  Local-Option Fuel Tax

n  Immediate Opportunity Funds

»n  All Roads Transportation Safety
»  General Fund

»  Transportation Development Tax
»  System Development Charges

»  Local Improvement District

n  Tax Increment Financing

»n  Urban Renewal Districts

Table 19 aligns the high-priority strategies to the relevant funding sources and identifies a
timeline for implementation and/or completion. The timeline is based on considerations such as
securing staff, vehicles, or other resources needed to implement the recommendation; whether
an activity is ongoing or a discrete task; and what other strategies need to be in place before
the strategy itself should be implemented. These timeframes represent the ideal implementation
timeline and are subject to the availability of resources such as funding, staff availability, vehicles
and facilities, and other factors.

Page 51 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

2 ¥ -, .y 'JI-I J:"'-I'f a 127
'S\ 11 Ef’ y &

F N




DUl 'SOIDIDOSSY B Uosiay | zG obod

e8]

AN

—
“{AjunoD ujooul] ‘6°8) PaIBADD [[BM SD JOU 8ID [y}
SIDBA G-0 X X X X SUOIIDDO] Ul SPU-D-|DIP PUD $aPIY MN YBnouuy sduj [ooIpaw 9AI8S
Jopeq o} (VIOMN) S2uDljjy 4i5sunlf uoBaiQ S8MYLON aYi YlM JIOM

- 4

A "suoDZIUDBIO 180 PUD ‘s19A0|dWS ‘s19PIACId 8DIAISS |DIDOS ‘IBIUSD
FROAES X X X X X SV SUDW ‘J¥ VD ‘s81ousbD JIsupd) DIIgNd Y{m UOHDUIPIO0D SSD8I0U|
‘suoOIPSUN|
SIDBA 7> X X X X |020] PUD ‘s19PIACId UoyDHOdSUDIL |DDO] ‘SIOUISIP HSUDIY {USDOD[PD
‘sisAojduwis ‘sioupnd [P20) ‘QLD1L USSMES UoHPUIPIO0D 8ouUDnyug
S ‘seaA0|dWwa
¢ X X X 118y} Joy sessod sng aspyoind o} sisAojdws 4oy stupiboud sjpaid
SIDBSA 7> X | X X *S@DIAISS 94PUIPIO0D 0} sieuupid jsupiy usamisq sbullsaw oziunbiQ

uOYPZIUDBIO PUD UOHDUIPIOOD

‘paspyaINd 9q Of (¥VQ JOJ S9SN |[BLUS IO SUDA
-IUIUL ‘S9DIAIDS 81N0J POXY 10} pazis-wnipaw 53} $8|0IUSA JO sadAl
SIDBA G-0 X X X X X 8y} ssalppo pinoys upid }a3)} U] "UiMOoIB 821AI8S 81DPOWLLIODOD

0} uoisupdxa [as)) a|qissod SD ||om SD ‘ayif [NJBSN JIBU} JO pus
a3y} yooai Asyy sp sasng Bulsixs Jo sjnpayos Juswsopidsl D 81oaID
“suolpjndod spaau [p1osds Buowp diysiapu 860INO0DUS O} SISYDINOA
ey X X | X X X X Jo/puD swpIBoid ApISQns a1p) PaONPal S2UDYUS 0} SNUIUOD

SIDBA G0 X _ X | X X X X '$92IAISS pupndxs pup aAoiduwl) ‘AllIADJIDAD 8SD8IDUI (:8PIYy-Y-DIg
= _ . *SUOI}DD0| $8DIAISS [DID0S O} S9DIAISS 9pPL-D-IDIP pubD
sIEeAG X X X X X X X X X 'S9}N0J PaXi} POIDIASP ‘S8JN0J PAXI USSMISJ SUOIOSUUOD aAoidw
r | *ADg YOOWID]|(] JO HOd 8Y} puD ‘AjUNOD

SID9A G0 X X X X X X X X Y4nog ‘AjunoD YUON O §83n01 uo Buisnooy ‘sduy puaieam pup
[ ‘BUIiUSAS ‘ADP-PIW 810Ul 3PN|OUl O} 3DIAISS SNQ 31N0J Pax|} pupdx3

wu_mu_uh*w mu_\.amw :o:armm.m:c:.

]
i
|
[
]
§

I
|
all
|
|
{
|

ABajois

wnibold Aunbg
yjppodsunif |pin
woibold suondo
uopppodsupi]
JupiS) jooyas o}
$3Jn0Yy 3ps 1040
jondwi| [ppowiinw
oubyuz Jiis
sdiysiosuods
24ANnd/SiPAld
6EES UOHOIS
L1€S Uoyoasg
0LES uoyoss
POES UOIDISS

uol

51004 Bulpuny S|qDJIDAY PUD $3163§01S AlioUd-YBIH "4 1 91901




*DU| ‘SOIDIDOSSY § UCSIonD | €6 8By

*9|doad SUIODUI-MO| PUD ‘S{USPNYs

sIDoA 2> X X _ X X X X ‘SOIIIDSIP Yim ajdoad ‘siojuss 1o} seipy PaINPSI juswaidul|
‘'VIOMN

sI094 §-0 X X X SSOIDD SSDIAISS JISUDIIDIOD PUD PUDWSP-UOC PUDAXS O} SISALD S4H
A ‘upjd juswsopidai
SIOSA §-0 X X X X X X 3JoIYaA puD swpiboid soUDUSUIDW |88}} {ISUDI} 8NUILUOD

SIDSA 7>

. m.u_mm_u.:w m:_m

ung

pup [ppdp2

“WLIO} JUBWIWIOD

10 doW UIB)SAS DILUDUAP D UBnoiu ‘wajsAs sy} inogp fndui
apinoid O} SiopU 10} AHIGD SY} PUD SUS|D 19PL PUD ‘SJUSAS ‘SMBU
Uo uolbuwIojul Jauupid duj D paa;) 1aiim] 10/pup abbd jooqeon4
D O} SHUI| SD YINS ‘S2INLD3J [DUOKIPPD 9pNdUl 0} 8jiIsgam spplbdn

SID2A 6O X X [ X | X ‘YSIUDAS Ul SIDUSIDW MU | ysijand o} anuijuod
m “SSIIOSID [DJUS LU Ujim 8|doad 10§ BUILIDL) APAISUSS
SI09A 2> X X X X X IBALP apiactd pup swpiboid BulUiDLy JSAUD Ul JSSAUI Of SNUILUOD
_ "siapu pa|gpsIp AllDjuswdolaAsp
SIDBAZ> | X X X X | X puD AJjonioa)aiul Buijsissp Uo SND0) D Yim ‘UDJs Jsupind
7 | 1D 403 BUIUID} SSBUSIDMD ALIGDSIP PUD 83IAJSS JSWOISND 9ouDyu]

. ‘UOKPLHOdSUDI JUSID 81DUIRIC0D O} SUOKPZIUDBIO JISUL0 PUD S}OLYS)
SID9A 6-0 X X X X X 7 X i} t. } {usl|o 8} .\b } suoiozl o p FOUsIP
JOOUDS ‘SDIIIOD) [DDIP3AW ‘SSI0UaBD 9DIAISS IDIDOS YHIM 81010gD||10D

SIDBA 7>

=
3
o
=
®

wniboid Ajinbg
uoyppodsuni] [piny

wniboid suoydo
uonppodsupiy

JunIo [00YIS 0}
$9{noy 3PS 10dO

jPpduwj ippowyiny

aoupyul JIus

sdiysiosuods
oHand/eAld

6EES Uoloas
LLES Uoldas

0lgs uoljoas

D ‘Buyyjiow

.m@@COEU OIS

ABajoys

129




Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

CONCLUSION

Transportation services play a key role in Tillamook County, connecting residents and visitors to
the places they need to go locally and regionally. Most imminently, this document can serve as
preparation for funding cycles, including STIF cycles, FTA grants, and Safe Routes to School
grants, that can help TCTD to implement recommendations and enhance transportation
services. Beyond that, the recommendations are intended to provide conceptual guidance to
be refined by TCTD, Tillamook County, and their partners as funding and partnership
opportunities become available.

While this document provides prioritized strategies and examples of how these would specifically
be implemented, the recommendations are a snapshot in time and may adjust to meet the
changing needs of the region.

Page 54 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\\|///78 1



Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Transportation Plan

COMMUNITY PARTICIPANTS

TCTD would like to extend a big thank you to everyone who participated one or more outreach
activity as part of this Coordinated Transportation Plan update:

»  Belinda R Bellante, DHS Child Welfare

»  Brianne Prince, Helping Hands Reentry

»  Carrie Hartford, Neah-Kah-Nie High School

»  Chad Holloway, Nestucca Valley School District

»  Cindy Green, Marie Mills Center

»  Daniel Hettenbach, Pacific Taxi Services

»  Doris Matthews, St Mary by the Sea Catholic Church
»  Eric Swanson, Adventist Health Tillamook

»  Jamie Chambers, DHS Vocational Rehabilitation

n  Jenny Greenleaf, North County Food Bank

»  John F Papineau LCSW, Adventist Health Tillamook
»  Julia Wentzel, Oregon Food Bank

»  Julie Chick, Sammy's Place

»  Michele Wayne, CARE

»  Nick Troxel, Tilamook Police Department

% Peter Starkey, formerly of CARE

»  Selena M Castro, Tillamook Bay Community College
»n  Sue Sanderson, Marie Mills Center

»  Tammy Manley, Tillamook Nazarene Church

»  Valerie Bundy, Tides of Change

Page 55 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

R\ |/ /7R !



Attachment A: December 13
Transportation Advisory Committee
Presentation

132



133

SALVIOOSSY B €20Z ‘wEl lequisda(
NOST3LLI e,

USYIOM Jop|oyapis

upjd uoyppodsupij

S9JIAISS UDWINH P3ajpulploo)) joujsiq uoyppodsupi] Ajunod doowbjji]

|




134

sdalS IXON

SPOON HPIQ .

S|00S 1JoIQ .

SIINSOY MBIAISIU| R ABAINS

$soib0Id uolpluswa|dwl] 41D 9107 -
solydoipoowaq

MBIAIBAQ 108l0Id -

SUOILDNPOILU| PUD SUWIOD|OM o




L)
™
—

1ooloud siyp ul Buieass Ui pajsaisjul ysow a4, NOA JDYAA 4

woonuobio « | SUOILONPOIIU

SWDN] 4




136

SOIDBIS SZIJUOUY e

SPO3U [awun AlILUSP|

SODIAIBS Ul SADD AJlJUSpP|
SODIAISS |O UOIDDIANP SZIWIUIW e

'SODIAIBS UOIIDIOdSUD)

olgnd Uuo puadap OYM sIsyjo pun ‘Adusioljoid ysiibug paliudl] Yyiim
SIONPIAIPUI ‘SSUIODUI JIOMO| ULIM SjoNpIAlIpUl ‘ajdoad BUNOA ‘s1olusas
‘SallIqoSIP yiim ajdoad 1oj spasu uolippodsund) ongnd Ajituapl

MIIAIBAQ }o3lold




2024

2023

2022

Aipniga4 - Aionupf |
SUOIDIUSSSId [PUld — /

Alpnupf — I9qWSAON |
UD|d UOKDHOdSUDI] SODIAISS UDWINH palpulploo) pajopdn —9

lPquasaq —19qoJ20 |
up|d Uolpbjuswa|dw) aipdald ‘seibaplls ‘spaaN uolbpodsupi) Ajjusp| -G

inoybnoiyy | YonaUNO dldnd — ¥
Aow | SUOILDPUSWIWODSY UD| J8UlIO JO UOKDNIDAT — €
Aow - yoiow | SUOHIPUOD Bulisix3 - ¢
jnoybnouyj | Jjuswsboubnyy pup uolpiiul 1oafold — |

AR 2]

137

SouIDJJaWI|

PUD SO |




%E9C
%E°9C
%1°0€
%661
%E9L
%C LT
%E 81
%5°CT
%901
%€ 6T
%0°Cy
%9 Ve
%1°9C
%TTE
%0°0¢C
%5705
%061
%T’ 1T
%1°¢cC
%vyl

%8'LE
%P8l
%S5°LT
%8°LC
%S5°1S
%61y
%0°SL
%lC!
%9°LS
%6'6Y
%681
%€°0T
%9°€€
%69
%0°9S
%L LY
%0°LC
%08l
%6vC
- AVAl

%1S1
%8'VC
yaad
%0°EE
%EL
%S'€C
%00
%1€
%00
%8'€
%LV
%9°¢Cl
%E 6
%070
%E 11
%00
%0°ST
%¥'0C
%161
%0°L¢

%L1
%8'8C
%Ll
%9°¢Cl
%yEl
%EEL
%C Tl
2%00C
%9V
%88
%91
%E Ve
%L EL
%S5°GC
%68
%C L1
%581
%681
%L61
%E°8C

%1°8%
% L8y
%S5°S€
%8°59
AN
%8Sy
%00
%¥'SC
%901
%9°L1
%1°0Y
%88
%L LE
%981
%00
%9CL
% e
%8°9¢
%0°8¢
%8°0€

rivy
VA
et
60L°L
99¢€
v68
S0Z
042
261
£09
viE
02
0€e8
£9¢
Gel
€91
v1C'l
68¢€°1
06€°/2
98T LET Y

138

940} B} UDUY JoYBIY
21D 5[99 PAPIOg/POPDYS

solydoiboulaq




SUIOH D DOYIOM =

SSINUIW 4E-0F »

SSINUIW SIOW 10 06 u

SOINUIN 6707 =

SUNUIN 48-09 « SSINUIW 650 =
SOINUIN &1-01 = SSINUIW 0| UDY} 5587

139

%0£76C |

/ > %0LG

%095 Yo7 BOBY
SOUl] |BADI] BINWIWIOD)

81829% %¥°C9 88l L9EE

G68'67$ %009 £6/°1T

solydoibowag

050T ovoT 080T 0207 010z 000T 0661
000°0T

0512
e B0D:sE

" 05T'SC
a5
o £2/'8C 00002
=< [T1°08
8ze’le

000'se

(paiIspDaIo PUD PBPI0D3Y| UOHDINAOY ALUNOD) JOOWDI||I




uoBa10 ‘Ajunod JoownyiL
dnoio) 3o0[g Aq uoypbindogd |pjo} 3y} Jo SBDUSDIag D SD SI0jUSg

7 2unBiy

Sputy aBpo asoy T AND utoduny
puein
seaeld pajeubssg
-SNSUBY pue SamY) WHOI apu0y
puess
sse vey oo [

wse-oc [
%oe-sz [

%sz-0z |

—
%502 vey) ssaq \\_

uone|ndod i101ueg

e

1 | frcmns v ey oted TRy

uobB3a10 ‘AjunoD Hoownjfii
dnois 3oo|g Aq uoypindod [pjo 3y} Jo aBpIUSDIDd D SD UNOA
¢ 2inBig

st abpo esoy KD ujoaary
putin
sae|d pejeubisag
-5NSUBY PUE SBID NIH 494 oy
M P

oz uew o [
wrz-oz [

g umoysaN
woz-or SN

%8L-Ch
%L ueyl Ssa7 |

uonendod ysnox

optoRd

SUYEY RN

140

i rrestan s

[



~
<t
~

UOISSNOSI

510 9IOMD 80 PJNOYS SM SUOILDISPISUOD JO
SUOI}DIUSDUOD DIYdoIBOoWSP JI8YL0 2I8Y] 81V ¢




AN
<t
~

ssaibold

9jo|dwod

Ajsowl — up|d salijiop) ALDL 8y} jusws|dwl e
9jo|dwiod
— sdoJs sNg b seyduUsqg pup ‘suoljoalp

BpU O} MOY ‘UOI{DWIOUl 810} ‘8BDUbIS 8I0W PPY e

SIN|ONISOIU|

aj)9|dwod - uo|d

JusuwsouDyYug 921AI8S AlIDJalul dLD ] tuswsidwi
aj)a|dwiod Ajjsow — spiy-o-|oIg

Bujobuo pup ajdwod - jusuusAoIdwWi |

10J sallluNIoddo 10J SODIAISS BUIISIXS MBIASY e 7

Buiobuo pup aja|dwWod — SDIAISS SSDSIDU| e

dlO 9210C

®




143

Buiobuo pup sjajdwiod

= SolIIgoSIP [PjuBW YliM ajdoad 10} swplboid BuluIo) JOAUP Ul [SSAU|e
pPauDys jou — 1D 95N O} S{NPL Pa|gpsIp AllojusuwidoleAsp

pup Ajonoa||aul 1o} wplibold Buiuinl) [DUIO) 91081 «
ajg|dwod

— YSIuDdS U] UOIIDUIIOJUI B|NPBYDS PUD ‘B1N01 ‘BUljadioul 84031 e

- Bujobuo mm@; @O.‘_ &

= salnpoaooud suolpiado spu-p-pIp PpUupL BulydpdsIp dOjBASJ e
Bulobuo pup 39j3|dwod — pssu

Ul 8s0y} 0} }NO sassod 931y pup JSOO MO| o6 0o} diysisupod anujuUoOD e
Bujobuo pup

9}9]dwod — PUD|LIOd Ul $310U8BD JISUDI} YHM UOIDUIDIOOD SAOIAW| e
<pulobuo

pup 3j3jdwiod — suoljdo JISUDl} [DINI AO|SASP O} SO} Y}IM NIOM e
Bujobuo pub ajdwiod - sosAojdws

1o} sasspd snq asoyoind o} sisAojdws 10} swpiboid ajpald e

dlO 910¢




144

aja|dwod
- 9DIAIBS ADPUNS SNUILUOD O} $82IN0Ss Bulpuny AHLUSP) e
Buiobuo pup 9j3|dwod
— sIBYDNOA/swnIBOId APISQNS 81D PadNPal SNUILUOD)
BujobBuo - up|d Buoupuly joo|) aBupI-Buo| b dojoAS( »
9o|dwios - sBbpBON|
puD sBDQ 10} SPaID 8BDIOLS YLIM $8SNQ IOO|-MO| 8SDYDINJ o
aj9|dwod : o
~ SO|DIYBA 9|QISSDID-IDYD[SBUM JO JSTUINU SY} 9SDSIDU]| o mw@.‘_mo\_ﬂ_
Buiobuo pup 33|dwod — 2INJONUSOIUI BUlISIXO DAISSDId e

d1O 910¢

BuIpUNg PUDB [l -

9j)91dwiod - sddp suoydpouis
DIA IO/PUD SIB}[8YSs SN LD SaWI} [DALLID SWI-|08] SPIAOI] e

9J9|dwiod - ddp Buyayol) pup Buluupn|d duj SUIUO UD 810310 o
3j9|dwiod ~ ddp suoyd dojoAsp pub alIsgam aA0IAW| e

=
ABOIOLI DD |
INVARIANS NI RAN] s K |




10
<
~

UoISSNSI

5IOMIOJ BUulAOW
Aluoud ybiy o g p|noys Juiys NoA op up|d
Joud sy} Wol} sUolDn BUIOB-UO 8y} JO YDIYM




14

salousbp olIgnd P30T ¢
suolpZIUDBIO PasPg-ylin, «
sdnoib ADDDOAPY ¢
saIoUBBD 92IAI8S UDWINY }1JOId-UON ¢
sasuodsai gl -
D18 ‘BAI8S AByl 850yl JO
spasau uolbodsunly 1salnalb ayl ‘oAIas Aayl
OUM [NOQD SIBPIACIA 8DIAIBS |DDO] JO ABAING

SASAINS

©
4
~




s1I9qUIBW |DU] B

spaou
JODIPALL DIUOIYD YliM 3|dosd m

asngp
a2duUD}SaNs WOl AISAODSI Ul SjdoSd B
SUDJSIOAE
sjuspniS @
[196unoA Jo g1) Yinos m
SSO|OWOH 1
seliaosIp AuB0D
10 {DIUSWIAOIBASD YiM SUOSIS 13
Aduseioljoud
ysibug pajiwl Yym suosisd m
SIOIUSS IO SYNPP BP0 |

SOUIQDSIP JPDISAUT UM SUOSIDd |

SUWIODUI-MO| UM SUOSISd B

sjuspuodsay Jo 9

= i %0
I
_
E - i~ %0C
|
i |
i %0V
1 %07

%001

"

39AI8S NOA Op suolipindod [PYM

147

S{Nsoy

ABAINS




sjuspuodsay Jo %
%0, %09 %08 %0% %0€ %0T %01 %0

_ _| - |_| S
uswiDail |oyod)y/Bniq
_

2IDDPIYD
SJUSAS AjlUNLUIWOD

sjuswjuioddo {Hnod

uoD3ID3Y

sjuawyuoddo 821n0g L0>>

uolpoNpPJ

Jung pood

SODIAISS I0IUSS/ISP|]

Buluibiy gor

UOHDHIGDYSI [DUOHDIOA

Buiddouys Aisnoio

sjuswijuioddp 821AI8s |DIDOS

sjusujuioddo |piusSP/OoIPEW
Juswiko|dwig :

2Spoau uoljpodsunidy
1S8}palIb 8ay| 8ADY SJUsI|D INOA OP 8I8UmM

148

SJINSOY

ABSAINS




sjuapuoday JO JBQuInN

cl 0l 8 9 4 “ 0
S9DIA9P AljIAoW 10§ SADMYIDd dOJS SNQ S|QISSOIIDU| s
JISUDJ} 35n O} MOY BuipuDiSISpUN JO YO0 e

BulaAbi) uaym s1oAIB2IDD/SUOILDAUWOD POSN  Eresssmm
SUOIIDUIISOP PUD S8DUSPISSI Of 350D JOU SAOYS SNY  mm
S9DIAISS |DIDads pup HsupyRIDd JOJ APICIBIS JOUIS  samm——
SUOIDAIBSAI 9sU0dsas pubwap Buppw Anomiq =
I1BYIO memmms

SDIAI95 PUSYSOM ON s

SO|DIYBA 3|qISS8IID fusIDYINSU|
sasodind duy a)qibys pajoulsay
{isuou} AQ 9jqIsse00DU| SAL} SUIINOI |DDOT e

sowll} Jisupl) BUO| A|SAISSEOX] e

$5920D $)USASId $SSOIPPD JUSUDULS JO YO0 mm
ADIAISS @C_C®>® 9JD| ON = = = ———————————— |
s82IAISS UClDUOdSUDL) 9|qDPIOYDUN * - R — = . . S EEE—

292D] SIUSI|D JINOA |DY|
SabuUs||IDYD UOIDLIOASUDIL UIDU 8y} 810 JOYM

149

SJ|NSOY

ASAINS




150

sjuapuodsy 10 BQUINN

6 8 A 4 S 4 € 4 0

$H0DSD/SBPID [OADI SZIPISANS l L]

S||NSSY

juswesinquuial 8BoaIW

ASAINS

92uD|sIsSO Bujuupid duj/uolD WO

2ouppPING BuUIUIDI) [9ADS] SPIAOId

$ISUDNOA S0

2punj uolpzIupblIo
INOA SB0P SBDIAIBS UOILDLIOdASUDI] JO 8dAL IDUM



61

(UADM BIPYDIW) FIVD ¢

(s;equinyDd
SIWIOT) UOHDHIOOYSY [DUOHDIOA SHG ¢
(UOSUDMS DLT) YIOBH ISHUBAPY ¢
(ADMmojioH poYD) as AS|IDA DODNSON ¢
(yooqgualleH |a1upq) $82IAISS IXD| DIIDDd ¢
(]oziuam DIINT) duPpg Poo4 uobalp  «
(uselo ApuiD) J8jusD S|l SUDOW ¢

:SUOIIDZIUDBIO SNOLIDA $sOIDD ajdoad

JUBISIJID USASS POMBIAIDIUI DM 4

SM3IAIB|U

1
o
-—




152

SpPBBU Pasnaloy|
IUSWISA|OAUI JISP|OYSADIS
sjoNPIAIpUl Buuamoduwil

pPUDWSP PISDAIDU m>o>>0®v_ O]
MBIAIS]U|

slaupnd ylim uolloiogo|jod -
uonppodsunl) 21gnd Yyim sabus|ioy)d -
SODIAIDS [DILUDSSD O SS8DDY \»@v_
SODIAISS UOIDIOASUDI] PAZIIDNPIAIPU|
:sebua||pyD pup spoasu
UOIlDIOdSUDI] UOWWOD |DISASS SloM alay]




™
Lo
—

5592UBIBAXS INOA
WO} 9pNDUl M PINOYSs SBUIpUI) J8YLO JDYM ¢

2ALUNOD) JOOWDJ|I| Ul &85 NOA |DYJ Spasu ayl CO_mm_DUm_D
yolow sBuipuly MaIAISIUlI pup ABAINS 858yl 0 «




(44

5$|ID0B [JDIP 858yl Ajlpow 10 8BUDYD NOA PINOM MOH 4

suoldo uoypuodsuniy

Yol NI=1X=Yeo][=)| S[QDPIOHD IBJO PUD S|OAD|
apiacid 0] 3|gD aqg 9DIAIBS UIDJSNS O] $92IN0S
O} JJDIS UID}aJ PUD JINIDSY Buipun) a|gp|s X935
%ﬂmvﬂ
Wee an
® o —
sioupod sIasn [0 O} sisguiau AJlUNWILIOD

[ouoiBal pup [D2O| 8|d1s$9220 puo 3|gplinba [|o JO spaau 8y} 1osw o}
UlIm sdiysuolin|al Mol alD |DY| SODIAIOS SPIACI B8DIAIBS PaACIdUI BPIAOId

5 P nnn

154

S[elelaBllell




(o]
Lo
—

sdoys sNQg IDau Jiomlau
AOMBPIS }NO PIING O} SUOHDIPSUNI [0D0] YHM HIOM o

ISMIIUS/wy 1O IBJUSD
SUSZI|ID JoIUSS 8y} O} ALIQISS8DD0D aA0IdW| e

SINEONISOIU| ==

AJUNOD) oy} tnoybBnoiy} sauy SPooN HPI(
(IW3N) uoljppodsuply [D2IPaW ADUSDIBUIS-UON e
SPU-D-|OIP
1O ‘8]N0I-PaXI} PBIDIASP ‘©}N0I-Paxl) YBNoiy}
JaYl8aYM ‘S8DIAIBS [DIDOS O} SUOILOBUUOD BA0IAW| e
upds 821AI8S SN S1NOI-PBXI) BYL USPIM e




156

suoido Jisuplj apim-uoibal
ajowoid 0O} JIsgaMm 92UDI|Y LIsupi] uoBal0) MN 94} 8zI2l[dnd e
sfouupy2 adiyinw yBnoiyl BuladInuw 921AISS JISUDI) 9A0IdW| e

BupW-UOISIDBP 9DIAISS

Ul Uoljpjuasaidal AJUNOD YINOS pub YHON 810W 8}0J0dIodU| e
Buiuip.y

JSALP [DUOIIPPRD IO} SSIIUNUOAdO 10} JOO| PUD MSIASY e
SODIAISS JWIN PUD ‘lisubiipiod ‘apu

-D-|DIP 8pN|oul O} diysiaupupd 10}0aUu0D MN 8yl pupdxd e
suolpzIupbio JIByLo
PUD ‘sioAojduia ‘SISPIACIA 8DIAISS [DIDOS “IBJUdD S|IIW SUDW

‘JAVD ‘sa1ouabo Jisupiy 211gnd YliM UOIIDUIPIOOD 9SDaI0U| e

SpoaN HPIQ




157

S91N0J 92IAIas-PalIW]|
UO 10 S9IUNOD Usamlaq sduy 10} AllIqoplolio aAoidul| e
8|doad sWODUI-MO| PUD ‘SallIgDSIP YLIM
a|doad ‘sIojuas 10} swibold alDj-e0NPal 8SD3IDU| e
SISALP PUD SUDA SPLU-D-|DIP [DUOCLIPPD PPRY e
s|pAlauUl JID|NBal D SBIDIYSA Juswaob|dal oy upid
PUD swWIBoId 82UDUSIUIDW [88)) LISUDIL 8NUILUOD

SP9eN HoId

BuipUny PUD [PHIED

S9SN UO Sjodsioy IJ-IM PPY =

22UD|||V JIsupli] uobalD
MN 8Y} SSOIDD SLISID [SADI} 8IDYS O} SADM BI03ID) =
PUD|HOJ Ul PUD 9 3O BUO|D SINOXDD|Q OIPDI SSSIPPY e

—_— — E——




[c0)
Lo
—

UOISSNOSIC

2Spo8U paliuep!
Sy| SS2IPPL O] ainin) a8yl ul ansind pjNoys
ALDL Uyl NOA Op saIBaIDIS [DUOHIPPD [DUM ¢




(o)}
0
~—

SdalS IXeN

720z AUpe ul Bullesw DV1 ALDL 10} unid HoIp 849|duwoD «
solibalplls aziuoud pun AJlJUSP] =

spasau pup s|ipob joaloid suljay

dOUSHIOM S, ADPOL WIOI] JO0gPasd] 81010dI0DU| «




Attachment B: March 4 Transportation
Advisory Committee Presentation

160



161

SALVIODOSSY B 20z ‘u UDIOW
NOST3LLIM !

Bulesy 89 IUWOD AIOSIAPY UOoIDLIOdSUDI|

upjd uoyppuodsupi
S9IIAISS UDWINH P3ajbuiploo?) joujsig uoyppodsupni] AJunod doowbjjiL




162

sjooloid Aluoud-ybiH

solboloUIS d1D -

S|005) |osloid -

sbuipul4 yoonailnQ -
solydoibouwa AlUNOD JOOWD||I| e
MBIAIBAQ 10Bl0Id -




163

solbalpllS 7o e

SpoaUu [auun AJILUSP|

SODIAIBS Ul SADD AlllUusp|
SODIAIDS JO UOIDDNIANP SZIWIUIW e

"SODIAISS UOoIIDIOdSUDI]

Dllgnd uo puadap oym siaylo pup ‘Adusioijoid ysiibug paliwl] Ylim
SIONPIAIPUI ‘SSUIODUI JIOMO| ULIM SIoNpIAlIpUl ‘ajdoad BUNOA ‘sIoIuss
‘sallljIgosIp YliMm ajdoad 1o} spasau uolippuodsunl] 211gnd Alijusp|

M3JAIBDAQ }odloud




2024

2023

2022

yoIoW — Aipnupf |
SUOI|D}USSSId DUl — /

AIpnupf - 1I9qWSAON |
up|d Uoibpodsupi] S82IAISS UDWNH pajbuipiood pajppdn -9

laquiadaQ - 19qo§d0 |
upld uoijpjusws|dw| alpdaid ‘salbslplis ‘SPaaN UoDOdSUDI] AlljUSpP| -G

jnoyBnouyy | UoDaLNO 2liand —
Aow | SUOIIDPUSWILIODSY UD|d JOWIOS JO UOHDNOAT — €
ADW - YyoIoW | suolpuoD Bulisixy — g
jnoybBnouy) | JuUBUIBBDUDW PUD UOKDIIU| [D8[0Id — |

4
©
~

S=108eYIt=100]]|

PUD SYSD|




%€ 9T
%€°SC
%1°0¢€
%661
%E 91
%T'LT
%E'81L
%S'TT
%901
%E 6T
%0TY
%9 PE
%192
%' TE
%0°0C
%S°0S
%061
%’ 1T
%lce
g

%8 LE
%P8l
%S°LT
%8°1T
%S°LS
%6’ Ly
%0'SL
%1l
%9°LS
%6 6%
%681
%E 0T
%9°EE
%69
%0°5S
%Ly
%0°LT
%081l
%6vC
%z L1

%1S|
%8'vC
%C Y1
%0'EE
y ANV
%S°€T
%00
%1°€T
%00
%8'€
%LV
%9°Cl
%E 6
%00
%E" 11
%00
%0'ST
%V 0T
%161
%0°L¢

%LlLL
%8B8¢
BlYL
BIC
%Vel
%EEL
%CCl
%00
%9v

%88

%9°L1
%E Ve
%LEL
%G°SC
%6'8

%C L
%581
%681
%261

%E€°8¢

vy
yoT's
Lrv'l
6011
99¢€
¥68
S0C
0£¢
L6l
€09
Vi€
L0¢
0g8
L9¢
Gel
€91
v1Z'l
68¢°1
06€°£2

9szLECY

165

9]Dis sy} Upy! JBybiy
9I0 §|j92 PepP[Od/P{PLYS

solydoibouiaq




166

SWIOH ID PSYIOM = SBLNUIN SIOW 10 04 = SOINUIN 4809 = SOINUIN 65-0F =
SOINUIN 4E-0€ = saINUIW 6Z-0T = SBINUIW & 1-01 = SO4NUIW O] UDY} §557

%0801

%09°G &om.w.. %087
SoWll] [SADI] 2/NWWOD

%OE'6T

881°19€E

L6L'1C

gl soydpibowsq

0502 0v0Z 0e0z 020z 010z 0002 0661
000'0Z
R [T
— 97T 00052
e 05T
e e [
— cT/'8 000°0€
s [TI0E
8z€’lE
000'5E
(PaIsDD8I04 PUD PapPI0DaY) uolp|Ndod AJUNOD JOOWIDI||




uobaiQ ‘AjunoD Noouwofi
dnous) }o0jg Aq uoypijndod |pjo] ayj jo abbjuasiad D SD sIOUSS

¥ 2unBiy e

—Wpuny aBpo asoy  AWD ©IooUN
purig

seoe|d pejeubiseg L
-snsuay pue semn HiH spuoy
ey e

sse uew oo K

-

%oe-sz [

%5202

%02 uew sse | ]
uonendod Joluag

Aug oprorg

T

KB SR m T 1Ak o e

uoBai0 ‘AjunoD Joownojjii

dnolio yoolg Aq uoypindoyg [pjo] 3Yj Jo BDIUDDISG D SD YINOA

¢ aunBiy il
i aBpo asoy Ko vioaun
purig

seoe|4 pajeubiseq
~sN5U8Y) PUE SO WH M0 gpy0y
puels

i
vz vew oson [N
wvz-0z [
woz-os [N
warzy {0

%z} uey) ssey | |

uonendogd ynoyg

umonsaN

oRd

CEm Y

o g s s

167



[0}
©
~

salouabo olgnd |Po0T

suolpzZIUDBIO Paspg-ylin « m>®>\_3m
sdnoub ADDDOAPY
saIoUabD 82IAI8S UDWNY J1JOId-UON ¢ .mmc_ﬂvc_n_
sosuodsal gl -
D18 ‘aAIas Ayl asoy] Jo C_UO@‘_.—DO

spaau uolipodsund) 15810816 oyl ‘oAIas ABy|
OUM [NOQD SIBPIACIA 8DIAISS |DDO] JO ABAING ¢




sjuspuodsay JO %
%0/ %09 %05 %0¥ %0€ %0¢C %01 %0

juswitpal} joyooy/Bnig
|

Bunuog
BY0
2IDDPIYD

SJUBAS AJUNWIWIOD

sjusuwiuloddp HNoD

uoHDBIOSY

ﬂcmE:.___oaao 92IN0S NIOM

uoipINpP3

Jupg pooy

SODIAISS IOIUDS/IBP|T

Buiuipiy noﬁ.

UOHDHIGPYS |DUCHDIOA

Buiddoys AleD019 :

sjusuwipuioddp 821A18$ |DIDO0S

sjuswijuioddD |piUSP/IDDIPSW
_cwEwo_QEm

2SpP9suU uolipIodsuny
1se1alb 8yl 8ADY SIUSID JINOA 0P 8I8UM

169

S1|NSSY

ABSAINS




170

siuapuoday JO JIBQUINN
A o]} 8 9 4 4 0
Sa21A9P Alljlgow Jo} sSApmyiod dojs sNg S[aISSODIDU| mmmm—
HSUDI} 8sn 0} MOy BuIpUDISISPUN JO YO0 s
Buloabiy usym s1oa168100/suoiupdwlod pasN =
SUOIDUIISOP PUD S8DUBPISS] O} 950[D JOU SAOYS SNY  mer

s901AI8s |DIDads PuD JIsUDIDd Jo) AICIBIS 1DUIS s w-—-_ D mm m

SUOIDAISSSI BSUOCSDI pUDWASP BupDW AJNDIYIQ s

BYlo == —| >® D
ODIAISS PUSKODM ON| 1 s s f \ /\— w

SO|DIYDA S|QISSSODD JUBIDILNSU) == - —_—
sosodind duy ajgibl|e PajouUisey memm———

HsuDi} AQ 9jqIss80DUI sAU} BUNOS [DD0T i = e —

Sowil} JISUD) BUO] AIDAISSSOXT mmmmmme s

$5900D $JUSASId SSSIPPD JusUDWISd JO JDOD7 === == e —————————]

90iAI8s BUIUDAS BD| ON s e —
SODIAISS UOYDHOdSUD.| B[QDPIOYDUN S— ——————

292D] SIUSI|D INOA Dbyl
sofuUs||PYD UoIlDIOdSUDIL UIDU 8y} 91D JDUYM



LL

(UADM SIPYDIW) FIVD ¢

(s;equiny)d
SIWO[) UODYIIIGOYSY [DUOHDIOA SHA ¢
(UosuOMS DUT) U}OSH JSHUSAPY ¢
(ADMmO|IoH PPYD) S AS|IDA DDDNSON ¢
(yooqusllaH |aIUD(Q) SODIAISS IXD] DUIODY ¢
(]9ZIUSM DIINT) Jupg POo4 Uobal  «
(Ui ApuiD) Jojuad S| SUDW - ¢

:SUOIIDZIUDBIO SNOLIDA $SOID0 a|doad
LUBIBLIPD UBASS POMBIAISIUI OM 4

SMOIAIS]UJ
:sbulpul4
yowoainQ

1
N~
—




172

SPo3U PasnaIDU|
JUSWIBDA|OAUI JIBPIOYSDIDLS
s|oNPIAIpUl Butamoduu]

PUDWISP PasDaIoU]| * m>o\</0®v_ O]
MBIAIB]U|

slounpd Yylim uoiiniogpl]oD
uolpodsunll 21gnd yiim sebus|oyD -
SODIAIBS |DILUSSSS O} $S8DDY >®V_
SODIAISS UOIDIOdSUDI] PBZIIDNPIAIDU]| -
:sobus||pyD pub spasu
uolpodsupil) UOWUIOD [DISASS S1am alay]




el

SDIAIBS
S|gpl|a4 BpIACId
O} 8| 8q O} 4B}
uIDidl PUD JINIDBY

1l peBU Oym
s|doad 10} suoldo
uoljopodsup.y
S|QPPIOHD
13240 PUD S|SA9|
9DIAISS UIDJSNS
0} seoInos Bulpuny
2|qpis Moss

sioguisuw

slosn |Io AHUNWIWOD
siouppd jpuoibai O} 9|qIssa22D puD [0 1O spasu ay|
pUD [DD0] YLM a|qp}inba alip by} 199W O} BDIAISS
SAIYSUOID|D1 MOID SODIAISS DPIAOIY paA0oIduwl 8PIACId

o Yl

™
N
—




174

solba]oljs Alioud-ybiy so pauyiiudpl usag aADY ploq Ul saibajoils

SUOIIDDO] JuswAoduis pup |plpUSpPISSl
128UUO0D |S8J [Pyl S92IAISS Uoliblodsuni) apiaoid o) saiiunpoddo MajAsy e
"20IABS JIBYL PlINgS] ABYL SD UyDd0ag UcUUD) Ul SIjsunl) pawly
UIDJUIDW O] [12U1SI uolppodsupl) aiduwig Jasuns YHM UOPUIPIOOD aAoIdW| e
"'SODIAISS
Buisn uo 2lIgnd ay} 21P2NPS 0} 5|00} pUD swoiboid Bujuipl) [9ADI} dO[BAS( «
"I1BLUS D) suUdzZIND
IOIUSS By PUD $3IN0J PBXI}/I91USD JISUDL} 9y} usamiaq ALIgIssaodD aAoIdw|
SOIINGDSIP Ylm 91doad puDb SIOIUSS 10} SSPU PaZIPISANS 180
0] sisplroid (IW3IN) uolpuodsunily |DDIpaW ADUSBISWIS-UOU YLIM JODIUOD e
'sodA] duy Jayjo pup ‘bBuiddoys
‘|oDIpawl ‘JuswiAoldwa Buipnoul ‘S92IAISS JO sadA] || 10} ALIUNWUIWIOD .
Um_pom_b-_\»__o._ﬂmc_m_o_m>®b_Uco ->__%;_U®=.®E_ oy} c_hmmor: L_.o_u“ mu_wcm,_w aAroIdW] e mm_om._. OL._.W LD _ &
‘poass Buiaq x
aIo suoypindod sy} 1Dyl aINsUS 0} AlUNOD YoowD|iL InoybBnaoly} suolpindod
spasu |pIDads BUIAISS SIIDOD) IDBU SSDIAISS B1N0I POXI) POIDIASD IOLUOW e
"SOUIID0) [DDIPBU PUD SBDIAISS [DID0S PUNOID SDSID 0} $S822D SACIAW]
*SUOIJOBUUOD
SlIu ISDJ/1sil) 81qIxa|) aplaoid 0} sjojid 81noI poxly PalbIASP juaws|dwl] «
(‘242 ‘sadA} a9d1A13s 19Y}0 3|DPOLWIWOIID
0} sapy MN pupdxa ‘AJI[IGD[IDAD 3sDaidul) sjusawaAoidwi apIy-y-|pig DWW «
'SUOD 0] SAIIAIAS |DIDOS O} S3JIAISS dpl
~D-|DIP PUD ‘S3}N0I PaXlj PIIDIASP ‘SIJN0I PAXY UaM}Iq sUOI3UU0D aaoidul]«
"Abg >oowDbjji] Jo
Hod 3y} pup ‘Ajuno) yjnos ‘Ajuno) yHoN o} sajnol uo Buisnooy ‘sdiiy puadaam
puDp ‘BuUlUSAd ‘ADP-pPIW 3I0W 3PNjIUl 0} 3JIAI3S SN ajnol paxij pupdx] «

PaIDUIPIO0D

¥ @Bpd d1D



175

| [ _ "SUOIDD0] JusuAC|dUIE pUs:
MO
L ® _ _ § _ [ORUSPISSI {08UUOD {589 JOUL SEOIMSS LOIDHOTSUD.) apikoid o saitunyoddo manay
| = o \_ > TR — s  "201AI9S JI9Y} D|ING I ASUY SO USDSg LOUUDT) LI SI9)5UDLH
MO o
i © _ s PolUy LIDILIDL Of 1OULSI] UORDHOASUCS| Sidg 195UNT YjiM LORDUIDIO0D SAckciL
T wnipaywy | ® = _ “s501Ss BUISH Lo oignd SUj 2100NES O} 5|00} PUD SWDIB0id BUILIDS [2ADI; GojaAa(
winipay P |~. qbm | &5 el 10D} [DOIPSLU PUD SSOISS [DID0S PUNOCID SDSID O} $S8000 aAcdw|
LI | e A= Jayuany
winipaw © 7 s
: _ SUSTYIS JOMIDS B} DUD SO4N0) POXLLSIUS HSUDLY SU) LSSAMISY ALIGISsa00D anoichu|
” _ IR | = T “saupgosip s 5idosd pUD SICIUSE J0] S2PU PIZIDRGNS
wnpayy o _
| | | Jayo o) seapnaid [TyEaNi uoRppodsupd) [ooIpatu AusBisWUS-UCU UM jODIUCT) ;
3 = = A R I = =ik .
| | [ ‘sadA} duy iay3o =l
winipaw O | 7 puo ‘Suicdoys ‘[coipal ‘jusiuAc|duws BuIpAIcUl ‘S90IAISE 1O $8dA] 1D J0) AHUNLUWOD m @ _ mn—- O\—-—- m C O _ &
2 .

DI|qOSR-Y[DIUALLTO[SASP PUD -4|DNJODYalLI Syt Lt 550U} J0f 801ASS SAcid|

‘E::ubs.. e = | : T ._Umimwm..m.c_.mn 240 sUOYDINCOd ayf DLt BINSUS Cf ALUNO YOOLWD jnayBnouyy U mn—- O C — Uuh o O 1 v
Ll

\ suclipindod spaau jDioads Buiiias SSIO0; JD8U SADIAISS SiN0I PaXY PRIRIASP JOHUCHY

s—————T — | =T8T
wnipaw ® ubiy |7 “suUoiDBLLOD S SOy SOXA); 2pinoid 03 s0Nd B1N0I PaXY PajDKep jusLuSidL]
ybty = .I_C ]l Y6 Bt “5201A@S PUDCXS PUD SACIHW] ANIDIDAD SS08I0UL -SPIg-Y4oI]
= m i _ SUCHDOO0]| SEDIAISS JOID08 O} SSINISS
46y °® ybiyy .
_ . SPU-D-{DID PUD 521101 PEXY DS{OIMSD '§94N0I BAXE LSSMESE SUOUDSULOD aAcid)
-ADg JJOOWIDJ] JO O] BU} PUG "AJUNDT UINOS “A{UNOT UHON Of S8§ncs U0 Buisnooy
4B ® usbi §6¢ . T
. _ _ “scup pusSem puUs ‘Suliens ‘ADP-PIW SI0U SPNIDLI OF SOMISS SN SjNc paxl puodig

saifiajoys 921A15s uoyppodsuny

(oW spoan .cw:m?w:.ﬂm_nan ]

/paatag sdnois 30 Aynogng Abagoys




(o]
N~
-—

saIbalpuls Ajuoud-yBiy so payiiuapl ussdq sAbY ploq ul sa1b6alouys

"ADMDY00Y YBNouy} € a4noy Buojo
sdoys Bo|} papsAuoD sy} 1o ajod pup ubis doys SN O SPIAOI e
"0]8 ‘BpIsunS20
‘BIDPIBACID NWIDd Paadspoos) spnoul PIN0D Ssay]
JBIBYS b pasu Abw uoyp|ndod olioads b alaym saon|d 1D
1O sBUIPIDOQ JO siagquuinu aBID| YLIM SUOIIDIS 1D SIBIBYS SPIAOI
'sd0ys sNQ Lo saydUSg PUD ‘SUOIIDBIIP SPI O} MOY ‘UOIFDUIIOUI
210} ‘(sa1nou pajpirsp Buoip Ajpioadsa) aboubis 810uW PPY

‘paspyaind _
9q o} (Yvd 10} sasNq ||PWS 1O SUDA-UIW ‘SDIJAISS DJNOI PAXYY mm_@®._.0k_._.m U O_&
1o} pazis-uwinipaw "6:3) s3|01YysA Jo sadA} ay} ssaippbo pjnoys A
upid }j93}) 9yl "Yymolib 33]A1I9Ss S|PpoWWIOIID O} uoisupdxs U@._.OC_U\_OOO

}o3|) a|qissod sp [|9m sD ‘D] [NJOSN 11Dy} Jo puad 3y} Yopal
A3y} spb sasnq Buysixa Jo ajnpayds juswadpidal b 3jpal) -

‘suoipjndod

spasau |p]oads Buowp diysispu 86pINO0OUS 0} SISYONOA
Jo/pup swbiboid Apisqns I} paONpPal 92UDYUS O} SNUHUOD) «

alnjonJsoiu| .

Zy-1y 96Dd d1D




177

| *ADMDNOOY
il LY _ 7 yBnouyy ¢ einoy Buojo sdoys Boy) papsauod ay) jo sjod pun Ubis dojs sNg © 8piAcig
i [ = 218 'BPISUDSOQ ‘S|DPISADID
winipaw o 7 “DJ psadspoos spnIoUl PINOJ 858U SIS D pasu Abw uoioindod aioads
_ D' 2Jaym 530D(d |D Jo SBUIPIDOQ JO SiaquInu aB5ID| YLt SUOIDIS 1D SIS}8US 9PIACI]
_ i ‘sdofS SNQ 1D $8UDUSq PUD 'SUOHISIID
winipaw ® i = . . . .
SPU O) MOY "UCHDULIOJUE 81D} ' (581N01 paipirsap Buoio Aljnioedss) aBpulis siow ppy @
- _ i J— 7 . ﬂ|| T ‘paspuaINd 84 0} [Ny IO} $85NJ DUIS JO SUDA-IUIL ‘SBOIAISS mm_ m.—. O\—-—. m C O _ &
B . _ 4 _ mﬁo_ Paxy Jo} mm.m_w-ED_omE B2} sepoiyaA jo sadA} auy sseIpPPD PINOYS u,_o_a JEET i ) ! ;
| | U] "UMOIB 90IAISS 9}0POLILLODD Of co_mccaxml,_moc a|qissod sD || SO ‘B INasn U m.—. O C _ Ux— O O U
[ JIBYL 1O PUS U Uopal AsyL so sasng Bujisixs JO ajnpayos Justusonidal D 9{Da1D) »
1 hi= .O i - suoypindod spaau ploads Buowp diysiapl
i sBoinoous 0} $18ycnoA Ja/pup swipiboid Ap|Sgns 8.0j PSONPSI SOUDYUS 0] 8NUIUCD
saibspys ainjonysoyu)
..*vs.. spsaN . Mo:cEwEm,_aE_ 1 _ i =

/paaias sdnois Jo Agnoung 220




178

salbalolys Ajuoud-ybiy so paiijuspl ussg aAbY ploq ul ssibs|oils

(pauy
HISUDI] AJUNOD YWD A ‘B°3) VIOMN O} AousbBp JIsupniy ieyjo Bujppo 240|dx] -
"suoIIdo [IsuDJ) [0INI AOJSASD O} JUBWIUIBAOD [0 UM HIOM -
"SIOUJSIP [O0YDS Y}IM pUD AJUNOD
SoowD||IL Ul sSwoiBoid pooyp|Iyd ALDS YlIM SHIOLS BUljpuIpIiood anuljuo) -
‘DBID
OUJOW PUDILOJ Jaloalb oyl Ul s212usbD JISUDI} YLHM UOIDUIPIO0D SA0IdW -
"2]2|dWOD Sl |]opowlal 8y} 82UO0 IBJUdD
LISUDI] UMOJUMOP 1D JIDJS 10} s82100Id |S8g Juswabounw AfjiIqow afpal) -
‘sabubyd adiAISS :
Bujwioju] s93IWIWOD AIOSIAPD 0} s9AlDjuasaidal Japu w..um>_v._uv< . mm_om._.cg._.m C O _ ﬁ_
‘(Ajunod ujoour] ‘6°9) paISAOD ||9M SD jJOU 31D JDY} SUOKDDO] Ul SPU-D-|D] o e : —
M.hc meE_Bz .,.__m:ohw.___uma_: _cu_"umE mwcmm _.w:“.n_cr <h.n_u>>z_w£ _ﬂ_k v__o% : U@._.O C _ Dl_ooo
‘suoypzjunbio :
13Yjo pup ‘sisAojdwa ‘siapiroid 921A18S [DIDOS ‘9ID|d S,AWWDS ‘1I9jUd)
SIIIW SUDW ‘JAVYD ‘sa1ouabp jisupi} olqnd Yyim uoDUIPIOOD 3SD3IDU] -
‘suoloIpsun| [po0o] pup ‘siapiaoid uoyppodsuniy DO ‘SOUISIP JISuDl}
juaspipp ‘sisAojdws ‘s1Ivuppd [P30] ‘@11 US3M}Sq UOKDUIPIOOD ddUDYyuy -
‘soaAo|dwa
1@y} Joj sassod snq aspysind o} sisAojdwa 10} swpiboid ajpai) -
*S9DIAISS 3JDUIPI00D 0} s1duup|d jisubl} usam}aq sbulysaw azunbiQ -

¢v obpd 41D




Apioug

MOT © | MO1 = “{Dasy JsuDl) AJUNOD YDA B8} WIOMN 0} Aduabp jisunly isujo Buppb sloidg
MoT o B AT, 1 [ 8 - ‘suoydo psupiy joint do@Asp O JUBWILLIBAOB DQLL LM N0
W _ (e “SIOUISID JO0UDS Ui
wnipaw ©
pUD AUNCD YooWDJil} U stupiBoid pooupiyd AUDS Uiim spols Buiipuiplood snuijuc)
‘wapsyw |.‘| o 5 _‘ e || "DBI0 0LjBIN PUDILO J8jnoid sy Ul $810UsSBD §SUDIL YA UOHDUIPIO0O SACIAL]
B ) 3 [ I *312(dLUOD §| 1BPOWSS BU} SOUO
wnipsy o MOY $
_ IBJUSD JISUD] UAOIUMOP O 11DS 10) $801o0nId jseq [uswaBounL Ajliqowl 8j0aiD
uybiy ® MO7 _ =Xy _ "saBUDYD 901AI85 mc_E_o,E_ mmmt_EEoo ZOWSUD 0} mm>:oEmm9Q9 19Dl SSIBAD PPY
R =T, =t el " ~{Ayuno ujooun
ubIH ® § _ ‘B6'8] PBIBAOD ||BM SO JOU BID JDU) SUOHIDD0] Ul 8PL-D-DIP PUD $S8PIY MN UBNoIy; sy
| .oo_UmE BAIDS _wrmn 0} (VIOMN] 80UDIiy Jisupi] UoBSI0 |SOMUHON SUJ UM HIOM
== = [T T | B ~ sucyoziupbio Jayio pup ‘sisAojdWs ‘sispIacid somies
%ol @ & 101205 “Jalual S SUDW ‘JNYD SIouaBD Psunl) o§gnd YA UOHDUIPIO0D 9SDaIDU|
. 3 ‘SLOIDIPSLN] ID20] PUD ‘518PIACIA LONDLOASUDI) jDD0| ‘SPOUISID
- ® HSUDI{ [UBODIPD ‘sisAo|dws ‘sisupnd [DO0] ‘GLD] USSmMmIeq LoIIDUIRIOCD 8oUDyUl
i ybiy |.O| | - 01 . I ‘sosAo|dwe sUL Jof sessod sng espyoind of slakojduus 1oy swolBoid 8jDsID)
ubiy ® BN BT BT | “5901AIBS 8|DUIPI00T O] sisuuoid JisUDI| Usamieq sbBuljesw aziunbig

s316301S UOKDZIUDBQ PUD UOHBUIPIOOD)

joW spsaN | uoypjuswaldl
/paniag sdnois Jo Aginagna

sjsog ABajoys

D
N~
—

saI6a]D1]S UD|d

P3IDUIPIO0D




180

saibaplls Ajuoud-ybiy so paliuapl uasq SADY ploq ul saibaols

"Joadnd-Uo pUD SUIUO PaPIACId SODIAISS By}
JO ssauUsIOMD alowold pup Lioddns 821AI9S JaUWOSND SA0IdW| e _
"(swsysAs sspd/juswApd
‘so|npayos pajolbaiul ‘Bultedipw pajsblip} "B 8) se2inosal pub
‘ABOjOUYDB] ‘SODIAIBS B}DUIPIOO0D JISYHN) OF VIOMN UIYHM YIOM o
‘'suoldo
Hsuply apm-uolbal ajowold o} 8jiIsgam VY IOMN SUl} 8z10/|and e _
“slpuupyD a[diynw ybnouyt Bulladiow 821AISS JSUDI} SAoIdW| e _

‘wpiboid Buladiouw aAlsusyaldwod b Buip|ing aNUjUOD e mm_om._.og._.m Cc_ﬂ_
"ysiundg ui sjpuspw mau [|p ysijgnd o} anuiuo) . ¥
‘saiIjigpsIp |pjusw ypum ajdoad 10} Bujuipiy AIAIHISUSS U@._.O Ul U‘_OOU

I9ALP aplaoid pup swpbiboid Buluini} ISALP Ul JS9AU] O} SNURUOD o
‘siopl pajqpsip-Aljpjuswido|dAap
pup -Ajpnio3a)ajul Bulysissp uo sNd0j b YHMm ‘Yojs 1auund |jp
10} BuluID} SSDUSIDMD AJIIGDSIP PUD 3JJAISS JSWOJSND 92UbYyug «
‘uoyppodsupiy
Judi|d 3JpUIPI00 0O} suolpziupbio JBYjo pubp SpOUYSIP [oOYDSs
‘SOI|IOD} |POIPBW ‘SDIOUDOBD 3IIAIDS [DIDOS YHM 3DIOAD]|0D o

Z¥ 9bod d1D




181

_ _ “15dDd-Uo PUD BUJUC

winipaw @ Moy s |
| | papIACId S9OIAISS BY| JO SSaUSIDMD sjowold pub poddns adIAISS J8LI0ISND aAcIdw|

T _ . | [sweysAs ssod/juswiAbd ‘seinpayos paibiBaiul ‘Buleyiow paebin]

: ® | B8] se01n0s81 PUD “ABOJOUYDS] ‘SO SIDUIDI000 JBUUNE Of W 1OMN UIYLM HIOM
wnipaw 2 ® . T "8 ] “suoliclo Jisupl} apm-UcIBal 8;0L0Id Of SHSGEM Y IOMN SUi 9ZI0IaNS
wnipaw ® _ Wiupa) s | spuupnyo sidunw ybnoiuj BULSNIOW SOMAISS IISUDI| arcidiy
wnipayw | .l _ & ‘woiBoxd Bujisyniu aAsUsSIdwod D BUPENG snUUDD m m _ @ m O\— C O

~ ubip || P _ MO1 ] gL = "USIUDAS Ul S[ousIoW mel |0 usiignd o1 snujuod ki -_- _._-
s

" [ [ : = “SSUIIGDSID [DHUBW Yy Sjdosd g N~
HEIH © i . 210UIPIO0O
[ 103 Buuing} ABAIISUSS 19AUP 8PIACD PUD SWnIBOo BUILII] JSALPD Ul JSBAU Of 8RUIIUICT) -
s L ]

ybIH . 0 s “SI5PU POIOSIP-AIRIUBLUTOIOASD PUD ~AlIDNI08)IS Ul BUlSISSD UO SNO0)
g O D Yl ‘LIS JaUpod D o BUILID] SSSUSIDAMD AHIGDSID PUD 80IAISS JBLUOISND 32UByul

.:.m_: [ _ “UoNBIOTSUD) {USIO S]DUIDIO0D fos suoypZIUDBIO
: ® | | 18UJO PUD SIOLISIP [00UDS ‘SBIYIIODY [DIIPBLU ‘SBI0USHD SOIAISS IDI0S LM SJ0I0qDIoD

YoDBYNE PUD ‘3DIAISS JSWOSNT ‘BUIDW




AN
[ee)
-—

salballIS UD|d

soiBo)ouls Ajuoud-ybiy so palijuspl usaq aAbY ploq Ul saibs|pls

"'SDSID 9DIAISS-PalIWI|

PUD $3IJUNOD UM} $9550d A|Yjuouwl pajunoIsIP SPIAOId e
‘9|doad awioduI-MO| pup ‘sjusapnjs

‘saiIgpsIp yim ajdoad ‘siojuss 10) s9ipny paonpal juswajdulje
‘V1IOMN $SOIDOD

S32IAISS JisubypInd pUD PUDWAP-UO PUDAXd O} SISAUP SJIH
‘up|d juswasp|dai

9|2IYdA puDp swpbiboid 9o2uUpuSUIDW }93]} JISUDI} SNUKUOD »

Buipun4 Uco [elllelole

"$9SNQ UO I4-IM J0J Buipuny Juoif ansing e U@._.OC__O._OOU

"SI9JUSD [ISUDI) 1D I4-IM DNIgnd ||oJsule x
‘PUD|HO Ul puD

9 YO BUOID SINOMDD|] OIPDI SSBIPPD PUD SWSLSAS OlpDI pIbdN e
W0y} jusuwuod
1o dow wiasAs JlDUApP b ybnoly} ‘waysAs ayj jnoqo jndul
apiAoid o} s1apu 10} AHIGD Sy} PUD SUS|D ISPU PUD ‘SJUDAD ‘SMaU
uo uoypbuwiiojul ‘duun|d du} b (pady} IDHIM] Jo/pub abpd dooqaopy

D O} U] SP YONS ‘SaINID3J |[PUCKHPPD SpNn|2ul 0} ajisqam apnibdn.

ey-2v 96D d1D T mg B B 5 n B L B



(a2}
[e0]
~—

wnipaw © _ “SDBID BOPBS-PAYILLY PUD S8IIUNOD USeMIaq 585s0d AJUJUOLI PSIUNCDSIR SPIACL
i i T ‘gidoad swiooul
ybIH ® _
~ANO| PUD “SJUSPAS ‘SORIIADSID Ui a1doad ‘SIoiuss 10j s8I0} paonpal jusws|diul
Y6 _ © . ubIy . _ W LOMN 550I0D SSOIAISS |ISUDIDIOG PUD PUDWSP-UO PUDAXS Of SI8AUPD SJH
— e ! | | =—— = R —e - - o T
ubiy ® MO} 588 || “upid JUBWAoDIda) B10IUSA PUD SLUDIBOIG oUDUSIUICLU (83} JISUDI} 3NUILU0T)

= MOT @ ) | $ _ 'S9SNG UO H-IM 10} Buipuny juoib snsing mm _ @ m.—. Ol—.—. m C O — &
MO] P | "518]UBD JISUDIL {D [4-M JliGNd [oisu =
wmpew ..l ybH | ¢ | "DUDJUOJ Ul pup 9 3O BUOID SINOODIq OIPDI SS8IpPO0 PUD SWSYSAS OJpol epoibdn ; - g
== I — _ “LUIO} JUSLUWIOD 10 dpu U m.—. C C _ U\— O O U
WIBISAS DIUPUAD D YBNoJYL “WislsAs suy inogo indut opiaoid o) s1opl 1oy AHIGR SU) %
ybIH @ Moy $ :

PUD SHSID J5PY PUD ‘SIUBAS "SMaU UO UoIDLLIOJUI Jsuunid dij © /D88) JOLIM] 10/puD
960d 300gs204 D Of DU SO YONS ‘SaINjDa) [DUOLIPPD 8pNjoul Of sisqem spoibdn
saibajoys Abojouysa|

oW mkuz :o:..o?m&v..a&
/panias sdnois jo Ajnonpg

S§S0D ABaipys

Ajrioud




210U 210 Ajjuaund (DYl 1D] 10} Ajuoud

ybiy o aqg p|NoyYs 1oyl salbalnils alayl a1y «

s AlUNOD JOOowD||I| Ul 8jdoad awoDul
-MO| PUD ‘SalllIgosIP YlIMm ajdoad ‘sioluss

2yl JO spoaau ayl ylim ubijo saibanils asayl o -

<
[e0]
~

UOISSNDSIC]




185

yluow
SIyl Jajo| Bulasw pioog 1D 1 J0) unijd azijpul 4 mQ®+m JF.X@Z
Bulleaw s,ADPO} WO} JO0gPos) 810I0dI0DU| 4






